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LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL 

To
All the shareholders
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms
Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited
Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited
Insurance Development & Regulatory Authority

Subject: Annual report for the year ended 31 December 2021

Dear Sir(s),
We are pleased to enclose a copy of the Annual Report of Bangladesh 
National Insurance Company Limited for the year 2021 together with the 
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 for your 
kind information and record.

Thank you

Sincerely yours

Md. Masud Rana
Company Secretary (Acting)
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Notice is hereby given that the 26th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited 
will be held on June 27, 2022 at 12:00 pm (Dhaka Time) virtually by using Digital Platform through the Link  
https://bnicl26agm.digitalagmbd.net to transact the following business:

Agenda:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Director’s Report and the Audited Financial Statements of the company for the   
 year ended 31 December, 2021 together with the Auditors Report thereon.    

2. To declare dividend for the year 2021 as recommended by the Board of Directors.    

3. To elect/re-elect directors in place of retiring directors from Group-A Shareholders & Group-B Shareholders.

4 To approve the appointment of Independent Director.

5. To approve the appointment/re-appointment of Auditors for the year 2022 and fix their remuneration.

6. To approve the appointment/re-appointment of Compliance Auditor for the year 2022 and fix their remuneration.

By the order of the Board of Directors     

Md. Masud Rana  
Company Secretary (Acting)
Date: 5th June, 2022

                
Notes:
1) The Shareholders whose name appeared on the Members/Depository Register as on the "Record Date” i.e. May 25,

2022 are eligible to participate in the 26th Annual General Meeting (AGM) and receive dividend.

2) A Shareholder is entitled to participate and vote at this virtual AGM, may appoint a proxy to participate and vote. 
The proxy form, a speciman of which is enclosed, dully filled, signed and stamped at Tk. 20 (Revenue stamp) must 
be sent through email to share@bnicl.net not later than 72 hours before commencement of AGM.

3) The Shareholders will join the virtual AGM through the Link https://bnicl26agm.digitalagmbd.net . The Shareholders 
will be able to submit their question/comments electronically before 24  (twenty four) hours of commencement of 
the AGM through the link and during the AGM, for logging into the system the Members need to put their 16-digit 
Beneficiary Owner's (BO) Account Number.

4) Pursuant to the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-15B
/208/Admin/81 dated 20 June 2018, the soft copy of Annual Report- 2021 to be sent to the email addresses of the 
Members and available in their Beneficial Owner (BO) accounts maintained with the Depository. The soft copy of the 
Annual Report- 2021 will also be available in the Company’s website at www.bnicl.net

NOTICE OF THE 26TH ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING (AGM) 
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited (BNICL) started its journey in 1996 as a non-life general insurance 
company with the prime objective of delivering a range of non-life insurance coverage solution like Fire, Motor, Marine 
or Miscellaneous Insurance. BNICL has been incorporated as a public limited company under the Companies ACT, 1994 
and obtained the certificate of commencement of business from the register of joint stock companies & firms on May 
21, 1996. The company also listed with Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited on 21 
April 2016. The company also obtained license to operate its business from IDRA (Former Controller of Insurance ) on 
21 May 1996. The shareholding structure of BNICL consists of reputed corporate houses, leading industrialists & 
general public. Other important information of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited is as follows:

Date of certificate of incorporation : 21 May 1996

Date of certificate for commencement of business : 21 May 1996

Date of Registration to carry on non-life insurance business : 01 June 1996

Authorized Capital : Tk. 100,00,00,000.00

Paid-up capital : Tk.44,25,00,000.00

Head Office : Rashid Tower (3rd Floor), Plot # 11, Road # 18

  Gulshan-1, Dhaka-1212, Bangladesh.

  Phone: (PABX) 8832234-5, 8832215, 8832217

  Fax: 88-02-8832154

Registered Office : W.W. Tower (Level-15)

  68, Motijheel Commercial Area 

  Dhaka- 1000, Bangladesh.

Nature of Business : All Kinds of non-life insurance business

Auditors : Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co.

  Chartered Accountants

Compliance Auditors : A. Hoque & Co

  Chartered Accountants

Website : www.bnicl.net

E-mail : mail@bnicl.net

Hotline : 09613 112233
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VISION
To be the most quality insurance
and risk solution service provider
in the country with the high standard
of customer Services
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MISSION
 partners Practicing fair business ethics and values

  Building long-term mutually beneficial relationship with business 

 Developing and retaining highly motivated professional team of employees 

 Applying “state of art” technology, processes including enterprise risk management and innovative solutions

 Enhancing profitability and financial strength

 To operate in accordance with the law of the land and as per international norms and practices

 To provide promptly the best possible services ensuring security of our clients

 To serve the interests of shareholders

 To extend a professional hand to our clients at all times
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
 To be attractive to customers by being a competitive independent and pre-eminent insurance
 coverage.

 To carry out qualitative nation-wide non-life insurance coverage.

 To ensure that shareholders achieve a long-term, competitive, stable return.

 To improve the position of the company in the insurance market.

 To ensure the expense ratio is lower than the general market.

 To increase the growth of the company by increasing the non-life premium year after year.

 To improve continuously company’s product features.

 To attract and keep profitable customers by delivering a high level of customer service.

 To be able to attract and keep qualified employees.

 To decrease the risk of reinvestment of insurance premium.



CODE OF CONDUCT AND ETHICS
 Compliance with law and the legal system is the fundamental principle for BNICL. Every employee, sponsor  and  
 director obeys the laws and regulations of the legal systems on the land within which one acts.

 Respect to personal integrity, privacy and right of individual is maintained by everyone that all works together with
 individual’s backgrounds, ethics, cultures, gender, religions and ages.

 Perform fairly with the quality and price of the innovative products and services, not by offering improper benefits  
 to others.

 Employees are not permitted to use their jobs to solicit, to demand, accept, obtain or be promised advantages.

 To conduct business with reputable clients and business partners who are involved in lawful business activities.  
 Never facilitate money laundering.

 Employees make sure all the business decisions for the best interest of the company and not based on their personal  
 interest.

 Protecting all assets of the company including intangible/tangible assets and use them only for the benefit of the  
 Company.

 Maintain open, fair and effective communication for truthful reporting. The company maintains sound processes 
 and controls on every transaction are executed within approved authorization.

 Maintain confidentiality in its client’s business.

Annual Report - 11



Annual Report - 12

  

  Integrity/Honesty
  Always treating the stakeholders fairly and conduct the business in a dignified and 
  ethical manner.
  
  Client Focus
  Always listening to clients.

  Professionalism
  Always maintaining good relationship with clients with respect and in good faith.

  Dynamism
  Always practicing good dynamism and responsive to the changing needs of the
  stakeholders.

  Accountability
  Always taking full responsibility to the corporate activities and honor the
  commitments.

  Nurturing
  Always providing equal opportunity to the employees/clients/stakeholders        
  that encourage each of them to improve the overall activities of the company.

CORE VALUES



Annual Report - 13

WALKING COLLECTIVELY

Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited started its journey with a vision of becoming one of the 
market leaders in the insurance sector. In line with that BNICL always concentrated providing highest 
standard of risk coverage solution to the clients. Developed its products features more customarily for the 
clients. Resulting clients feel comfort with us. By dint of this, company was able to create its brand image 
and reliability before the customers as well as the other stakeholders.

In spite of looking to the short term success; BNICL management crossed its fingers for attaining the long 
term growth. Resulting, the company listed with DSE and CSE in the year 2016. It helped the company to 
enrich the reliability of the company in the business sector. BNICL believed in walking collectively with the 
business conglomerates.

Over the years BNICL established itself in such a way that accomplished its position by being clear and 
easily under-standable to the customers, only happens for our good payment nature of the claims. Clients 
always like to smile with us, we like to walk collectively.

BNICL believes that company’s positive growth achieved in 2021 will be continued in coming years. Following 
the country’s GDP growth, BNICL intends to go forward with all its stakeholders and the community as a 
whole by walking collectively.
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PERFORMANCE AT A GLANCE
Company’s performance analysis is an analytic process that enables the management to achieve the pre-selected goals 
of the company. It is a part of total business performance that has three main activities. They are useful for selection 
of goals, helpful for taking financial decisions and reflect the light of performance analysis. Company’s performances 
over the last five years (2020 restated) are presented below

Gross Premium                                 870.27 563.46 520.46 501.91 476.73

Net Premium                                     586.63 367.92 361.73 372.03 373.55

Claims Paid                                       149.46 112.44 105.41 172.36 156.72

Investment & Other Income (Gross) 88.93 87.13 79.28 74.61 53.71

Underwriting Profit/Loss                   133.08  84.78 80.05 62.93 62.06

Net Profit Before Tax                         192.13 151.58 135.58 117.36 94.40

Paid up Capital                                  442.50 442.50 442.50 442.50 442.50

Deposit Premium                              62.86 59.01 15.01 12.87 10.30

Total Reserves                                766.51  608.60 549.46 504.84 462.45

Total Assets                                    2004.42 1585.01 1388.78 1326.38 1236.00

Total Liabilities                                 732.55 474.90 381.82 366.19 320.75

Cash & Bank Balances                    1292.95 995.72 829.21 836.43 921.62

Face Value Per Share (In Taka)      10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00

Earning Per Share (In Taka)             3.23 2.49 2.23 2.00 1.64

Book Value Per Share (In Taka)       21.85 20.14 19.05 18.02 17.05

Dividend (Cash)                                18% 15% 12% 12% 10%

 

(Amount in Million)

2021Particulars 2020 2019 2018 2017
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PERFORMANCE ILLUSTRATION
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PERFORMANCE ILLUSTRATION
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CHAIRMAN
Mostafa Kamal

DIRECTOR
Beauty Akter
Md. Abdur Rouf
Tahmina Binthe Mostafa
Taif Bin Yousuf
Tanjima Binthe Mostafa
Wasikur Rahman
Tanveer Ahmed Mostafa 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
Professor Dr. Mijanur Rahman 
Md. Alamgir Hossain Khan FCMA
Monjur Md. Shaiful Azam FCMA
Barrister Md. Hasan Rajib Prodhan

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Mohammad Sana Ullah 
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Yousuf Ali
Tasnim Binthe Mostafa
Abdul Baten
Hasina Begum 
Farida Akter
Md. Nasir Uddin
Balayet Hossain Bhuiyan

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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PROFILE OF THE CHAIRMAN

Mostafa Kamal
Chairman

Mr. Mostafa Kamal is one of the Sponsor of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited. 
Currently he is the Chairman of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited. He is the son 
of late Al-Hajj Noor Miah & late Al-Hajj Ayesha Khatun, was born in a respectable Muslim family 
in Chauddagram, Cumilla on 2nd February 1955. He started his business career as an entrepre-
neur after his education and now he is a prominent industrialist of the country. He has reputation 
in his business personality. He is the Honorable Chairman and Managing Director of Meghna 
Group of Industries. He is associated with a number of companies in the field of shipping, 
cement, edible oil, vegetable oil, food items etc. He is a member of standing committee on 
import, Tariff and Anti-dumping of FBCCI, Secretary General of Bangladesh Vegetable Oil Refin-
ers, President of Bangladesh Woven Tape Bag Manufacturers’ Association and Korea Bangladesh 
Chamber of Commerce & Industries (KBCCI). He is the founder of Al-Hajj Noor Miah Degree 
College, Al-Hajj Ayesha Noor Welfare Foundation, Kankapaith Primary School. Mr. Mostafa Kamal 
is also involved in socio-cultural and educational institutes.
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PROFILE OF THE DIRECTORS

Beauty Akter
Director

Mrs. Beauty Akter, daughter of Al-Hajj Md. Abdul Hakim & Al-Hajj Ambia Khatun and wife of prominent industrialist 
Mostafa Kamal, was born on 1 February, 1965 in Cumilla. She involved herself with her husband’s business and built 
reputation as an astute and efficient business entrepreneur. Mrs. Beauty Akter is one of the sponsor directors of Bangla-
desh National Insurance Company Limited. She is one of the founding shareholders of Meghna Group of Industries. She 
is the Director of United Salt Industries Limited, Meghna Dairy and Food Products Limited, Kamal Trading Co. Limited, 
Kamal Imports and exports Limited, United Fiber Industries Limited and Meghna Vegetable Oil Industries Limited. Now 
she is the Vice Chairman of Meghna Group.

Md. Abdur Rouf
Director

Mr. Md. Abdur Rouf was born on 1 January, 1968 in Cumilla. His father’s name is late Mr. Abdur Rahman and mother’s 
name is Asia Khatun. He started his career in business just after completion of his education. His business affilia-
tion includes insurance, communication etc. He is a sponsor director of the company. Md. Abdur Rouf is also involved 
in socio-cultural and educational institutes.
tion includes insurance, communication etc. He is a sponsor director of the company. Md. Abdur Rouf is also involved 
in socio-cultural and educational institutes.
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Tahmina Binthe Mostafa
Director

Mrs. Tahmina Binthe Mostafa was born on July 24, 1986 in Dhaka. She obtained her Masters and Bachelors Degree from 
the University of Greenwich, U.K. After completion of her education, Mrs. Tahmina Binthe Mostafa started her business 
career in one of the leading business conglomerates in Bangladesh. She is one of the directors of Bangladesh National 
Insurance Company Limited. She has business experience in the field of sugar, mineral water, dairy and food products, 
cement, hatchery & feed, fiber, coconut oil, mustard oil, power plant, printing & packaging etc.
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Taif Bin Yousuf
Director

Mr. Taif Bin Yousuf, son of Md. Yousuf was born on 20 August, 1982. He is a Director of Bangladesh National Insurance 
Company Limited and Senior Executive Director of Meghna group of industries (MGI / Fresh). Mr. Taif Graduated from 
London Metropolitan University (London), majoring in Business and Information Technology. He has been associated with 
various businesses from last 13 years and now in the Board of Directors of Bangladesh National Insurance Company 
Limited since 19 December, 2012. His dedication has shifted BNICL to a new journey following the current insurance trend 
globally.
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Wasikur Rahman
Director

Mr. Wasikur Rahman, son of Late Naziur Rahman Monju was born in Dhaka, on 16th January 1987. He finshed his High 
School from David Game College, United Kingdom. He obtained his Bachelors in Law (LLB- Hons) from Queen Marry 
University of London, UK. He was called to the Bar in 2010 from Lincoln’s INN. After successfully finishing his 
academic life, he started practicing law as an advocate in the Supreme Court of Bangladesh and Joined Bangladesh 
National Insurance Company Limited as a Director.

Tanjima Binthe Mostafa
Director

Mrs. Tanjima Binthe Mostafa was born on July 01, 1987 in Dhaka. She obtained her Bachelor of Science in Business in 
Management from the Babson College, Boston, USA, majoring in Entrepreneurial studies. After the completion of her 
education, she started business in various field and joined Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited as a direc-
tor.
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Tanveer Ahmed Mostafa
Director

Mr. Tanveer Ahmed Mostafa, son of Mostafa Kamal was born on December 03, 1992 in Dhaka. He completed his High 
School from American International School Dhaka in 2010. He later went on to complete his undergraduate from 
University of Wales, United Kingdom in Bachelor of Science (Hons) with a major in Business and Management. Mr. 
Tanveer Ahmed Mostafa started his business in various fields in Bangladesh and joined Bangladesh National Insurance 
Company Limited as a Director.

Ms. Tasnim Binthe Mostafa
Director

Ms. Tasnim Binthe Mostafa, daughter of Mr. Mostafa Kamal & Mrs. Beauty Akter was born on 05 February 1998 in 
Dhaka. She obtained her LL.B. (Hons) degree from Queen Mary University of London, UK in 2019. As a young talent, 
she joined her family business at her early age and contributed in different area of the business. Thereafter, she joined 
in the Board of Directors of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited. She is also a shareholder of Unique 
Infoway Limited
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Mr. Yousuf Ali
Director 

Mr. Yousuf Ali, son of Kala Chan Sarder & Mrs. Amatun Nessa was born on 3 September 1972 in a respectable Muslim 
family. He is an FCMA. He completed his Masters of Commerce in Accounting from Dhaka University. Currently he is one 
of the Directors of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited. He has interest in various socio-cultural activities. 

Md. Abdul Baten
Public Director

Mr. Md. Abdul Baten was born on 17 November, 1970 in Cumilla. His Father name is Mr. Abdur Rahman and Mother 
name is Ayesha Begum. He started his career in business just after completion of his education. He is a Public Director 
of the company & he joined in the Board of Directors of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited on 26 August 
2020.
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Hasina Begum
Public Director

Hasina Begum was born on 03 October, 1981 in Cumilla. Her Father's name is Md. Ali Hossain and Mother name is 
Momena Begum. She completed her education then involve in business. She is a Public Director of the company & she 
joined in the Board of Directors of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited on 26 August 2020.

Farida Akter 
Public Director  

Farida Akter was born on 1 June, 1979 in Cumilla. Her Father's name is late Bodiul Alam and Mother name is late 
Mazeda Begum. After successfully finishing her academic life, she started her business career. She is a Public Director 
of the company & she joined in the Board of Directors of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited on 26 August 
2020.
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Md. Balayet Hossain Bhuiyan
Public Director

Mr. Md. Balayet Hossain Bhuiyan was born on 26 September, 1974 in Cumilla. His father’s name is Mr. Ruhul Amin 
Bhuiyan and mother’s name is Tafura Begum. He started his career in business just after completion of his education. 
His business affiliation includes insurance, communication and so on. He is actively involved with a number of socio-
cultural organizations and a life time associate member. He is a public director of Bangladesh National Insurance 
Company Limited.

Md. Nasir Uddin
Public Director 

Mr. Md. Nasir Uddin was born on 1 July, 1972 in Cumilla. His Father's name is late Md. Jayedul Hoque and Mother name 
is late Marium Nessa. He started his career in business just after completion of his education. He is a Public Director of 
the company & he joined in the Board of Directors of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited on 26 August 
2020.
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Prof. Dr. Mijanur Rahman 
Independent Director

Prof. Dr. Mijanur Rahman is an Independent Director of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited. Prof. Dr. 
Mijanur Rahman, son of late Abdul Gani, was born on 01 January, 1958. He obtained B.Com. (Hons) and M.Com in 
Marketing from the University of Dhaka in 1978 & 1979 respectively. He did his Ph.D. in Business Administration from 
Aligarh Muslim University, India in 1994. He has a teaching experience of 31 years at university level. He was a former 
Vice Chancellor of Jagannath University. He has been serving as a professor of Marketing in the University of Dhaka since 
1999. He has a commendable list of publications. He is the author of several well acclaimed books.
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Md. Alamgir Hossain Khan, FCMA
Independent Director

Mr. Md. Alamgir Hossain Khan, FCMA is an Independent Director and Chairman of Audit Committee of Bangladesh National 
Insurance Company Limited. He joined in the Board of Directors on 21 September 2021. He obtained Master of 
Commerce (M.Com.) from the National University in 1998 and he has awarded fellow membership of Cost and Manage-
ment Accountants. He has 18 years of professional background leading all aspects of accounting, budgeting, forecasting, 
financial analysis, treasury management, reporting and project financing.
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Monjur Md. Shaiful Azam, FCMA
Independent Director

Mr. Monjur Md. Shaiful Azam, FCMA is an Independent Director of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited. He 
joined in the Board of Directors on 21 September 2021. He has completed his Masters in Accounting & Management. 
He is a fellow member of the Institute of Cost & Management Accountants of Bangladesh. He engaged himself in 
business and Consultancy. Monjur Md. Shaiful Azam, FCMA is an active social worker engaged with various activities to 
bring positive changes among under privileged people.
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Barrister Md. Hasan Rajib Prodhan
Independent Director

Mr. Md. Hasan Rajib Prodhan is an Independent Director of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited. He joined 
in the Board of Directors on 21 September 2021. He has completed post graduation Diploma-in-Law from City Univer-
sity in London and LLB (Hon’s) from United Kingdom. He is actively associated with a number of socio-cultural organiza-
tions and a life time member. He has 20 years of experience in litigation practice in Supreme Court of Bangladesh.
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Mohammad Sana Ullah
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Mohammad Sana Ullah was born in Chattogram in 1966. He comes from a respectable Muslim family 
of Chattogram. He was appointed as Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer of Bangladesh National Insurance 
Company Limited on April 15, 2013. Prior to join the Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited Mohammad 
Sana Ullah had been serving as the Additional Managing Director in the Express Insurance Limited. He obtained 
B.A. (Hon’s) and M.A. Over the last 31 years of experience in General Insurance Industry and he continuously been 
contributing for the growth of this sector. He started his career in the year 1989 and work in different organiza-
tion including Northern General Insurance Company Limited, Central Insurance Company Limited with full respon-
sibility and utmost dedication for the last 31 years in General Insurance Company. In the period of time he holds 
several responsible posts in private owned Insurance Company. Mohammad Sana Ullah is an active social worker 
engaged with various activities to bring positive changes among under privileged people. He is a member of 
Bangladesh Insurance Forum (BIF).
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PRODUCTS & SERVICES
Marine insurance
BNIC Marine Risks is a specialist marine insurance broker. Our sole aim is to provide highly competitive, first class 
marine insurance solutions to the risks faced by maritime enterprises across the world. This singular purpose defines 
our approach and underlines our commitment to consistently exceeding our clients’ expectations.

Marine insurance covers the loss or damage of ships, cargo, terminals, and any transport or cargo by which property is 
transferred, acquired, or held between the points of origin and final destination.

Fire insurance
Fire insurance policy can be bought by anyone who is the legal owner of a residential landed property or apartment in 
order to protect it against loss of or damage to such property. The contents of a home can also be insured against.

You are the owner of a house, your fire insurance policy may be extended to include permanent fixtures and fittings 
such as fitted kitchen and bedroom closets/cupboards and interior decorations. Outbuildings such as maids quarters or 
garages may be included as well. The extent of structures to be included will depend on their inclusion in the build up 
in the sum insured.

In addition, the contents of your home like furniture, carpets, TV, video, hi-fi equipment, piano, bookcase, books, 
lamps, ornaments, PC, clothing, bedding, kitchenware and appliances, personal effects etc and leasehold improvements 
can be insured as well. Often the policy on contents/leasehold improvements is issued separately from the policy on 
the structure although some insurers issue a combined policy for houses.

Many a poet have wondered about the dual power of fire – so constructive and beneficial, yet with the potential to 
cause so much damage. A single fire accident has the power to wreak complete havoc burning down buildings, plant 
and machinery and even stocks. A single spark can lead to so much loss and unless adequately insured, a business will 
find it very difficult to rise from the ashes. With Cholamandalam MS Fire Insurance, ensure that your business is 
adequately covered against damage arising out of various fire and fire-related perils.

Motor insurance
Motor insurance (also known as auto insurance, car insurance, or motor insurance) is insurance purchased for cars, 
trucks, and other vehicles. Its primary use is to provide protection against losses incurred as a result of traffic accidents 
and against liability that could be incurred in an accident.

Under the provisions of Motor Vehicles Act, all vehicles that ply in public places must have an insurance policy that at 
least covers “Third Party Liability” as specified under the Act. A Comprehensive Motor Insurance Cover in addition to 
the mandatory third-party cover also protects the car owner from financial losses, caused by loss or damage or theft of 
the vehicle.

Miscellaneous insurance
Miscellaneous insurance like other forms of insurance is a form of collectivism by means of which people collectively 
pool their risk, in this case the risk of incurring medical expenses. The collective is usually publicly owned or else is 
organized on a non-profit basis for the members of the pool, though in some countries medical insurance pools may 
also be managed by for-profit companies. It is sometimes used more broadly to include insurance covering disability or 
long-term nursing or custodial care needs. It may be provided through a government-sponsored social insurance 
program, or from private insurance companies. It may be purchased on a group basis (e.g., by a firm to cover its 
employees) or purchased by an individual. In each case, the covered groups or individuals pay premiums or taxes to 
help protect themselves from unexpected healthcare expenses. Similar benefits paying for medical expenses may also 
be provided through social welfare programs funded by the government.

By estimating the overall risk of healthcare expenses, a routine finance structure (such as a monthly premium or annual 
tax) can be developed, ensuring that money is available to pay for the healthcare benefits specified in the insurance 
agreement. The benefit is administered by a central organization such as a government agency, private business, or 
not-for-profit entity.
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN
Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim
Honorable Shareholders – Assalamu Alaikum.

It is great pleasure and privilege for me to welcome you all to the 26th Annual General Meeting of Bangladesh National 
Insurance Company Limited. On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to extend my good wishes and cordial 
greetings to you all for your sincere support and co-operation with our company.

I also take this opportunity for sharing our success challenges and directions to be followed for the future to cope up 
with the economy changes. Besides, I am also delighted to present the Annual Report of Bangladesh National Insurance 
Company Limited for the year 2021 along with the Audited financial statements and Auditors report thereon for the year 
ended 31 December 2021 before you.

Bangladesh is moving with determined aim of a Digital Bangladesh maintaining sustainable GDP growth during the last 
decade. The GDP growth of the country 6.9%  in FY 2020-21 against  7.2% in FY 2019-20. The gross premium of Non-life 
insurance industry in Bangladesh was Tk. 46,868.53 million in 2020 as against Tk. 47,115.71 million in 2019 indicating 
stable of Insurance Industry.

Bangladesh has been able to maintain sustained economic growth even in the face of global financial crisis. A well 
balanced fiscal policy, higher private and public sector investment and stable political situation GDP growth rate 6.9 
percent in FY 2020-21 despite having rohingya refuges crises and COVID-19 situation. Per capita income is USD 2824 
in FY 2020-21 against USD 2064 in FY 2019-20. Revenue income increased from the last year which enabled the 
government to take up large infrastructure projects.

Under these circumstances, your company posted net profit before tax Tk. 192.13 million for the year 2021. Gross 
premium income stood at Tk. 870.27 million in 2021 and Tk. 563.46 million in 2020 which representing a growth  of 
54.45%. Total Assets of the company at stood 2004.42 million as at  31 December 2021 showing a growth of 26.46% 
comparing with the last year. We hope that in the year 2022, the performance of the company will be continued in a 
same profitable manner also.

You are well aware that Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited maintain standard level in declaring dividend 
every year and we have proposed 18% cash dividend for the year 2021.

Your company also established a good market reputation for timely claim settlement and built a strong platform for 
continuous future growth with the merits of experienced management.

I thankfully acknowledge the support and cooperation that the company received from Ministry of Finance, Bangladesh 
Bank, Insurance Development & Regulatory Authority, Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, Dhaka Stock 
Exchange Limited, Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited, Sadharan Bima Corporation, Overseas Brokers and all related 
Government and private organizations.

Sincere thanks also goes to my fellow colleagues of the management and staff of Bangladesh National Insurance 
Company Limited whose loyalty, dedication, professionalism, positive attitude and commitment has been fundamental 
to the performance in the year 2021 and to paving the way forward for smooth growth in the years to come.

Gratefulness also goes to our Board of Directors for their valuable guidance, prudent and timely decisions to drive the 
company to ultimate destination. Your company has a committed, sincere, hardworking team who can make the dream 
true for the company.

Finally, I would like to express my heartfelt gratitude also to regulators, sponsors, shareholders, stakeholders, management, 
policyholder and all well-wishers for their support they have been rendering to us during the year 2021.

Allah Hafez

Thank You

Mostafa Kamal
Chairman
Board of Directors
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wemwgjøvwni ivngvwbi ivwng

m¤§vwbZ †kqvi †nvìvie„›`-Avmmvjvgy AvjvBKzg

evsjv‡`k b¨vkbvj BÝy¨‡iÝ †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW Gi 26Zg evwl©K mvavib mfvq Avcbv‡`i‡K ¯^vMZ Rvbv‡Z †c‡i Avwg AZ¨šÍ Avbw›`Z| 

Avcbv‡`i AvšÍwiK mg_©b Ges mn‡hvwMZvi Rb¨ Avwg Avgvi ïf Kvgbv I AvšÍwiK ï‡f”Qv Rvbvw”Q| Avwg AÎ †Kv¤úvbxi GB mvdj¨ 
Avcbv‡`i mv‡_ fvM K‡i wb‡Z PvB Ges AvMvgx‡Z GB mvdj¨ a‡i †i‡L †h †Kvb A_©‰bwZK cÖwZ‡hvwMZv‡K †gvKv‡ejv Kivi Rb¨ 
Avcbv‡`i‡K cv‡k PvB| cvkvcvwk evsjv‡`k b¨vkbvj BÝy¨‡iÝ †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW 2021Bs mv‡ji wbixwÿZ Avw_©K weeibx Ges wbixÿ‡Ki 
Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`b Dc¯’vcb Ki‡Z †c‡i Avwg LyeB Avbw›`Z|

wWwRUvj evsjv‡`k cÖwZôvi j‡ÿ¨ weMZ `k eQi a‡i evsjv‡`k wRwWwc cÖe„w× a‡i †i‡L‡Q| †`‡k 2020-21 A_© eQ‡i wRwWwc cÖe„w× wQj 
6.9  kZvsk cÿvšÍ‡i 2019-20 A_© eQ‡i wQj 7.2 kZvsk| evsjv‡`k BÝy¨‡iÝ G‡mvwm‡qkb Gi Z_¨ g‡Z evsjv‡`k mvavib exgv wk‡í 
2020 mv‡j ‡gvU wcÖwgqvg Avq wQj46,868.53 wgwjqb UvKv cÿvšÍ‡i 2019 mv‡j 47,115.71 wgwjqb UvKv hv exgv wk‡íi ¯’xwZkxjZv 
wb‡`k© K‡i |

evsjv‡`k µgvš^‡q †UKmB A_©‰bwZK Dbœqb mvab K‡i Pj‡Q †hLv‡b wek¦ A_©bxwZ GKwU msKUgq mgq cvi Ki‡Q| PgrKvi Avw_©K bxwZ, 
miKvix I †emiKvix wewb‡qvM D×©MwZ Ges w¯’wZkxj ivR‰bwZK cwiw¯’wZi Kvi‡b 2020-21 A_© eQ‡i wRwWwc cÖe„w× wQj 6.9 kZvsk hw`I 
G eQiI fqven †KvwfW-19 cwiw¯’wZ wQj| gv_v wcQz Avq 2021 G wQj 2824 gvwK©b Wjvi cÿvšÍ‡i 2020 wQj 2064  gvwK©b Wjvi| MZ 
eQ‡ii Zzjbvq evR¯^ Avq e„w×i Kvi‡b miKvi eo AeKvVv‡gv wbgv©‡b c`‡ÿc wb‡q‡Q|

GgZve¯’vq, Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤úvbx 2021 mv‡j 192.13  wgwjqb UvKv Ki c~e© gybvdv AR©b K‡i‡Q| 2021 mv‡j †gvU wcÖwgqvg Avq `vuwo‡q‡Q 
870.27 wgwjqb UvKv hv 2020 mv‡j wQj 563.46 wgwjqb UvKv hv 54.45 kZvsk cÖe„w× cÖ`k©b K‡i| 2021 mv‡ji †k‡l †Kv¤úvbxi †gvU 
m¤ú` ̀ vuwo‡q‡Q 2004.42 wgwjqb UvKv hv MZ eQ‡ii Zzjbvq 26.46 kZvsk cÖe„w× cÖ`k©b K‡i| Avgiv Avkv Kwi 2022 mv‡jI Avcbv‡`i 
†Kv¤úvbxi djvdj Giƒc DbœwZi w`‡K _vK‡e|

Avcbviv AeMZ Av‡Qb †h, evsjv‡`k b¨vkbvj BÝy¨‡iÝ †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW cÖwZ eQi gvb m¤§Z jf¨vsk †Nvlbv K‡i ‡m Abyhvqx 2021 mv‡j 
Avgiv 18 kZvsk bM` jf¨vsk †Nvlbv K‡iwQ|

mgqgZ exgv `vex wb®úwZi gva¨‡g Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤úvbx mybvg AR©b K‡i‡Q Ges †mB mv‡_ AwfÁ e¨e¯’vcbv KZ…©c‡ÿi Kg©`ÿZv‡K Kv‡R 
jvwM‡q †Kv¤úvbxi k³ wfwË ˆZix n‡q‡Q hv fwel¨‡Z wbqwgZ AMÖMwZ e‡q wb‡q Avm‡e|

Avwg AvšÍwiKfv‡e ab¨ev` RvbvB A_© gš¿bvjq, evsjv‡`k e¨vsK, exgv Dbœqb I wbqš¿Y KZ©„cÿ, evsjv‡`k wmwKDwiwU GÛ G·‡PÄ Kwgkb, 
XvKv ÷K G·‡PÄ wjwg‡UW, wPUvMvs ÷K G·‡PÄ wjwg‡UW, mvavib exgv K‡c©v‡ikb, we‡`kx cybtexgv cÖwZôvb I mswkøó mKj miKvix I 
†emiKvix ms¯’vmn mKj †kÖbxi m¤§vwbZ exgv MÖvnK‡`i Zv‡`i mn‡hvMxZvi Rb¨|

Avwg K…ZÁZv cÖKvk KiwQ cwiPvjbv cl©‡`i Kv‡Q hv‡`i g~j¨evb w`K-wb‡`©kbv Ges mwVK wm×v‡šÍi gva¨‡g †Kv¤úvbx Zvi MšÍ‡e¨ †cŠQv‡Z 
mg_© n‡q‡Q| 

Avwg Av‡iv ab¨ev` RvbvB evsjv‡`k b¨vkbvj BÝy¨‡iÝ †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW Gi e¨e¯’vcbv KZ…©cÿ‡K Ges mKj Kg©KZ©v Kg©Pvix‡`i‡K hv‡`i 
mZZv, mn‡hvMxZv Ges Kg©Kv‡Ûi gva¨‡g 2021 mv‡ji G mvdj¨ AwR©Z n‡q‡Q Ges hv fwel¨‡ZI GKBfv‡e Pj‡Z _vK‡e|

cwi‡k‡l Avwg ab¨ev` RvbvB mKj wbqš¿K ms¯’v, ¯úÝi, †kqvi †nvìvi, †÷K †nvìvi, e¨e¯’vcbv KZ…©cÿ, exgv MÖvnK Ges mKj 
ïfvKv•Lx‡`i hv‡`i mn‡hvMxZvq 2021 mv‡j mvdj¨ AR©b n‡q‡Q|

Avjøvn nv‡dR

ab¨ev`v‡šÍ

†gv¯Ídv Kvgvj
‡Pqvig¨vb
cwiPvjbv cl©`

†Pqvig¨vb g‡nv`‡qi e³e¨
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Dear Shareholders
It is a great pleasure and privilege on the part of the Board of Directors of Bangladesh National Insurance Company 
Limited to present the Annual Report for the year 2021 inclusive of the audited financial statements of the Company 
for the year ended on 31 December 2021 and the Auditor’s Report thereon, for consideration and approval of the 
esteemed Shareholders. Beside, the Board also welcomes all the shareholders whose in this 26th Annual General Meet-
ing makes enlighten and provide us huge encouragement to work hard for upcoming days for producing good result for 
the company.
The Board of Directors expresses their sincere thanks to all the shareholders for being with the company over the 
year2021 and humbly discloses that during the year 2021 the company was able to unveil net profit of Tk.192,126,223 
only and posted Tk.3.23 EPS. The Board also expresses his happiness for recommendation of 18% cash dividend for 
the year 2021 for the shareholders.

World Economy
Global growth is projected at 6.0 percent in 2021, 4.9 percentages in 2020 World Economic Outlook (WEO) forecast. 
The COVID-19 pandemic has had a more negative impact on activity in the first half of 2021 than anticipated, and the 
recovery is projected to be more gradual than previously forecast. In 2022 global growth is projected at 4.4 percent. 
Overall, this would   leave 2021 GDP some 6.5   percentage points lower than in the pre-COVID-19 projections of 
January 2020. The adverse impact on low-income households is particularly acute, imperiling the significant progress 
made in reducing extreme poverty in the world .

Bangladesh Economy
The GDP growth rate of Bangladesh has reached 5.47 percent in the last fiscal year despite the impact of corona virus 
pandemic. The economy of Bangladesh, however, grew by a record 8.15 percent. The GDP growth rate in the FY 2020-
21 was 6.9 percent, while it was 8.15 percent in 2020-21. The per capita income stood at USD 2824 in the last fiscal 
from USD 2,064 in FY-2019-20. According to BBS, the GDP growth rate at constant prices in the industry sector 
increased by 10.29  percent in the last fiscal year which was 6.68 percent in FY-2019-20.  In the services sector, the 
GDP growth rate increased by 5.73 percent in the last fiscal year while it was 3.93 percent was in FY-2019-20.  In the 
agriculture sector, the GDP growth rate decreased by 3.17 percent in last fiscal year while it was 3.42 percent in 
FY-2019-20. The BBS data also showed that in the last fiscal year, the investment ratio to GDP stood at 31.02percent 
which was 31.31 percent in FY-2019-20

Insurance Industry in Bangladesh
The Bangladesh insurance industry is highly competitive. The Government and Insurance Development Regulatory 
Authority (IDRA) continuing their efforts  to contribute much in their respective areas for the development of insurance 
industry. The Government and IDRA taken some steps for the development of insurance industry of the country. The 
Government has already promulgated National Insurance Day on 01 March. The regulatory body try to guide insurance 
companies to execute the policies of the Government and compliances of Insurance Act. 2010. The Bangladesh Insur-
ance Association (BIA)  is giving different guidelines in running the life and non-life insurance business smoothly 
complying with the rules and regulations of  insurance Act 2010. The insurance companies will have to take the respon-
sibilities of running the business effectively and efficiently. The non-life insurance business is increasing day by day. The 
Country total Gross premium income was Tk. 46,868.53million in 2020. While it was Tk. 47,115.71in 2021 of General 
Insurance sector.
Insurance Business in 2021
BNICL earned a gross premium income of Tk.870.27 million as against Tk.563.46 million in 2020, showing an increase 
of 54.45 percent.

Product-wise performance:
Fire Insurance Business
The Company wrote direct fire insurance business with a gross premium income of Tk. 279.54 million against Tk. 
209.47 million in 2020.Which is representing 33.45% growth. The Company earned an underwriting Profit of Tk. 0.77 
million.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT TO
THE SHAREHOLDERS
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Marine Insurance Business
The gross premium income from underwriting of marine insurance of Tk.343.06 million in 2021 and Tk. 190.44 million 
in 2020. Which is representing 80% growth. The Company earned an underwriting profit of Tk. 58.08 million..

Motor Insurance Business
In motor insurance segment, the gross premium income Tk.120.25 million against Tk.100.08 million in 2020. Which is represent-
ing  20.15% growth .The Company earned an underwriting profit of Tk. 64.99 million.

Miscellaneous Insurance Business
Gross Premium income from miscellaneous insurance business Tk.127.42  million against Tk.63.47 million in 2020. 
Which is representing 100.96 % growth and underwriting profit of Tk. 9.26 million in the year 2021.

Income from Investment
Interest income derived from banks and non-banking financial institutions of Tk 74.12 million in 2021 and Tk.71.35 
million was in 2020.

Dividend Income
The dividend income of Tk 2.12 million for the year 2021.

Rental Income
The Rental income of Tk 1.78 million for the year 2021.

Financial Results & Appropriation
We are pleased to report that due to effective underwriting, marketing, appropriate portfolio issue, technically sound 
reinsurance arrangements and effective monitoring, the company has been able to achieve favorable financial results 
in 2021. Taking into consideration of the company’s financial needs and the shareholder’s short as well as long term 
interests, the board of directors recommends the appropriation of after-tax profit for the 2021 in the following manner:

Cost of Goods Sold and Profit Margin
The company is a non-life insurance company and hence cost of goods sold and gross profit margin concept is not 
appropriate for the company. Rather profit of the company is main concerned for the company hence, in the year 2021 
the company earned profit of Tk.192, 126,223 only.

Claim
The company settled claim of Tk.149.46 million after recovery from the reinsurance during the year 2021. The company 
always used to attach due importance on quick settlement of claims of the valued clients.

Continuity of Any Extra-ordinary Gain or Loss
In the year 2021 there was no extra ordinary activities and hence there was no continuation of extra ordinary gain or 
loss in the current year.

a) The Un-appropriated Profit Carry forward from previous Year 2021                  106,761,654

b) The Un-appropriated Profit for Current Year 2021                                               192,126,223

c)   Adjustment for the application of IFRS-16(Lease)  (882,516)

d) Deferred Tax Expenses (1,517,150)

e) Total Fund Available for Appropriation 296,488,212

f) Reserve for Exceptional Losses                                                                                             58,663,142

g) Provision for Taxes                                                                                                           47,581,037

h) Dividend Paid                                                                                                                         66,375,000

i) Balance transferred to retained earnings 123,869,033
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Basis of Related Party Transaction
According to the International Accounting Standard-24 “Related Party Disclosures” related party disclosure was made 
in note # 36 (b) of the financial statements.

Remuneration to Directors Including Independent Directors
Directors are not empowered to take any remuneration other than attendance fee which fixed by Insurance Development 
Regulatory Authority (IDRA). In line with remuneration paid to directors in the year 2021. Till date no remuneration was 
also given to any independent director except the attendance fee.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework
In conformity of the BSEC Notification No.BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 3, 2018; the directors 
confirm compliance with the financial reporting framework for the following:
The financial statements prepared by the management of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited present 
fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.
Proper books of account of the issuer company have been maintained.

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial statements and that the 
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.
International Accounting Standards and International Financial Reporting Standards have been followed in preparation 
of the financial statements and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed.
The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.
There are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Significant Deviations From the Last Year’s Operating Result
The company earned profit of Tk.192.13 million in the year 2021. In the year 2020, the company earned profit of 
Tk.151.58 million. The company earns higher profit comparing with the last year can say that significant profit 
increased during the period under review. The Company Net Operating Cash Flows per share Tk.9.67 in the year 2021 
and in the year 2020 Tk.5.19, due to increase in premium & others income and decrease in payment of claim, management 
expenses & re-insurance has been made during the year.

Key Operating and Financial Data
Key operating and financial data of preceding five years is included in this annual report.

Dividend
For the year 2021 the Board of Directors recommends 18 percent cash dividend.

Credit Rating
Credit Rating of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited was carried out by Emerging Credit Rating Limited 
for the year 2021-2022. After assessment they provide “Long Term: AA and Short Term: ST-2” which increase more 
reliability of the company to the stakeholders. Apart from the above rating agency also highlighted the following salient 
feature of the Company:

Steady increase in gross premium income.
Capacity to meet claim demand of policy holder.
Increase in claim due to high standard of customer service.
Strong reserve base.
Introduction Corporate governance issues and guidance for Compliance with regulation of IDRA & BSEC.

Risk Management
The company is always aware of the risk factors inherent in the industry. To keep the risks at an acceptable level, the 
company identifies, monitors and reviews the risks inherent in the business from time to time, continuous to update 
data base for information and takes corrective and or preventive measure to safeguard the stakeholder’s interest.
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Director’s Meeting
During the year 2021 Five board meetings were held. The attendance in the board meetings by each director is included 
with this annual report.

Shareholding Pattern
According to the clause 1.5 (xxiii) of the BSEC’s Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006 -158/207/Admin/80 dated June3, 
2018 shareholding pattern is included corporate governance guideline.

Director’s Retirement and Re-appointment.
Group – A :
As per company’s Article of Association the following Directors will retire on 27 June, 2022 and all of them are eligible 
for re-appointment :

1. Md. Abdur Rouf
2. Tahmina Binthe Mostafa 
3. Tanjima Binthe Mostafa
4. Tanveer Ahmed Mostafa

Group – B :
As per company’s Article of Association the following Directors will retire on 27 June, 2022 and all of them are eligible 
for re-appointment 

1. Mr. Md. Abdul Baten
2. Md. Nasir Uddin

As per Insurance Rules- 1958 Public Director will be elected at the Annual General Meeting. In this respect election 
notice has been published on two national dailies one is Bangla and another is English on 28 April, 2022.

The Company seeks approval of the honorable shareholders in the Annual General Meeting for the 
appointment/reappointment of Md. Alamgir Hossain Khan FCMA, Monjur Md. Shaiful Azam FCMA, and BarristerHasan 
Rajib Prodhan.

Appointment of statutory Auditor :
For this the  Board of Directors appointed as statutory auditor Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co. Chartered Accountants for 
the year 2022 subject to approval by  Shareholders at 26th Annual General Meeting.

Appointment of compliance Auditor: 
As per corporate Governance code no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated: 03 June, 2018 the Board of 
Directors appointed A Hoque & Co. Chartered Accountants for obtaining certificate of compliance of corporate govern-
ance for the year 2022 subject to approval by Shareholder at 26th Annual General Meeting.

Acknowledgement
We gratefully acknowledge valuable help and advices from the esteemed shareholders at the AGM, Well-wishers, the 
Insurance Development & Regulatory Authority (IDRA), Bangladesh Insurance Association, Bangladesh Insurance 
Academy, our Co-insurers and Re-insurers, The Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms, Ministry of Finance, 
Commercial Banks and Financial Institutions, Bangladesh Bank, Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission Dhaka 
Stock Exchange Limited and Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited.

We also like to thank the members of our staffs for their devotion, drive and skill in maintaining the companies high 
standard of business ethics.

Mostafa Kamal
Chairman
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cwiPvjK gÛjxi cÖwZ‡e`b 
wcÖq †kqvi‡nvìvie„›`:
evsjv‡`k b¨vkbvj BÝ¨y‡iÝ ‡Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡U‡Wi cwiPvjbv cl©‡`i c¶ ‡_‡K 31‡k wW‡m¤^i 2021Bs Zvwi‡Li mgvß eQ‡ii wbixw¶Z 
Avw_©K weeibx, evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`b Ges AwWUim wi‡c©vU ‡kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i we‡ePbv I Aby‡gv`‡bi Rb¨ Dc¯’vcb Ki‡Z ‡c‡i Avgiv Lye 
Avbw›`Z| cvkvcvwk cl©` mKj ‡kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i ¯^vMZ Rvbvw”Q, hviv 26Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq AskMÖnb K‡i‡Qb Ges GB mfv‡K 
Av‡jvwKZ K‡i‡Qb Ges cÖPyi mvnm RywM‡q‡Qb hv‡Z Avgiv AvMvgx w`b ¸‡jv‡Z K‡Vvi cwikÖ‡gi gva¨‡g ‡Kv¤úvbxi Rb¨ fv‡jv djvdj e‡q 
Avb‡Z cvwi|

2021Bs mvj Ry‡o ‡Kv¤úvbxi mv‡_ _vKvi Rb¨ m¯§vwbZ ‡kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i cl©` Gi c¶ ‡_‡K ab¨ev` Ávcb KiwQ Ges web‡qi mv‡_ 
AeMZ KiwQ ‡h 2021Bs mv‡j ‡Kv¤úvbx 192,126,223 UvKv gybvdv AR©b K‡i Ges BwcGm AR©b K‡i 3.23 UvKv| cl©` 2021Bs mv‡ji 
Rb¨ 18% bM` jf¨vsk cÖ`v‡bi mycvwik Ki‡Z ‡c‡i Avbw›`Z|

wek¦ A_©bxwZ:
wek¦ A_©bxwZ AvDUjyK c~e©vfvm Abyhvqx ˆewk¦K cÖe„w× 2021 mv‡ji cÖv°vwjK wQj 6.0  kZvsk hv 2020 mv‡jwQ‡jv 4.9 kZvsk | wek¦e¨vcx 
†KvwfW-19 Gi Kvi‡b 2021 mv‡ji gvSvgvwS †bwZevPK cÖfve c‡i hv cÖZ¨vwkZ wQj| 2022 mv‡j ‰ewk¦K cÖe„w× 4.4  kZvsk Abygvb Kiv 
n‡q‡Q| mvgwMÖKfv‡e †KvwfW-19 Gi Kvi‡b 2021 mv‡ji wRwWwc Abyhvqx 2022 mv‡j 6.5 kZvsk K‡g‡Q| we‡kl K‡i Kg DcvR©bkxj 
gvby‡li Rb¨ GwU gvivZ¥K AvKvi avib K‡i‡Q hv `vwi`ª `~ixKi‡b evuav n‡q `vuwo‡q‡Q|

evsjv‡`k A_©bxwZ
‡KvwfW cwiw¯’wZ m‡Z¡I evsjv‡`‡ki wRwWwc cÖe„w×i nvi5.47 kZvsk Ae¯’vb Ki‡Q| evsjv‡`‡ki A_©bxwZ 8.15 kZvsk e„w× †c‡q‡Q| 
wRwWwc cÖe„w×i nvi 2020-21 A_© eQ‡i wQj 6.9  kZvsk cÿvšÍ‡i 2019-20 A_© eQ‡i wQj 8.15 kZvsk| gv_vwcQz Avq MZ A_© eQ‡i 
wQj 2824 gvwK©b Wjvi cÿvšÍ‡i 2019-20 A_© eQ‡i wQj 2064 gvwK©b Wjvi| weweGm Gi Z_¨ Abyhvqx wkí Lv‡Z MZ A_© eQ‡i cÖe„w× 
wQj 10.29 kZvsk cÿvšÍ‡i 2019-20 A_© eQ‡i wQj 6.68 kZvsk| †mev Lv‡Z MZ A_© eQ‡i 5.73 kZvsk e„w× †c‡q‡Q hv 2019-20 
A_© eQ‡i wQj 3.93 kZvsk| K…wlLv‡Z MZ A_© eQ‡i 3.17 kZvsk n‡q‡Q hv 2019-20 A_© eQ‡i wQj 3.42 kZvsk weweGm Z_¨g‡Z MZ 
A_©eQ‡i wewb‡qvM AbycvZ wQj 31.02 kZvsk hv 2019-20 A_© eQ‡i wQj 31.31 kZvsk|

evsjv‡`‡ki exgv wkí
evsjv‡`‡ki exgv wkí LyeB cÖwZ‡hvwMZvg~jK| miKvi Ges exgv Dbœqb I wbqš¿Y KZ©„cÿ mw¤§wjZfv‡e exgv wk‡íi Dbœq‡b Ae`vb ivL‡Q| 
miKvi Ges exgv Dbœqb I wbqš¿Y KZ©„cÿ exgv wk‡íi Dbœq‡b KwZcq c`‡ÿc wb‡q‡Q| miKvi BwZg‡a¨ 1jv gvP© ZvwiL‡K RvZxq exgv 
w`em wn‡m‡e †Nvlbv K‡i‡Q| exgv AvBb 2010 ev¯Íevq‡bi Rb¨ wbqš¿YKvix KZ©„cÿ wewfbœ wb‡`©kbv w`‡”Q| evsjv‡`k BÝy¨‡iÝ G‡mvwm‡qkb  
AvšÍwiKfv‡e exgv †Kv¤úvbx¸‡jv‡K AvBb Kvbyb I wewa weavb †g‡b Pjvi e¨vcv‡i wbqwgZfv‡e wb‡`©kbv cÖ`vb Ki‡Q|  exgv †Kv¤úvbx¸‡jv‡K 
`ÿZvi mv‡_ †Kv¤úvbx  cwiPvjbvi Rb¨ `vwqZ¡ wb‡Z n‡e| mvavib exgv e¨emv µgvš^‡q evo‡Q| ‡`‡ki mvavib exgv Lv‡Z †gvU wcÖwgqvg 
Avq 2021 mv‡j wQj 46,868.53 wgwjqb UvKv cÿvšÍ‡i 2020 mv‡j wQj 47, 115.71 wgwjqb UvKv |

2021 mv‡ji exgv e¨emv
evsjv‡`k b¨vkbvj BÝy¨‡iÝ †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡U‡Wi 2021Bs mv‡ji †gvU wcÖwgqvg Avq 870.26  wgwjqb UvKv Gi wecix‡Z 2020Bs mv‡j 
†gvU wcÖwgqvg Avq wQj 563.46  wgwjqb UvKv| MZ eQ‡ii Zzjbvq 54.45 kZvsk cÖe„w× cÖ`k©b K‡i|

cb¨ wfw³K e¨emvwqK mdjZv
AwMœ exgv e¨emv:
‡Kv¤úvbx cÖZ¨¶ AwMœ exgv e¨emv ‡_‡K 2021Bs mv‡j ‡gvU wcÖwgqvg Avq 279.54 wgwjqb UvKv Gi wecix‡Z 2020Bs mv‡j Avq wQj 
209.47 wgwjqb UvKv|MZ eQ‡ii Zzjbvq 33.45 kZvsk cÖe„w× cÖ`k©b K‡i|‡Kv¤úvbx AewjLb gybvdv nq0.77  wgwjqbUvKv|

‡bŠ exgv e¨emv:
‡bŠ exgv e¨emv ‡_‡K ‡Kv¤úvbxi ‡gvU wcÖwgqvg Avq 2021Bs mv‡j 343.06  wgwjqb UvKv Ges 2020Bs mv‡j wQj 190.44 wgwjqb 
UvKv|MZ eQ‡ii Zzjbvq 80 kZvsk cÖe„w× cÖ`k©b K‡i|‡Kv¤úvbx ‡bŠ exgv e¨emv ‡_‡K AewjLb gybvdv K‡i 58.08 wgwjqb UvKv|

‡gvUi exgv e¨emv:
‡gvUi exgv e¨emv ‡_‡K 2021Bs mv‡j ‡gvU Avq n‡q‡Q 120.25 wgwjqb UvKvGes 2020Bs mv‡j wQj 100.08 wgwjqbUvKv|MZ eQ‡ii 
Zzjbvq 21.15 kZvsk cÖe„w× cÖ`k©b K‡i|‡gvUi exgv e¨emv ‡_‡K jvf n‡q‡Q 64.99 wgwjqb UvKv|
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wewea exgv e¨emv:
wewea exgv e¨emv ‡_‡K 2021Bs mv‡j ‡gvU Avq n‡q‡Q 127.42 wgwjqb UvKvGes 2020Bs mv‡j wQj 63.47 wgwjqbUvKv|MZ eQ‡ii 
Zzjbvq 100.96 kZvsk cÖe„w× cÖ`k©b K‡i|wewea exgv e¨emv 2021Bs mv‡j jvf n‡q‡Q 9.26 wgwjqb UvKv|

wewb‡qvM ‡_‡K Avq:
wewfbœ e¨vsK I Avw_©K cÖwZôv‡b Mw”QZ wewb‡qvM ‡_‡K 2021Bs mv‡ji gybvdv 74.12 wgwjqb UvKv Ges 2020Bs mv‡j wQj 71.35 wgwjqb 
UvKv|

wWwf‡W›U Lv‡Z Avq:
2021Bs mv‡ji wWwf‡W›U Lv‡Z Avq n‡q‡Q 2.12 wgwjqb UvKv|

fvov †_‡K Avq:
2021Bs mv‡j fvov Lv‡Z Avq 1.78 wgwjqb UvKv|

e›Ub‡hvM¨ gybvdv:
Avgiv AZ¨šÍ Avb‡›`i mv‡_ Rvbvw”Q ‡h, Kvh©‡cv‡hvMx AewjLb, wecYb Ges h_vh_ ‡cvU©‡dvwjI Bm¨y I wbLyZ cybt-exgv cÖwµqvi AbymiY 
Kivi cvkvcwk Kvh©Ki Z`viwKi gva¨‡g Avgiv 2021 mv‡j Kvw•LZ Avw_©K mvdj¨ AR©b Ki‡Z m¶g n‡qwQ| ‡Kv¤úvbxi Avw_©K w`K 
we‡ePbv K‡i I ‡kqvi ‡nvìvi‡`i ¯^v_© msi¶‡Y `xN©‡gqv`x cwiKíbvi Av‡jv‡K cwiPvjKe„›` 2021 mv‡j Ki cieZ©x wb¤œwjwLZ mycvwik 
mg~n cÖ`vb K‡i‡Qb:

Kó Ae ¸Wm ‡mvì Ges gybvdv AR©b:
evsjv‡`k b¨vkbvj BÝ¨y‡iÝ ‡Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡UW GKwU bb-jvBd BÝ¨y‡iÝ ‡Kv¤úvbx ‡h Kvi‡b Kó Ae ¸Wm ‡mvì G‡¶‡G c«‡hv‡R¨ bq| 
Ab¨ w`‡K ‡Kv¤úvbxi gybvdv AR©b we‡kl A_© enb K‡iGes 2021Bs mv‡j 192,126,223  UvKv gybvdv AR©b K‡i|

exgv `vex:
2021Bs mv‡j ‡Kv¤úvbx ‡bU 149.46  wgwjqb UvKvi exgv `vwe wb®úwË K‡i‡Q | m¤§vwbZ MÖvnK‡`i `vwe c~i‡b ‡Kv¤úvbx me©`vB AZ¨šÍ 
AvšÍwiK I hZœkxj|

A¯^vfvweK nVvr gybvdv AR©b ev ¶wZ:
2021Bs mv‡j Giæc ‡Kv‡bv nVvr gybvdv AR©b ev ¶wZ nqwb|

†ewmm Ae wi‡jwUf cvwU© Uªvb‡RKkb:
AvšÍRv©wZK GKvDbwUs ÷vÛvW© - 24 Òwi‡j‡UW cvwU© wWm‡KøvRvi AbyhvqxÓ 36 G wi‡jwUW cvwU© Uªvb‡RKkb cÖ`k©b Kiv n‡q‡Q|

cwiPvjK‡`i m¤§vbx (¯^Zš¿ cwiPvjKmn):
cwiPvjKMb cl©` wgwUs Gi Dcw¯’wZi Rb¨ exgv Dbœqb I wbqš¿b KZ…©cÿ KZ…K wba©vwiZ m¤§vbx e¨vZxZ Ab¨ ‡Kvb cÖKvi ‡eZb ev m¤§vbx 
fvZv ‡`qv nq bv| ‡m Abyhvqx 2021Bs mv‡j cl©` wgwUs m¤§vbx cÖ`vb Kiv nq|

a) The Un-appropriated Profit Carry forward from previous Year 2021                  106,761,654

b) The Un-appropriated Profit for Current Year 2021                                               192,126,223

c) Adjustment for the application of IFRS-16(Lease)                                                               (882,516)

d) Deferred Tax Expenses                                                                                                           (1,517,150)

e) Total Fund Available for Appropriation                                                                              296,488,212

f) Reserve for Exceptional Losses                                                                                             58,663,142

g) Provision for Taxes                                                                                                           47,581,037

h) Dividend Paid                                                                                                                         66,375,000

i) Balance transferred to retained earnings                                                              123,869,033
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K‡c©v‡iU Ges Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`b:
weGmBwm ‡bvwUwd‡Kkb # GmBwm/ wmGgAviAviwmwW/2006-158/207/GWwgb/80 ZvwiL 03 Ryb 2018 Abyhvqx cl©` Avw_©K 
cÖwZ‡e`‡bi ‡¶‡Î wb‡gv³ welq¸‡jv cwicvjb weavq wbwðZ K‡ib t

 evsjv‡`k b¨vkbvj BÝ ÿ‡iÝ ‡Kv¤úvwbi g¨v‡bR‡g›U KwgwU Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`b ‰Zwi K‡i‡Q Ges G c«wZ‡e`b mg~n ‡Kv¤úvbxi Avw_©KAe ’̄v,
 mgvß eQ‡ii Kvh©µ‡gi djvdj Ges bM` A_© cÖev‡ni myôy cÖwZdjb K‡i|
 ‡Kv¤úvbxi wnmve ewnmg~n mwVKfv‡e msiw¶Z n‡q‡Q|
 Avw_©K weeibxmg~n ‰Zwi‡Z mwVK wnmve bxwZgvjvmg~n h_vh_fv‡e cÖ‡qvM Kiv n‡q‡Q|
 evsjv‡`‡k cÖ‡hvR¨ AvšÍR©vwZK wnmvegvb Abyhvqx Avw_©K weeibxmg~n cª¯‘Z Kiv n‡q‡Q|
 Af¨šÍixb wbqš¿b e¨e¯’v my`…pfv‡e cÖbxZ Ges hvi cÖ‡qvM Ges ch©‡e¶b AZxe Kvh©Ki|
 Pjgvb cÖwZôvb wnmv‡e ‡Kv¤úvbxi ¯^¶gZvq we›`ygvÎ ‡Kvb m‡›`n ‡bB|

MZ eQ‡ii gybvdvi Zyjbvg~jK cv_©K¨:
‡Kv¤úvbx 2021Bs mv‡j 192.13 wgwjqb UvKv gybvdv AR©b K‡i| 2020Bs mv‡j gybvdv AR©b K‡i 151.58 wgwjqb UvKv| GwU cÖwZqgvb 
nq ‡h, 2020Bs mv‡ji Zyjbvq 2021Bs mv‡j Zyjbvg~jK gybvdv e„w× ‡c‡q‡Q|‡Kv¤úvwbi †bU Acv‡iwUs K¨vk †d¬v 2021 mv‡j †kqvi cÖwZ 
9.67 UvKv Ges 2020 mv‡j 5.19 UvKv, wcÖwgqvg GesAb¨vb¨ Avq e„w× cvq Ges `vex cwi‡kva, e¨e¯’vcbv e¨q Ges cybtexgv ZzjbvgyjK 
e¨q n«vm †c‡q‡Q|

Avw_©K Z_¨:
MZ cvuP eQ‡ii Avw_©K Z_¨ GB evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`‡b mshy³ Kiv n‡q‡Q|

jf¨vsk:
cwiPvjbv cl©` 2021Bs mv‡ji Rb¨ 18 kZvsk jf¨vsk ‡Nvlbv K‡i‡Q| 

‡µwWU ‡iwUs:
evsjv‡`k b¨vkbvj BÝ¨y‡iÝ ‡Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡U‡Wi 2021-2022Bs mv‡ji ‡µwWU ‡iwUs K‡i BgviwRs ‡µwWU ‡iwUs wjwg‡UW Ges Zv‡`i 
‡iwUs Abyhvqx ‡Kv¤úvbx GG ‡iwUs ‡c‡q‡Q| GB ‡iwUs ‡Kv¤úvbxi m‡šÍvlRbK Avw_©K e¨e¯’vcbv, Avw_©K ¯^”QjZv, Zvi‡j¨i cÖevn BZ¨vw` 
cÖ`©kb K‡i|

SyuwK e¨e¯’vcbv:
‡Kv¤úvbx memgq BÝ¨y‡iÝ e¨emv‡qi SyuwK wb‡q mRvM _v‡K| SyuwK‡K mnbxq ch©v‡q ivLvi Rb¨, ‡Kv¤úvbx memgq SyuwK wbimb I ch©‡e¶b 
K‡i Ges ‡m Abyhvqx Z_¨ msMÖn K‡i Ges ‡m fv‡e Kg©KvÛ cwiPvjbv K‡i hv‡Z ‡kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i ¯^v_© i¶v cvq|
cl©` wgwUs:

2021Bs mv‡j me©©©‡gvU cuvPwU cl©` wgwUs AbywôZ nq| ‡m Abyhvqx cl©` wgwUs G cwiPvjK‡`i Dcw¯’wZi weeib GB evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`‡b 
wjwce× Kiv Av‡Q|

‡kqvi avib Ae¯’v:
weGmBwm ‡bvwUwd‡Kkb # GmBwm/wmGgAviwAviwmwW/2006/158/207/GWwgb/80 ZvwiL 03 Ryb 2018 Gi K¬R 1.5 Abyhvqx 
‡Kv¤úvbxi ‡kqvi avib Ae¯’v GB evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`‡b wjwce× Kiv Av‡Q|
cwiPvjK‡`i Aemi MÖnb Ges cybt wb‡qvMt

cwiPvjK‡`i Aemi MÖnb Ges cybt wb‡qvMt
MÖæc - Gt
‡Kv¤úvbxi AvwU©‡Kj Ae G‡mvwm‡qkb Gi weavb Abyhvqx wb‡¤§v³ cwiPvjKMY 27 Ryb, 2022Bs Zvwi‡L Aemi MÖnbc~e©K cybt wb‡qvM 
nIqvi †hvM¨Zv AR©b K‡i‡Qb|
1| Rbve Avãyi iDd
2| Rbvev Zvnwgbv web‡Z †gv¯Ídv 
3| Rbvev ZvbwRgv web‡Z †gv¯Ídv 
4| Rbve Zvbfxi Avn‡g` †gv¯Ídv 
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MÖæc - wet
‡Kv¤úvbxi AvwU©‡Kj Ae G‡mvwm‡qkb Gi weavb Abyhvqx wb‡¤§v³ cwiPvjKMY 27 Ryb, 2022Bs Zvwi‡L Aemi MÖnbc~e©K cybt wb‡qvM 
nIqvi †hvM¨Zv AR©b K‡i‡Qb|
1| Rbve Avãyj ev‡Zb
2| Rbve bvwmi DwÏb

exgv wewagvjv 1958 Abyhvqx cvewjK cwiPvjK evwl©K mvavib mfvq wbev©wPZ n‡eb| G †cÖwÿ‡Z wbe©vPb Abyôv‡bi weÁwß GKwU evsjv I 
GKwU Bs‡iRx cwÎKvq 28 GwcÖj, 2022Bs Zvwi‡L cÖKvwkZ n‡q‡Q|

m¦vaxb cwiPvjK t
2018 mv‡ji Ryb gv‡m Øviv Rvwi Kiv K‡c©v‡iU Mf‡b©Ý †KvW Abymv‡i, evsjv‡`k b¨vkbvj BÝy¨‡iÝ †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW Zvi †ev‡W©i AvKvi 
cybM©Vb K‡i‡QGes cÖ‡qvRbxq msL¨K wewkó Ges AwfÁ e¨w³‡`i †ev‡W© ¯^vaxb cwiPvjK wnmv‡e wb‡qvM K‡i‡Q| 

†gvt AvjgMxi †nv‡mb Lvb GdwmGgG Ges gbRyi †gvt mvBdzj AvRg GdwmGgG Ges e¨vwióvi nvmvb ivRxe cÖav‡bi wb‡qv‡Mi Rb¨ 
†Kv¤úvbxwU evwl©K mvavib mfvq m¤§vwbZ †kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i Aby‡gv`b Pvq|

wewae× AwWUi wb‡qvMt
cwiPvjbv cl©` †gmvm©  ingvb †gv¯Ídv Avjg GÛ †Kvs PvUvW© GKvD‡›U›Um‡K 2022Bs mv‡ji Rb¨ AwWUi wn‡m‡e 26Zg evwl©K mvavib 
mfvq Aby‡gv`b mv‡c‡ÿ wb‡qvM †`Iqv n‡e|

Kgcøv‡qÝ AwWUi wb‡qvMt
K‡c©v‡iU Mf‡b©m †KvW bs weGmBwm/wmGgAviAviwmwW/2006-158/207/cÖkvmb/80 ZvwiL 3 Ryb, 2018 Gi  weavb Abyhvqx cwiPvjbv 
cl©` ‡gmv©m G nK GÛ †Kvs PvUvW© GKvD‡›U›Um ‡K 2022 mv‡ji Rb¨ Kgcøv‡qÝ AwWUi wn‡m‡e 26Zg  evwl©K mvavib mfvq Aby‡gv`b 
mv‡c‡ÿ wb‡qvM †`Iqv n‡e|

K…ZÁZv ¯^xKvi:
mK‡ji mn‡hvMxZv Ges my-civg‡k©i Rb¨ Avgiv K…ZÁZv cÖKvk Kwi| mfvq AskMÖnbKvix m¤§vwbZ ‡kqvi ‡nvìvi e…›`, ïfvbya¨vqx, A_© 
gš¿Yvjq, evwbwR¨K e¨vsK Ges Avw_©K cÖwZôvb, evsjv‡`k e¨vsK, evsjv‡`k wmwKDwiwUR GÛ G·‡PÄ Kwgkb, XvKv ÷K G·‡PÄ wjwg‡UW 
Ges wPUvMvs ÷K G·‡PÄ wjwg‡UW, exgv Dbœqb I wbqš¿b KZ©…c¶, evsjv‡`k BÝ¨y‡iÝ GKv‡Wgx, ‡iwRóªvi Ae R‡q›U ÷K ‡Kv¤úvbxR GÛ 
dvg©m ‡K K…ZÁZv RvbvB| Avgiv Av‡iv K…ZÁZv RvbvB Avgv‡`i mKj Kg©KZ©v I Kg©Pvix‡`i hv‡`i `¶Zv I Kg©Kv‡Ûi gva¨‡g ‡Kv¤úvbx 
Zvi Ae¯’vb a‡i ‡i‡L‡Q|

ab¨ev`v‡šÍ

‡gv¯Ídv Kvgvj
‡Pqvig¨vb
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SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE

   Amount in Taka

Particulars 2021 2020

Authorized capital:
100,000,000 ordinary share of Tk.10 each 1000,000,000  1,000,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital:
44,250,000 ordinary shares of Tk.10 each 442,500,000  442,500,000

 

 

Composition of the shareholding as on 31 December 2021

Shareholdings Number of shares Percentage of paid
   up capital

Directors and sponsors shareholders 266,088,200 60.13%
Government 00.00 00.00%
Institute 77,451,660 17.50%
Foreign 378,650 0.09%
Public 98,581,490 22.28%
Total 44,250,000 100.00

Shareholding structure of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited as on December 31, 2021 is as follows:

Book Value Per Share Earning Per Share
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim

Dear Respected Shareholders – Assalamu Alaikum.

I feel honored and privileged to have the opportunity to present the audited financial statements and operating 
performance of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited for the year 2021. I would like to express my humble 
gratitude to almighty Allah for his blessing to present Annual Report of the company since 2013. The company has 
completed another remarkable year of its journey towards services excellence and we have made significant 
advancement in our excellent performances.

During our 26 years of journey of our company has become possible only because of the regular guidance and 
co-operation of our respected members of the Board of Directors, shareholders, valued clients and well wishers. I 
cordially thank you all from the core of my heart for your contribution, guidance and support towards the growth of 
Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited.

The Bangladesh economy secured her GDP growth 6.9% in FY 2020-2021 against GDP growth 7.2% in FY 2019-2020 
which is well above the global economic growth. The per capita income is increasing day by day which is very positive 
sign of our National Economy. As per latest BSB report Bangladesh per capita income is 2824 USD. The contribution of 
insurance sector to National GDP is not upto the mark. Our initiative remains to improve the situation with help of IDRA.

Inspite of many challenges specially COVID-19, your company able to make net profit before tax Tk. 192.13 million and 
Board of Directors recommended 18% cash dividend for the year 2021. If your faith and support remain with us, we 
hope that in future we can also be able to declare more dividend.

In 2021 our gross premium income stood at Tk. 870.26 million and 2020 was Tk. 563.46 million which representing a 
growth of 54.45%. The total assets of the company stood Tk. 2004.42 million as at 31 December, 2021 showing a 
growth of 26.45% comparing with the last year.

Our credit rating status is AA (pronounced as double A) by Emerging Credit Rating Limited (ECRL) which reflects our 
good financial strength and claim paying ability.

On the other hand, we believe that strong internal database system is very much essential for continuous growth of 
the company. Keeping that in mind, we were established branch wise computer network system with software that can 
provide information promptly as per business requirement. Continuous development in IT infrastructures is also one of 
our core objectives.

I am very much optimistic that  Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited will go forward by our collective 
efforts and active support and guidance of our Board of Directors and shareholders. I believe that the year 2021 will 
be more vibrant and fruitful year for Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited.

In conclusion, on behalf of the management of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited, I would like to 
express my heartfelt gratitude to our shareholders, stakeholders, Insurance Development & Regulatory Authority 
(IDRA) Bangladesh Bank, All commercial Banks, Leasing Companies, Bangladesh Insurance Association, Bangladesh 
Insurance Academy, Sadharan Bima Corporation, Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission, Dhaka and 
Chittagong stock Exchange Limited, our co-insurers for the support they have been rendering to us for a long time.

Allah Hafez

Mohammad Sana Ullah
Chief Executive Officer



Annual Report - 44

g~L¨ wbe©vnx Kg©KZ©v g‡nv`‡qi e³e¨
wemwgjøvwni ivngvwbi ivwng

m¤§vwbZ †kqvi †nvìvie„›`-Avmmvjvgy AvjvBKzg

evsjv‡`k b¨vkbvj BÝy¨‡iÝ †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW Gi 2021 mv‡ji wbixwÿZ Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`b Gi cwiPvjbv Kvh©µg Dc¯’vcb Ki‡Z †c‡i 
wb‡R‡K m¤§vwbZ  g‡b KiwQ| 2013 mvj †_‡K evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`b Zz‡j aivi Rb¨ me©kw³gvb Avjøvni wbKU ïKwiqv Av`vq KiwQ| m‡e©vËg 
†mev Ges DrK…ó Kvh©K‡ii gva¨‡g †Kv¤úvbx Zvi AviI GKwU mdj eQi cvi Kij|

`xN© 26 eQ‡ii c_ cwiµgv m¤¢e n‡q‡Q cwiPvjbv cl©`, †kqvi †nvìvi, g~j¨evb MÖvnK Ges ïfvKvÿx‡`i mwVK wb‡`©kbv Ges mn‡hvwMZvi 
Kvi‡b|  evsjv‡`k b¨vkbvj BÝy¨‡iÝ †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW I Gi Dbœq‡b Ae`vb ivLevi Rb¨ Avcbv‡`i mevB‡K AšÍ‡ii AšÍt¯’j †_‡K ab¨ev` 
Rvbvw”Q|

evsjv‡`k A_©bxwZ cÖe„w×i nvi 2020-2021 A_© eQ‡i 6.9 kZvsk hv 2019-2020 A_©eQ‡i wQj 7.2 kZvsk hv wek¦ A_©bxwZ‡Z BwZevPK 
w`K| gv_v wcQz Avq w`b w`b evo‡Q hv RvZxq A_©bxwZi GKwU BwZevPK w`K| weGmwe cÖwZ‡e`b Abyhvqx gv_vwcQz Avq 2824 Wjvi| 
RvZxq A_©bxwZ‡Z exgv †m±‡ii Ae`vb GL‡bv KvswLZ gvÎvq †cŠQvqwb| exgv Dbœqb I wbqš¿Y KZ…©c‡ÿi c„ó‡cvlKZvq Avgv‡`i †Póv 
Ae¨vnZ Av‡Q|

A‡bK evav wecwË we‡kl K‡i ‡KvwfW-19 m‡Z¡I †Kv¤úvbx 2021 mv‡j 192.13 wgwjqb UvKv Ki c~e© gybvdv AR©b K‡i‡Q| †m mv‡_ 
cl©`18% bM` jf¨vsk †Nvlbv K‡i‡Q| Avgiv hw` me mgq Avcbv‡`i Av¯’v I mn‡hvwMZv cvB, Zvn‡j fwel¨‡ZI Av‡iv †ekx jf¨vsk 
†Nvlbv Ki‡Z cvie|

2021 mv‡j †gvU wcÖwgqvg Avq `vwo‡q‡Q 870.26 wgwjqb UvKv Ges 2020 mv‡j wQ‡jv 563.46 wgwjqb UvKv hv 54.45 kZvsk cÖe„w× 
cÖ`k©b K‡i| 2021 mv‡ji †k‡l ‡gvU m¤ú` `vuwo‡q‡Q 2004.42 wgwjqb UvKv hv MZ eQ‡ii Zzjbvq 26.45 kZvsk cÖe„w× cÖ`k©b K‡i|

‡Kv¤úvbxi †µwWU †iwUs Ae¯’vb nj ÒGGÓ, hv †Kv¤úvbxi fv‡jv Avw_©K wfwË Ges exgv `vex cÖ`v‡bi Avw_©K ¯^ÿgZv cÖKvk K‡i| Ab¨w`‡K, 
Avgiv wek¦vm Kwi †h, †Kv¤úvbxi MwZgq Dbœq‡bi Rb¨ cÖ‡qvRb GKwU k³ Af¨šÍixY Z_¨ fvÛvi, †m w`K we‡ePbv K‡i, Avgiv mKj kvLv 
Awdm¸‡jv‡K AbjvBb †bUIqvK© wm‡÷g Gi AvIZvq G‡bwQ| hvi d‡j GLb AwZ mn‡R †h †Kvb e¨emvwqK Z_¨ cvIqv m¤¢e n‡”Q|

Avwg LyeB Avkvevw` †h, evsjv‡`k b¨vkbvj BÝy¨‡iÝ †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW   cwiPvjbv cl©` Gi †kqvi †nvìvi‡`i mn‡hvwMZv, mwVK wb‡`©kbvi 
d‡j GKwU mwVK j‡ÿ¨ †cŠQv‡e| Avwg wek¦vm Kwi †h, 2022 mvj n‡e evsjv‡`k b¨vkbvj BÝy¨‡iÝ †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW Gi Rb¨ GKwU 
cÖwZaŸwbkxj I A_©en GKwU eQi|

me©‡k‡l evsjv‡`k b¨vkbvj BÝy¨‡iÝ †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW e¨e¯’vcbv KZ…©cÿ †_‡K AvšÍwiK ab¨ev` RvbvB mKj †kqvi‡nvìvi, ‡÷K †nvìvi, 
exgv Dbœqb I wbqš¿Y KZ©„cÿ (AvBwWAviG), evsjv‡`k e¨vsK, mKj evwbwR¨K e¨vsK, wjwRs †Kv¤úvbx, evsjv‡`k BÝy¨‡iÝ G‡mvwm‡qmÝ, 
evsjv‡`k BÝy¨‡iÝ GKv‡Wwg, mvavib exgv K‡c©v‡ikb, evsjv‡`k wmwKDwiwUR GÛ G·‡PÄ Kwgkb, XvKv I wPUvMs ÷K G·‡PÄ wjwg‡UW, 
†iwR÷ªvi Ae R‡q›U ÷K †Kv¤úvbxR GÛ dvg©m †K hv‡`i mvwe©K mn‡hvwMZvi Rb¨ Avgiv Avgv‡`i GB MšÍ‡e¨ †cŠuQv‡Z †c‡iwQ| 

Avjøvn nv‡dR

‡gvnv¤§` mvbv Djøvn
g~L¨ wbe©vnx Kg©KZ©v
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Corporate governance is the mechanisms, processes and relations by which corporations are controlled and directed. 
Governance structures and principles identify the distribution of rights and responsibilities among different participants 
in the corporation such as the board of directors, managers, shareholders, creditors, auditors, regulators, and other 
stakeholders. It also includes the rules and procedures for making decisions in corporate affairs. Corporate governance 
includes the processes through which company’s objectives are set and pursued in the context of the social, regulatory 
and market environment. Governance mechanisms include monitoring the actions, policies, practices, and decisions of 
corporations, their agents, and affected stakeholders. Corporate governance practices are affected by attempts to align 
the interests of stakeholders.

Compliance of corporate governance
Pursuant to BSEC Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03 June 2018, the Board of Directors 
of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited is responsible to company’s shareholders for the policies and their 
implementation, activities regarding the effective corporate governance practices in the company. Implementation and 
improvement in the corporate governance is a continuous process. Keeping that in mind the Board is marching ahead 
with the formulation and implementation of clear structure and accountabilities supported by well understandable 
policies in the company.

Composition of the Board
The Board of Directors of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited composed of 19 Directors where 15 are 
Directors 4 are Independent Directors having highly professionalism in insurance area and other also. A brief profile of 
the directors is also presented in this annual report. The Board also considers that its composition carries a suitable 
sense of equilibrium of experience and expertise in following the corporate governance in the company.

Responsibilities of the Board
The Board of Directors of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited composed of 19 Directors where 15 are 
Directors 4 are Independent Directors having highly professionalism in insurance area and other also. A brief profile of 
the directors is also presented in this annual report. The Board also considers that its composition carries a suitable 
sense of equilibrium of experience and expertise in following the corporate governance in the company.
The objects of the company are defined in the Memorandum of Association and regulations are laid out in the Articles 
of Association.

The board of directors' key purpose is to ensure the company's prosperity by collectively directing the company's affairs, 
whilst meeting the appropriate interests of its shareholders and stakeholders. In addition to business and financial 
issues, boards of directors must deal with challenges and issues relating to corporate governance, corporate social 
responsibility and corporate ethics. Thus the responsibilities of the BNICL are as follows:

Determination of strategic mission/vision of the company.

Fixation of business goal, growth and excellence on annual basis.

Establish, observe and evaluate the policies, planning, management performance criteria.

Discussion regarding change/extension/modification/up-to-date of policies.

Regular review of the operational success and failure and point out the reason for failure.

The delegation of authority has been fully supervised through close supervision in different issues

Approval and monitor timely completion of all annual budget, capital expenditure and statutory reports of the 
company.

Review on regular basis the financial statements, overdue situation, financial performance, provisioning, capital 
adequacy and legal steps against the default cases.

company.

Review on regular basis the financial statements, overdue situation, financial performance, provisioning, capital 
adequacy and legal steps against the default cases.

company.

Review on regular basis the financial statements, overdue situation, financial performance, provisioning, capital 
adequacy and legal steps against the default cases.

company.
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 Policy regarding purchase.
 Decision regarding purchase of land, building, vehicle.
 Evaluation of proposal which requires Board approval and/or suggestions.
 Appointment of CEO and increase of remuneration under approval of Insurance Development and Regulatory   
 Authority (IDRA).
 Ensuring the necessary skills and experience of the senior management team, to perform their responsibilities, 
 functions effectively, in the best interest of the company.
 Formation of different committees.
 Review of the reports of external auditor, Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) and audit  com 
 mittee. Any other activities as required beneficial for the company.

Board meeting
During the period under review, 5 number of Board meeting held in the head office of the Bangladesh National Insurance 
Company Limited. Meetings are scheduled with consent of the Chairman of the Board and the Company Secretary gives 
the notice of each Board meeting in writing to each Director.

Independent Directors
In compliance with BSEC notification # SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03 June 2018, four Independent 
Directors are appointed in the Board of directors of the Company. In terms of their experience and education, they are 
highly qualified to perform the duties of Independent Directors.

The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the company are different bodies and their duties & responsibilities 
are separated as mentioned in the Articles of Association of the company. The Chairman is the Non Executive Director 
and Managing Director is performed as Executive Director. The Chairman ensures to comply the policy of the company 
through the Board and the Managing Director confirmed to the Board about the implementation of the policy with the 
support of the management team.

The Executive Committee
The Board of Directors formed the Executive Committee as a subcommittee of the Board to works in line with the 
policies and guidelines approved by the Board and in requirement of smooth operation of the company. The committee 
is composed of as follows:

Name of Directors Executive Committee
Mostafa Kamal Chairman
Beauty Akter Member
Taif Bin Yousuf Member
Tahmina Binthe Mostafa Member
Tanjima Binthe Mostafa Member

Name of Directors Audit Committee
Md.Alamgir Hossain Khan, FCMA Chairman
Yousuf Ali Member
Tanjima Binthe Mostafa Member

Name of Directors Nomination & Remuneration committee
Prof. Dr. Mijanur Rahman Chairman
Taif Bin Yousuf Member
Wasikur Rahman Member

Name of Directors Nomination & Remuneration committee
Prof. Dr. Mijanur Rahman Chairman
Taif Bin Yousuf Member
Wasikur Rahman Member

Name of Directors Nomination & Remuneration committee
Prof. Dr. Mijanur Rahman Chairman
Taif Bin Yousuf Member
Wasikur Rahman Member

Name of Directors Nomination & Remuneration committee

Annual Report - 46

Prof. Dr. Mijanur Rahman Chairman
Taif Bin Yousuf Member
Wasikur Rahman Member

Name of Directors Nomination & Remuneration committee
Prof. Dr. Mijanur Rahman Chairman
Taif Bin Yousuf Member
Wasikur Rahman Member

Name of Directors Nomination & Remuneration committeeName of Directors Nomination & Remuneration committeeName of Directors Nomination & Remuneration committee
Prof. Dr. Mijanur Rahman Chairman
Taif Bin Yousuf Member
Wasikur Rahman Member



Annual Report - 47

During the year 2021, four meetings were held by the Board Audit Committee. Functions and responsibilities of the
Committee are as under:
 Examine any matter relating to the financial and other connected to the company.
 Review all internal & external Audit of the company
 Review the efficiency of internal control systems and procedures.
 Review the quality of Accounting Policies to statutory and regulatory compliance.
 Ensure that a well managed sound financial reporting system is in place within the company
 Review the quarterly financial statement and annual financial statements Review all the disclosures are presented 
 in the financial statements etc.

Claim Committee:
The claim committee is constituted with Seven members. The committee ensures and monitors the proper management 
of the claim related issues. The committee's main responsibility is to investigate and approve any claim that exceeds 
BDT 0.50 million. The insured are given the loss voucher on the approved claim amount and after everything if finalized, 
cheque is being issued to the insured. The claim are approved and settled on its claim merit with a time limit of 90 days 
upon receiving all of the relevant documents.

Internal Control Committee:
The Company's internal committee formed by board with seven members. Entire internal control has been monitored 
by the committee. The committee meets at least once in a month to explore the day-to-day development and also 
recommend and record their findings for further decision/approval and its implementation. Decisions are taken collectively 
to further enhance the expertise in the best interest of the members in serving the needs of its clients.

Underwriting Team
The team is responsible for dealing all the issues regarding the underwriting of the risk of specific policyholders. This 
team consists of headed by Asstt. Managing Director, Head of Under writing and Branch control Department, has more 
than 36 years of experience on underwriting process. Officers and staffs on underwriting department have more than 
seventeen years of working experience. All of them have participated in elementary course of under writing and special-
ized underwriting

Investment Team
The Investment team comprises five experienced and qualified members. This committee assists the board through 
regular meetings with investment managers in creating, modifying, and monitoring the company investment policy. The 
global financial crisis in 2008 highlighted the Importance of having a dear investment policy as well as a structured and 
disciplined investment process. It also underlined the need for insurance companies to manage their assets relative to 
their liabilities. The application and success of this activity have been a major differentiate across the insurance industry 
in recent years.

Appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Head of the Internal Audit and Company Secretary
In compliance with BSEC notification # SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03 June 2018, and establish a 
good corporate governance, the company appointed Chief Financial Officer, Head of the Internal Audit and Company 
Secretary. They are separate individual and have respective set forth responsibilities.

Internal Control Framework
The Management recognizes its responsibilities to present a balanced and understandable assessment of the 
company’s position and prospect. The management has accountability for reviewing and approving the effectiveness 
of internal controls operated by the company, including financial and operational compliance.

Delegation of authority
The Board of Directors delegated financial and operational powers to the company management and Executive 
Committee with set of guidelines and limits to ensure effective, prompt and growth oriented business. The management 
of BNICL strongly believes that accurate delegation of authority helped a lot the organization which causes betterment 
of the company.

Delegation of authority
The Board of Directors delegated financial and operational powers to the company management and Executive 
Committee with set of guidelines and limits to ensure effective, prompt and growth oriented business. The management 
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Human Resource Management
Non-life (general) insurance Company's success depends on its right, professional skilled human resource towards 
better service and revenue increase. BNICL is practicing proper HR functions through Human resource planning, 
recruitment, selection, training & development. BNICL knows efficient people can change work environment and 
increase the trust of the people. BNICL periodically reviews salary and benefits of the employees; besides this, the 
company has also decided to introduce workers profit participation policy. Like other Insurance company BNICL's also 
having commission based Insurance agent and permanent employee. The company nominates its employees in training 
programs to improve their performance conducted by Bangladesh Insurance Academy (BIA), insurance firm & others.

External auditor
According to The Companies Act, 1994 and the Articles of Association of the company the external auditor of the 
company is appointed by the shareholders in the AGM along with the fee in quantum. The auditor will be selected from 
the panel auditors of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission in this regard.

Financial reporting
According to The Companies Act, 1994, the Board is responsible to prepare the financial statements of the company 
following the applicable accounting standards, rules and regulations etc. The Board is also responsible to present the 
financial statements before the shareholders in the annual general meeting for getting approval. Regarding the financial 
position, the BNICL Board confirms the following:

The company’s financial statements has been prepared in compliance with the International Accounting Standards 
(IAS) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by ICAB, the requirements of The Companies 
Act, 1994, Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and The Financial Institutions Act 1993.

The financial statements represent the fair view of the state of affairs of the company and will enable the 
shareholders and other users to form their independent opinion with reasonable accuracy of the financial position.

Compliance with the requirement of Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited, Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited 
and Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission
In compliance with the requirement of Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE), Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited (CSE) 
and Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission (BSEC) BNICL submitted all type of shareholdings’ reports to the 
BSEC, DSE and CSE on monthly basis. BNICL follows all other compliance of the notifications, orders, rules etc. of BSEC, 
DSE and CSE and especially the Listing Regulations of Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited, 2015 for approval 
of quarterly accounts and publication, declaration of financial performance, publication of price sensitive information, 
fixation of record date, Annual General Meeting, Extra Ordinary General Meeting etc. as a best practice of the corporate 
governance.

Communication with shareholders
All the shareholders have the right to attend the annual general meeting and to express their views on the company’s 
business and financial performances. shareholder may attend annual general meeting virtually by using digital platform 
from any places. If any shareholder is unable to attend the annual general meeting, he may appoint a proxy on his 
behalf. The shareholder can also exchange his ideas and thoughts regarding company’s betterment in future. The 
Chairman and the Directors are always makes them available in the annual general meeting, so that they can also 
exchange their views.

Report On Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
The management of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited believes that besides maximizing the profit of 
the company, every organization should have some responsibilities towards the society as a part of corporate social 
responsibility (CSR). In line with that the company voluntarily contributes to different socio-economics activities for the 
development of the country. To do so, the company shared some part of profit to develop the society in the year 2021.
responsibility (CSR). In line with that the company voluntarily contributes to different socio-economics activities for the 
development of the country. To do so, the company shared some part of profit to develop the society in the year 2021.
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT
(HEAD OFFICE)

Md. Sana Ullah
Managing Director & CEO

S.M. Shafi Ullah
Assistant Managing Director &

Head of U/W & BCD 

SK. Bellal Hossain, FCA
Chief Financial Officer

A.T. M. Malekuzzaman
Head of Claims & Re-Insurance

Md. Ferozul Islam
Senior Executive Vice President (F&A)

Md. Masud Rana
 Senior Vice President  &

Company Secretary (Acting)

Sharmin Akhter
Head of Internal Audit

& Compliance

Md. Ferozul Islam
Senior Executive Vice President (F&A) Senior Vice President 

Company Secretary (Acting)

Md. Masud Rana
Senior Vice President  &

Company Secretary (Acting)

Sharmin Akhter
Head of Internal Audit

& Compliance
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Senior Executive Vice President (F&A)
Md. Ferozul Islam

Senior Executive Vice President (F&A)
Md. Ferozul Islam

Senior Executive Vice President (F&A)
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT
(HEAD OF BRANCH)

 Md. Shakur Elahi Joarder
Deputy Managing Director &

 Head of Gulshan Branch

S. M. Khurshid Alam
Additional Managing Director &

Head of Dilkusha Branch

Md. Masud Rana
Additional Managing Director &

Head of Dilkusha Corporate Branch

Md. Rafiqul Islam
Additional Managing Director &
Head of Khatunganj Branch

Md. Mizanur Rahman Chowdhury
Deputy Managing Director &

Head of  Principal Branch

M. Ruhul Amin Pavel
Deputy Managing Director &

Head of Mirpur Branch

Md. Shahin Sikder
Deputy Managing Director &

Head of DIT Branch

Kazi Mohammad Shafiqul Islam
Additional Managing Director & 

Head of Agrabad Branch 

Nasir Khan
Deputy Managing Director &

Head of Tejgaon Branch
Deputy Managing Director &

Head of Mirpur Branch

Nasir KhanM. Ruhul Amin Pavel
Deputy Managing Director &

Head of Mirpur Branch

Md. Shahin Sikder
Deputy Managing Director &

Head of DIT Branch
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Deputy Managing Director &
Head of Tejgaon Branch

Nasir Khan
Deputy Managing Director &

Nasir Khan
Deputy Managing Director &

Head of Tejgaon Branch
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Md. Abdul Latif
Assistant Managing Director &

Head of Motijheel Branch

Farhaduzzaman
Assistant Managing Director &

Head of Gulshan Circle -2 Branch

Kazi farid uddin Ahamed
Sr. Vice President &

Head of Jatrabari Branch

Pulokesh saha
Sr. Vice President &

Head of Karwanbazar Branch

Md. Abdur Rashid Khan
Sr. Vice President &

Head of Newmarket Branch

Md. Nurun Nabi
Sr. Vice President &

Head of Laldighi Branch

Md. Kamal Hossain
Sr. Vice President & 

Head of Narayanganj Branch

Khandaker Md. Joynul Abedin
Assistant Managing Director &

Head of Uttara Branch 
Gopal Roy (Rana)

Assistant Managing Director &
Head of VIP Road Branch
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Moslem Mohammed
Sr. Vice President &

Head of Sheikh Mujib Road Branch

Md. Nashir Uddin
Vice President & 

Head of  Faridpur Branch

Kamrul Ahsan
Vice President &

Head of Mymensingh Branch

Md. Rezaul Karim
Vice President &

Head of Jashore Branch

Abdul Latif
Vice President &

Head of Kushtia Branch

Abul Hasan
Deputy Vice President &
Head of Hatkhola Branch

Md. Hemayet Sheikh
Deputy Vice President &
Head of Bagerhat Branch 

Mrs. Shamima Akhter
Deputy Vice President &

Head of BB Avenue Branch

Didar Ahmed
Deputy Vice President &

Head of Fakirapool Branch
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Mahua Dastidar
Senior Manager &

Head of Kadamtoli Branch (Acting)        

Md. Ariful Islam
Deputy  Manager &

Head of Paltan Branch

Mohammad Hossain Kabir
Manager &

Head of Jamalpur Branch

Md. Rahanul Islam
Senior Manager &

Head of Pabna Branch

Kazi Taifur Rahman
Assistant Vice President &
Head of Bangshal Branch

Ibrahim Khalid Siam
Senior Manager &

Head of Baridhara Branch
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VARIOUS EVENTS
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RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk management is the process, whereby organizations methodically address the risks attaching to their activities with 
the goal of achieving sustainable benefit. Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited always tried to reduce the 
risk of the portfolio in controllable position that push up the profit of the company. Good risk management strategy 
always increases the operational result and reduces unusual cost rising. Therefore BNICL get the benefit from the 
underwriting returns by relocating its portfolio by risk management.

Risks of Insurance Operations
BNICL faces many risks, which the company managed successfully, but its core competences and main contribution to 
society is to accept the risks underwritten by businesses and individuals, hence the strategic importance for citizens and 
governments that protect their assets and revenues, and that policies and scientific methods are established to ensure 
a minimum financial solvency and the continuity of its operations. Operational risk also includes market or credit risks. 
The management of BNICL always tried to minimize its operational risks.

Risk Management Plan
The BNICL management developed its risk management plant and established with the organization to achieving the 
objectives of the company. All the employees are cordially worked/control/overseeing the plan that can effect properly. 
The Company’s risk management of components, the approach, and the resources that will be used to manage the risk 
are setforth sequentially. It includes procedures, practices, responsibilities, and activities to implement the plans.

Risk Concentrations
The BNICL takes the risk concentration in its overall business coverage. Estimating the maximum loss, the management 
tried to control the property risk, business risk etc. The estimation includes reinsurance coverage also. Earthquakes are 
excluded within the risk here. BNICL concentrated on the risk associated with other natural disasters, such as storms 
and floods.

Risk Analysis
Risk analysis is very important for insurance business. BNICL takes over risks from customers. Insurers consider every 
available quantifiable factors to develop profiles of high and low insurance risk. Level of risk determines insurance 
premiums. Generally, insurance policies involving factors with greater risk of claims are charged at a higher rate. With 
much information at hand, insurers can evaluate risk of insurance policies at much higher accuracy. To this end, insurers 
collect a vast amount of information about policy holders and insured objects.

Underwring Risks
Underwriting risk is the risk of loss borne by an underwriter and refers to the risk of loss from underwriting activity. In 
insurance, underwriting risk may arise from an inaccurate assessment of the risks associated with writing an insurance 
policy or from uncontrollable factors. As a result, the insurer's costs may significantly exceed earned premiums. In line 
with that BNICL diversifies the company operates in the region with a perceived relatively low risk of natural catastro-
phes, enabling the company to protect against the risk through reinsurance.

Reinsurance Risk
Reinsurance risk refers to the inability of the ceding company or the primary insurer to obtain insurance from a reinsurer 
at the right time and at an appropriate cost. The inability may emanate from a variety of reasons like unfavorable 
market conditions, etc. Default risk by a reinsurer also affects the ceding insurance company in an adverse manner as 
it may affect their profitability. Insurers transfer a part of their portfolio to a reinsurer in exchange for a premium. 
However, the unavailability of reinsurance at the right time and cost has ramifications for the ceding company. A default 
on the part of the reinsurer can lead to adverse impacts on the profitability and solvency of the ceding insurer. In line 
with that BNICL makes reinsurance agreements with the local and foreign companies.

Comprehensive Motor Insurance Risk
Moor insurance also known as car insurance is insurance for cars, trucks, motorcycles, and other road vehicles. Its 
primary use is to provide financial protection against physical damage or bodily injury resulting from traffic collisions and
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against liability that could also arise from incidents in a vehicle. Vehicle insurance may additionally offer financial 
protec¬tion against theft of the vehicle, and against damage to the vehicle sustained from events other than traffic 
collisions, such as keying, weather or natural disasters, and damage sustained by colliding with stationary objects. 
BNICL covers the comprehensive Motor Insurance Risk.

Risk of Cargo Insurance
Cargo Insurance applies mainly to Companies transport risks, transport risks, covering loss of or damage to goods in 
transit. This line of Insurance also contains luggage and boat/yacht Insurance whose policyholder is mainly a private 
individual. In addition, weather conditions may involve accumulation risks covering a geographically large region, such 
as storms and floods, and the risk of snow and icy roads during the winter pertains to comprehensive Insurance. The 
BNICL has taken out reinsurance coverage against major loss of or damage to cargoes.

Market Risk
Market risk relates to the volatility of the market price of assets. It involves exposure to movements in the level of 
finan-cial variables, such as stock prices, interest rates, exchange rates or commodity prices. It also includes the expo-
sure of options to movements in the underlying asset price. Market risk also involves exposure to other unanticipated 
move-ments in financial variables or to movements in the actual or implied volatility of asset prices and options. It is 
obvious that this volatility affects the actual market value of the company’s assets, including those needed to cover the 
liabilities, and therefore also affects the company’s actual surplus. In line with that BNICL always take appropriate 
measures to control the market risk.

Investment Risks
In insurance business, investments comprise assets covering technical provisions and shareholder’s equity. Through 
controlled investment risks, BNICL aims is to achieve the best possible return on the investment portfolio at an accept-
able risk level while taking account of the structure of technical provisions and the solvency targets. The Company 
applies the Asset/Liability Management (ALM) model used to determine the basic allocation of the risk.

Interest Rate Risk
Usually general insurance companies have good amount of liquid investment and the investment kept in the form of 
FDR. The FDR interest is one of the main investment incomes of the company. Decrease of interest rate may reduce 
from income from the FDRs. Thus, BNICL takes early precaution to control the risk.

Legal Compliance Risks
In general insurance business, legal compliance risk is a vital one. Non compliance of legal procedure may rise lose thus 
BNICL always take early safety controlling over the legal compliance risk.
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BNICL HUMAN RESOURCES STATUS 
BNICL beliefs on the utilization of high quality of human resources within the company. Currently, the management 
trying to develop the existing employees through inside training program. Because good human capital always produce 
good output. Keeping that in mind, the management developing the service rule of the company in conjunction with 
the market requirement. It is all about developing and managing the knowledge, skills, creativity, aptitude and talent 
of the employees.

The company encourages open communication, feedback and discussions about any matter of importance to employ-
ees; so that they are well informed and can contribute to the change happening across the organization. BNICL’s main 
strength is the right employee at right place. The principal strength of the company is the eminence and devotion of its 
employees and their shared sense of being part of a team. The company always concentrates on equitable distribution 
of human resources development opportunities and benefits to its employees.

BNICL welcome recruitment of employees from different cultures, regions, ethnic groups and generations. Besides, 
creating good environment for the employees is also taken a key objective of the company. Happy life of the employees 
increases the fellow relationship of the company.

Current human resource status of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited as on December 31, 2021 was under:

Designation   Numbers

Chief Executive Officer 01
Additional Managing Director 04
Deputy Managing Director 04
Assistant  Managing Director 09
Chief Financial Officer                                                                  01
Senior Executive Vice President                                                                 09
Senior Vice President                                                                        12
Senior Deputy Vice President                                                                  05
Deputy Vice President 18
Senior Assistant  Vice President 00
Assistant  Vice President 18
Senior Manager  22
Manager  81
Other Employees  475
Total 659 Nos
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BNICL IT INFRASTRUCTURE
Centralized ERP Systems
All in all, having multiple ERPs in place can make for extremely expensive infrastructure, software, maintenance and 
contracting capabilities. This, in turn, means that the organization lacks agility to adapt to market changes, adopt the 
latest best practice, adhere to standards across the board and remain consistent in conforming to regulatory control.

Redundant network systems
The term redundant can describe computer or network system components, such as fans, hard disk drives, servers, 
operating systems, switches and telecommunication links that are installed to back up primary resources in case they 
fail.

Face detractor attendance systems
Face Recognition attendance system - A Powerful Biometric User Identification based on Innovative, Deep Learning 
Technology. It accepts the user’s mobile as a credential and evolves as per regular user interaction in different condi-
tions. The technology checks liveness of a face with 99.53% accuracy. It is a facial recognition attendance system that 
ensures contactless authentication and identifies user’s face in < 1 Sec.

Fully CCTV Monitoring systems
When a CCTV system is combined with a professional remote CCTV monitoring service, the effectiveness of the CCTV 
is raised to a new level by providing all the benefits of a manned on-site presence at a fraction of the cost. In the event 
of an intrusion at the customer's site, our dedicated CCTV Monitoring operators will be able to view live images from 
site whilst simultaneously transmitting audio messages to deter intruders where possible. Where appropriate, they will 
contact the relevant emergency services and key holders.

Centralized Branches Network systems
A VPN connection can be used to securely connect your branch offices to the corporate network, and to exchange data 
with partner companies. The access rights are controlled by virtual networks (VLAN), which ensure that each and every 
network participant only has access to the corporate data that is relevant to them.

Barcode Systems
For documents security reason BNICL is the company who introduced Barcode systems in non-life insurance company 
for the 1st time.
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BRANCH NETWORK

Sl. No.

1 Dilkusha Fazlur Rahaman Centre, 72, Dilkusha C/A (7/B Flat), Tel: 02223353418 
  Dhaka-1000 Mo: 01817549875, 01617459875 
2 Dilkusha Corporate Plot No.44, North West Block (5th Floor), Dilkusha C/A,
  Dhaka-1000. Tel: 47121419-20,   Mob: 01732997646
3 Gulshan Islam Mansion, House No.39, Road No.126, Tel: 8835567 Fax: 9841219,
  Gulshan-1, Dhaka. Mo:01707334028
4 Gulshan Circle-2 Plot No.43, Alam Arcade North Gulshan C/A (2nd floor), Tel: 41082237, 41082240
  Gulshan, Dhaka-1212.  Mob: 01966626702
5 Mirpur Muktobangla Shopping Complex, (4th Floor) Room No-19, Tel: 02-55075616,  Mob: 01910910880
  Mirpur-1, Dhaka-1216. 01710247392
6 DIT Motijheel Square (8th Floor), 1/B, D.I.T Avenue,
  Motijheel C/A (Dainik Bangla Moor, Dhaka. Tel: 02223354961
7 Local Office 58,Dilkusha C/A (7th Floor), Dhaka-1000.  Tel: 223353524-25, 223357890

8 Principal W W Tower (Level-15), 68, Motijheel C/A, Dhaka-1000. Tel: 0223354563, Mob: 01814 326023

9 Motijheel Amin Court Building (3rd Floor), 62-63, Motijheel C/A, Mob:  01716937922, 01836567290
  Dhaka-1000. Fax: 0222335723
10 Ramna Sheba Nurjahan Eyecon Center (8th floor), 60 Purana
  Paltan, Dhaka-1000.    Mob: 01733160242

11 Shantinagar Cordova scarle 15, Kakarail Road, Ramna, Dhaka-1000.  Mob: 01671673161

12 Newmarket 32/1, MIrpur Road (Khan Plaza) 3rd Floor, Dhanmondi,
  Dhaka-1205.    Mob: 01711060677
13 Hatkhola 42/4 (2nd Floor), Wari, Hatkhola, Dhaka.  Mob: 01779787272

14 Fakirapool 205/4, Khan Plaza, Fakirapool Calvert Road,  Tel: 41070267 Mob: 01614449695
  Motijheel C/A, Dhaka-1000.
15 Tejgaon 223/1 (1st Floor), Tejgaon-Gulshan Link Road,
  Tejgaon C/A, Dhaka-1208. Tel: 48811814 Mob: 01832342789
16 Uttara House No.32, Flat-A2, Road-01, Jashimuddin Avenue, Phone: 88-02-48961545, 48961540
  Sector-03, Uttara, Dhaka-1230. Mob: 01726921700
17 VIP Road Navana Rahim Ardent (4th Floor), Flat No. A/4,   Tel: 58313763 Fax: 9343578
  39 Kakrail, Paltan, Dhaka-1000. Mo: 01716644090, 01913821145
   
18 BB Avenue 9, B.B. Avenue, Dawn Plaza (10th Floor), Dhaka-1000. Tel: 02223355074 Mo: 01710854418

19 Karwanbazar 57/E, Kazi Nazrul Islam Avenue (4th Floor), Tel: 58153197
  Tejgaon, Dhaka-1215. Mo: 01711432236
20 Bangshal 70 Shaheed Nazrul Islam Sharani (3rd Floor), Bangshal,
  Dhaka-1100. Mo: 01914861468, Tel:02223356275

Name of the Branch Address Telephone

Dhaka Division
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21 Moulvibazar Plot No. 493, House-77/3 (2nd Floor), Moulvi Bazar
  Lalbagh, Dhaka-1100.  Tel: 02223356275, 02223356222
22 Paltan Azad Centre, 55, Purana Polton (11/A), Dhaka. Tel: 02223353443-4, Mob: 01711140172
    01675367172
23 Baridhara Road No.12, House No.04, Flat No. A1, Block-J, Tel: 8833670
  Baridhara, Dhaka-1212.  Mo:  01715317660
24 Jatrabari Abdur Rahim Bhuiyan Center (3rd Floor), 80/C/2, Tel:  02223343558
  Bibirbagicha, Uttar Jatrabari, Dhaka.  Mob: 01886-681545, 01712-197531
25 Narayanganj 53/2, S.M. Maleh Road (Abul Hasnat Shantu Market Tel:7630454, Fax: 9587267
  2nd Floor), Tanbazar, Narayanganj.  Mobile: 01720-823484, 01911-744996 

26 Faridpur 103 R. P. Tower (1st Floor) Hazratala Moor, Goalchamot, Mob: 01716544051.
  Faridpur.
                              Chattogram Division 
27 Agrabad World Trade Center (5th Floor), 102/103, Agrabad C/A, Tel: 02333321408, 02333321409
  Chattogram.   Mob: 01815632263 
28 Khatunganj Salma Tower (3rd  Floor), 398/A, Khatungonj C/A, Chattogram.  Tel: 02333351478-9 Mob: 01727710271
29 Sk. Mujib Road Bay Esplanade Tower (6th Floor), 164/B, Sk. Mujib Road Tel: 02333315293, 02333315294
  (Infront of Badamtali Jame Masjid) Agrabad, Chattogram.  Mob: 01819387660
30 Jubilee Road Kader Tower (7th floor), 128 Jubilee Road, Tinpool, Chattogram. Tel: 031-635688-99 Mob: 01815-664274

31 Kadamtoli Rafique Plaza (4th Floor), 1151 D.T. Road, Kadamtali, Chattogram. Tel: 02333314223, 02333314224
    Mob: 01716955482 

32 Laldighi K.B. Orchid Plaza Commercial Shopping Complex 5th Floor,
  Laldighi Uttarpar, 32 No. Andorkillah, Kotwali, Chattogram. Tel: 333366653-4, Mob: 01882398376

   Khulna Division 
33 Jashore M.K. Road, Jess Tower (3rd Floor), Jashore.. Tel: 02477760071, Mob: 01972845345

34 Kushtia Lovely Tower (9th Floor), N. S. Road, Kushtia. Tel: 07171295 Mob: 01714-730478
35 Bagerhat House No.54, Rail Road (Near Bangladesh Krishi Bank Tel: 046864703
  Suktarar goli), P.O+P.S+Dist: Bagerhat. Mob: 01713903897,01911086870

   Mymensingh Division 

36 Mymensingh Tofazzal Shah Tower (5th Floor), 39 Muktijodha Sarani
  Road, Soto Bazar, Mymensingh. Mob: 01712604840

37 Jamalpur Bhai Bhai Cloth Store (1st Floor), Baro Masjid Road, Sakal
  Bazar, Jamalpur,  Mob: 01716552802

   Rajshahi Division 

38 Pabna Haji Akbar Ali Super Market 4th Floor, Abdul Hamid Road, Pabna.  Mob: 01716960034



Report to the Shareholders’ of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited 
on Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

KHAN MANSION, 5TH FLOOR,
107, MOTIJHEEL C/A, DHAKA-1000.

Tel.: +880-2223382786, 9564295
E-Mail:a.hoquecompany@gmail.com

[As required under the BSEC Corporate Governance Code Condition no.1(5) (xxvii)]

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code by Bangladesh National Insurance 
Company Limited for the year ended on 31st December, 2021. This Code relates to the Notification no. 
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 3, 2018 of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission. 

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the Company. Our examination was 
limited to the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the Management in ensuring compliance to the 
conditions of the Corporate Governance Code.

This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance 
Code as well as the provisions of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by Institute of Chartered 
Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those standards are not inconsistent with any condition of this Corporate 
Governance Code.

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have required, and after due scrutiny 
and verification thereof, we report that, in our opinion:

(a) The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code as stipulated in the above 
mentioned Corporate Governance Code issued by the Commission;

(b) The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted 
by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) as required by this code;

(c) Proper books and records have been kept by the company as required under the Companies Act, 1994, the securities 
laws and other relevant laws; and

(d) The Governance of the Company is satisfactory.
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Dated: 27.04.2022
Place: Dhaka, Bangladesh

(A.K.M Aminul Hoque, FCA)
Enrolment No. 407

A. Hoque & Co.
Chartered Accountants

G, nK GÛ †Kvs 
A. HOQUE & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 



Condition
No.

1

Title RemarksNot
CompliedComplied

Compliance Status (Put √ in the
appropriate column)

Board Of Directors:   

1.(1)
The Number of the Board members of the company shall 
not be less than 5 ( Five ) and more than 20 (Twenty ). √

1.2(a) At least one fifth (1/5) of the total number of directors in 
the company’s Board shall be independent directors. √

1.2(b) (i) Who either does not hold share in the company or holds 
less than one (1%) shares of the total paid up shares
of the company

√

1.2(b) (ii) 
Who is not sponsor of the Company and is not connected 
with any sponsor or director or shareholder who  holds 
one percent or more shares of the Company

√

1.2(b) (iii) who has not been an executive of the company in imme-
diately preceding 2 (two) financial years √

1.2(b) (iv) 
Who does not have any other relationship, whether 
pecuniary or otherwise, with the company or its 
subsidiary/associated companies

√

1.2(b) (v)
Who is not a Member or TREC holder, director or officer of 
any stock exchange √

1.2(b) (vi)
Not a Shareholder/Director/Officer of any Member / TREC 
holder of stock exchange or an intermediary of the capital 
market.

√

1.2(b) (vii)

Not a partner or an Executive or was not a partner or an 
Executive during the Preceding 3 (Three) years of the  
concerned Company’s statutory audit firm or audit firm 
engaged in internal audit or special audit or professional 
certifying complacence of this code.

√

1.2(b) (viii) Not an Independent Director in more than 5 (five) listed 
companies

√

1.2(b) (ix)
Not convicted by a court of competent jurisdiction as a 
defaulter in payment of any loan/advance to a Bank or a 
Non-Bank Financial Institution. √

1.(2) Independent Directors:   

BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Status Report on Compliance with the Conditions imposed by the BSEC Report under Condition No. 9(3) 
Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission Notification 
No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3 June 2018 issued under section 2CC of the Securities and 
Exchange Ordinance, 1969 is presented below:
Report under condition no. 9.00 of above referred notification    

Complied with the 
BSEC but pending with 
Insurance Act, 2010 

under Section 76 
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Condition
No. Title RemarksNot

CompliedComplied

Compliance Status (Put √ in the
appropriate column)

1.2(b) (x) Not been convicted for a criminal offence involving moral 
turpitude. √

1.2 (b) (c)
The independent director(s) shall be appointed by the 
Board and approved by the shareholders in AGM √

1.2(b) (d) The post of independent director(s) cannot remain vacant 
formore than 90 (ninety) days. √

1.2 (b) (e) Tenure of the Independent Director shall be for a period 
of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1 (one) 
tenure only.

√

1.(3)(a) Independent Director shall be a knowledgeable individual 
with integrity who is able to ensure compliance with 
financial, regulatory and corporate laws and can make 
meaningful contribution to business.

√

1.3(b)(i) Business Leader who is or was a promoter or director of 
an unlisted company having minimum paid-up capital of 
Tk. 100.00 million or any listed company.

1.3(b)(ii) Should be a Corporate Leader/Business Leader.

√

1.(3) Qualification of Independent Director (ID):   

N/A

N/A

1.3(b)(iii) Former official of government or statutory or autonomous 
or regulatory body in the position not below 5th Grade of 
the national pay scale.

1.3(b)(iv) University Teacher who has educational background in 
Economics or Commerce or Business Studies or Law

√
1.3(b)(v) Professional who is or was an advocate practicing at least 

in the High Court Division of Bangladesh Supreme Court 
or a CA/ C & M A/CFA/CCA/CPA/ or CMA/ CS or equivalent 
qualification.

N/A

N/A

1.3(b)(c) The independent director shall have at least 10 (ten) 
years of experiences √

1.3(b)(d) Relaxation in special cases.

1.(4) Duality of Chairperson of the Board of Directors and Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer

1.(4)(a) The positions of Chairperson of the board and MD and/or 
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) shall be filled by different 
individuals.

√

1.(4)(b) MD and/or CEO of a listed Company shall not hold the 
same position in another listed Company √

1.4(c) The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected from 
among the non-executive directors of the company √
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Condition
No. Title RemarksNot

CompliedComplied

Compliance Status (Put √ in the
appropriate column)

1.(4)(d) The Board shall clearly define respective roles and 
responsibilities of the Chairperson and the Managing 
Director and/or CEO

√

1.(4)(e) In absence of Chairperson of the Board, the remaining 
members may elect one of themselves from nonexecutive 
directors as Chairperson for that particular Board’s 
meeting

1.(5)(i) Industry outlook and possible future developments in the 
industry √

1.(5)(ii) Segment -wise or product- wise performance. √

1.(5)(iii) Risks and concerns including internal and external risk 
factors, threat to sustainability and negative impact on 
environment

√

1.(5)(iv) A Discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Profit Margin 
and Net Profit Margin. 

1.(5)(v) Discussion on continuity of any Extra - Ordinary gain or 
loss.

1.(5)(vi) Detailed discussion and statement on related party trans-
actions.

√

√

1.(5)(vii) Utilization of proceeds from public issues, right issues and 
/ or through any others instruments

1.(5)(viii) An explanation if the financial results deteriorate after the 
company goes for Initial Public Offering (IPO), Repeat 
Public Offering (RPO), Rights Offer, Direct Listing, etc. 

1.(5)(ix) If significant variance occurs between Quarterly Financial 
performance and Annual Financial Statements the 
management shall explain about the variance on their 
Annual Report.

1.(5) Directors Report to Shareholders

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

No such incident

1.(5)(x) Remuneration to directors including independent directors √
1.(5)(xi) The financial statements prepared by the management of 

the issuer company present fairly its state of affairs, the 
result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity

√

1.(5)(xii) Proper books of account of the issuer company have been 
maintained

√

1.(5)(xiii) Appropriate accounting policies  have been consistently 
applied in preparation of the financial statements and that 
the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and 
prudent  judgment.

√

1.5(xiv) International Accounting Standards (IAS)/Bangladesh 
Accounting Standards (BAS)/International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS)/Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards 
(BFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in 
preparation of the financial statements and any departure 
there- from has been adequately disclosed.

√
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Condition
No. Title RemarksNot

CompliedComplied

Compliance Status (Put √ in the
appropriate column)

1.(5)(xv) The system of internal control is sound in design and has 
been effectively implemented and monitored.

√

1.(5)(xvi) A statement that minority shareholders have been 
protected from abusive actions by, or in the interest of, 
controlling shareholders acting either directly or indirectly 
and have effective means of redress.

1.(5)(xvii) A statement that there is no significant doubt upon the 
issuer company’s ability to continue as a going concern, if 
the issuer company is not considered to be a going 
concern, the fact along with reasons there of shall be 
disclosed

√

1.(5)(xviii) significant deviations from the last year’s operating results 
of the issuer company shall be highlighted and the reasons 
thereof shall be explained

√

1.(5)(xix) Key operating and financial data of at least preceding 5 
(five) years shall be summarized.

1.(5)(xx) If the issuer company has not declared dividend (cash or 
stock) for the year, the reasons thereof shall be given.

√

1.(5)(xxi) Board’s statement to the effect that no bonus share or 
stock dividend has been or shall be declared as interim 
dividend 

1.(5)(xxii) The number of Board meetings held during the year and 
attendance by each director √

√

1.(5)(xxiii)(a) Parent/Subsidiary/Associated Companies and other 
related parties (name wise details);

A report on the pattern of shareholding disclosing the 
aggregate number of shares (name wise details).

1.(5)(xxiii)(b) Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, 
Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit and their 
spouses and minor children (name wise details);

√

√

1.(5)(xxiii)

N/A

N/A

N/A

1.(5)(xxiii)(c) Executives √
1.(5)(xxiii)(d) Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting 

interest in the company (name-wise details)
In case of the appointment/re-appointment of a director the company 
shall disclose the following information to the shareholders:-

√

1.(5)(xxiv) 

1.(5)(xxiv)(a) A brief resume of the director √

√

1.(5)(xxiv)(b) Nature of his /her expertise in specific functional areas √
1.(5)(xxiv)(c) Names of companies in which the person also holds the 

directorship and the membership of committees of the 
board

√

1.(5)(xxv) Management discussion and analysis signed by CEO/MD presenting detail analysis of the 
company’s position and operations along with a brief discussion of changes in the financial 
statements, among others, focusing on:
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N/A

Condition
No. Title RemarksNot

CompliedComplied

Compliance Status (Put √ in the
appropriate column)

1.(5)(xxv)(a) Accounting policies and estimation for preparation of 
financial statements √

1.(5)(xxv)(b) Changes in accounting policies and estimation as well as 
cash flows on absolute figure for such changes.

1.(5)(xxv)(c) Comparative analysis and financial position as well as 
cash flow for current financial year with immediate 
preceding five years explaining reasons thereof √

1.(5)(xxv)(d) Compare such financial performance or results and 
financial position as well as cash flows with the peer 
industry scenario

√

1.(5)(xxv)(e) Briefly explain the financial and economic scenario of the 
country and the global.

√

1.(5)(xxv)(f) Risks and concerns issues related to the financial 
statements and concerns mitigation plan of the 
company

√

1.(5)(xxv)(g) Future plan or projection or forecast for company’s 
operation, performance and financial position shall be 
explained to the shareholders in the next AGM.

Management will 
ensure the matter in 

the next AGM

1.(5)(xxvi) Declaration or certification by the CEO and the CFO to the 
Board as required under condition No. 3(3) disclosed as 
per Annexure-A.

√

1.5(xxvii) The report as well as certificate regarding compliance of 
conditions of this Code as required under condition No. 9 
disclosed in page -1 to 11.

√

1.(6) Meetings of the Board of Directors   

1.(6) Compliance under Bangladesh Secretarial Standards 
(BSS). √

1.(7)(a) The Board shall lay down a code of conduct, based on the 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee (NRC)

√

1.(7) Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive 
Officer

1.(7)(b) The code of conduct as determined by the NRC shall be 
posted on the website of the company including, among 
others, prudent conduct and behavior. √

2 Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company.   

2(a) Provisions relating to the composition of the Board of the 
holding company shall be made applicable to the 
composition of the Board of the subsidiary company 

N/A

2(b) At least 1 (one) independent director on the Board of the 
holding company shall be a director on the Board of the 
subsidiary company

N/A
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Condition
No. Title RemarksNot

CompliedComplied

Compliance Status (Put √ in the
appropriate column)

3 Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO)/Chief Financial Officer (CFO), 
Head of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC) and Company Secretary (CS) 

3.(1)(a) The Board shall appoint a Managing Director (MD) or 
Chief Executive Officer (CEO), a Company Secretary (CS), 
a Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and a Head of Internal 
Audit and Compliance (HIAC):

√

2(c) Minutes of subsidiary to be placed in the meeting of 
holding company. N/A

2(d) The minutes of the respective Board meeting of the 
holding company shall state that they have reviewed the 
affairs of the subsidiary company also 

N/A

2(e) The Audit Committee of the holding company shall also 
review the financial statements, in particular the 
investments made by the subsidiary company 

N/A

3(1) Appointment   

3.(1)(b) The positions of the Managing Director (MD) or Chief 
Executive Officer (CEO), Company Secretary (CS), Chief 
Financial Officer (CFO) and Head of Internal Audit and 
Compliance (HIAC) shall be filled by different individuals:

√

3.(1)(c) The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of a listed company 
shall not hold any executive position in any other 
company at the same time:

√

3.(1)(d) The Board shall clearly define respective roles, responsi-
bilities and duties of the CFO, the HIAC and the CS √

3.(1)(e) The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC shall not be removed 
from their position without approval of the Board as well 
as immediate dissemination to the Commission and stock 
exchange(s).

3.(2) The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of the company shall 
attend the meetings of the Board.

3.(3) Duties of Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial 
Officer (CFO) 

√

√

3.(3)(a)(i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue 
statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 
that might be misleading.

√

3.(3)(a) The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to the Board that 
they have reviewed financial statements for the year 
and that to the best of their knowledge and belief:

3.(2) Requirement to attend Board of Directors’ Meetings

3.(3)(a)(ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of 
the company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 
accounting standards and applicable laws.

√

No such 
incident 
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Condition
No. Title RemarksNot

CompliedComplied

Compliance Status (Put √ in the
appropriate column)

3.(3)(c) The certification of the MD or CEO and CFO shall be 
disclosed in the Annual Report. √

5.(1) Responsibility to the Board of Directors

4(i) Audit Committee √

4 Board of Directors’ Committee   

5 Audit Committee:

4(ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee. √

5.(1)(a) The company shall have an Audit Committee as a 
sub-committee of the Board of Directors;

√

3.(3)(c)

5.(1)

4(i)

4

5

4(ii)

5.(1)(a)

√

√

√

√

3.(3)(b) The MD or CEO and CFO shall also certify that there are, 
to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions 
entered into by the company during the year which are 
fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for 
the company’s Board or its members;

√

5.(1)(c) The Audit Committee shall be responsible to the Board; 
the duties of the Audit Committee shall be clearly set forth 
in writing. 

√

5.(1)(b) The Audit Committee shall assist the Board in ensuring 
that the financial statements reflect true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the company and in ensuring a good 
monitoring system within the business;

√

5.(2)(a) The audit Committee shall be composed of at least 3 
(three) members; √

5.(2) Constitution of the Audit Committee

5.(2)(b) The Board shall appoint members of the Audit Committee 
who shall be non-executive directors of the company 
excepting Chairperson of the Board and shall include at 
least 1 (one) independent director.

√

5.(2)(c) All members of the audit committee should be " finan-
cially literate" and at least 1 (One) member shall have 
accounting or related financial management background 
and 10 ( (ten ) years of such experience;

√

5.(2)(d) When the term of service of the Committee members 
expires or there is any circumstance causing any Commit-
tee member to be unable to hold …

No such
incident

5.2(e) The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the 
Committee; √

5.(2)(f) The quorum of the Audit Committee meeting shall not 
constitute without at  least 1 (one) Independent director; √

5.(3)(a) The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the Audit 
Committee to be Chairperson of the Audit Committee, 
who shall be an independent director;

√

5.(3) Chairperson of the Audit Committee
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Condition
No. Title RemarksNot

CompliedComplied

Compliance Status (Put √ in the
appropriate column)

5.(3)(b) Absence of the Chairperson of the Audit Committee mem-
bers to elect one and the reason of absence of the regular 
Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes.

√

5.3(c) Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall remain present 
in the Annual General Meeting (AGM)

5.4 Meeting of the Audit Committee
5.(4)(a) The Audit Committee shall conduct at least its four meet-

ings in a financial year. √
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Will be ensured by
the management

5.(4)(b) Quorum of Audit Committee, presence of 2 or 2/3 mem-
bers whichever is higher where presence of an independ-
ent director is a must.

√

5.(5)(a) Oversee the financial reporting process: √

5.(5) Role of Audit Committee:   

5.(5)(b) Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles; √
5.(5)(c) Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure 

that it is adequately resourced, including approval of the 
Internal Audit and Compliance Plan and review of the 
Internal Audit and Compliance Report

√

5.(5)(d) Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors √
5.(5)(e) Hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for 

review of the annual financial statements before submis-
sion to the Board for approval or adoption;

√

5.(5)(f) Review along with the management, the annual financial 
statements before submission to the Board for approval; √

5.5(g) Review along with the management, the quarterly and 
half yearly financial statements before submission to the 
Board for approval

√

5.(5)(h) Review the adequacy of internal audit function; √
5.(5)(i) Review the management's dicussion and analysis before 

disclosing in the annual report; √

5.(5)(j) Review statement of all related party transactions submit-
ted by the management; √

5.(5)(k) Review Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control 
weakness issued by statutory auditors; √

5.(5)(l) Oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope 
and magnitude, level of expertise deployed and time 
required for effective audit and evaluate the performance 
of external auditors;

√

N/A
5.5(m) Oversee whether IPO or RPO or RSO proceeds utilized as 

per the published prospectus;



Condition
No. Title RemarksNot

CompliedComplied

Compliance Status (Put √ in the
appropriate column)

5.(6)(a)(i) The Audit Committee shall report on its activities to the 
Board. √

5.(6) Reporting of the Audit Committee 

5.(6)(a) Reporting to the Board of Directors
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5.(6)(a)(ii) The Audit Committee shall immediately report to the Board on the following findings, if any 

5.6(a)(ii)(a) Report on conflicts of interests;

5.6(a)(ii)(b) Suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material 
defect identified in the internal audit and compliance 
process or in the financial statements;

5.6(a)(ii)(c) Suspected infringement of laws, regulatory compliances 
including securities related laws, rules and regulations;

No such incident

No such incident

No such incident

No such incident

No such incident

5.6(a)(ii)(d) Any other matter which the Audit Committee deems 
necessary shall be disclosed to the Board immediately;

5.(6)(b) Reporting to the Authorities

√
6.(1)(a) The company shall have a Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee (NRC) as a sub-committee of the Board;

√

6.(1)(b) The NRC shall assist the Board in formulation of the nomi-
nation criteria or policy for determining qualifications, 
positive attributes, experiences and independence of 
directors and top level executive as well as a policy for 
formal process of considering remuneration of directors, 
top level executive;

√
6.(1)(c) The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the NRC shall be clearly 

set forth in writing covering the areas stated at the condi-
tion No. 6(5)(b).

√6.(2)(a) The Committee shall comprise of at least three members 
including an independent director;

5.(7) Reporting to the Shareholders and General Investors

No such incident5.(7) Reporting to the Shareholders and General Investors

6 Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)

6.(1) Responsibility to the Board of Directors 

6.(2) Constitution of the NRC   

6.(2)(b) All members of the Committee shall be non-executive 
directors ;

6.(2)(c) Members of the Committee shall be nominated and 
appointed by the Board; √

√

6.(2)(d) The Board shall have authority to remove and appoint any 
member of the Committee; √



Condition
No. Title RemarksNot

CompliedComplied

Compliance Status (Put √ in the
appropriate column)
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6.(2)(e) Board shall fill the vacancy within 180 days of such 
vacancy in the Committee.

No such Incident

No such Incident

No such Incident

No such Incident

6.(2)(f) The Chairperson of the Committee may appoint/co-opt 
any external expert.

6.(2)(g) The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the 
Committee; √

6.(2)(h) The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not constitute 
without attendance of at least an independent director; √

6.(2)(i) No member of the NRC shall receive, either directly or 
indirectly, any remuneration for any advisory or consul-
tancy role or otherwise, other than Director’s fees or 
honorarium from the company.

√

6.(3) Chairperson of the NRC   

6.(3)(a) The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the NRC to be 
Chairperson of the Committee, who shall be an independ-
ent director

√

6.(3)(b) In the absence of the Chairperson of the NRC, the 
remaining members may elect one of themselves as 
Chairperson for that particular meeting, the reason of 
absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly recorded 
in the minutes

6.(3)(c) The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the annual 
general meeting (AGM) to answer the queries of the 
shareholders.

6.(4)(a) The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting in a financial 
year

√

6.(4) Meeting of the NRC   

6.4(b) The Chairperson of the NRC may convene any emergency 
meeting upon request by any member of the NRC

Will be ensured 
by the

management

6.(4)(c) The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall be consti-
tuted in presence of either two members or two third of 
the members of the Committee, whichever is higher, 
where presence of an independent director is must as 
required under condition No. 6(2)(h);

√

6.(4)(d) The proceedings of each meeting of the NRC shall duly be 
recorded in the minutes and such minutes shall be 
confirmed in the next meeting of the NRC

√

6.(5)(a) NRC shall be independent and responsible or accountable 
to the Board and to the shareholders √

6.(5) Role of the NRC   



Condition
No. Title RemarksNot

CompliedComplied

Compliance Status (Put √ in the
appropriate column)
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6.(5)(b)(i)(a) The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable 
and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate suitable 
directors to run the company successfully;

√

6.(5)(b)(i)(b) The relationship of remuneration to performance is clear 
and meets appropriate performance benchmarks √

6.(5)(b)(i)(c) Remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a 
balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short 
and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the 
working of the company and its goals

√

6.(5)(b)(ii) Devising a policy on Board’s diversity taking into consid-
eration age, gender, experience, ethnicity, educational 
background and nationality √

6.(5)(b)(iii) Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors 
and who may be appointed in top level executive position 
in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend 
their appointment and removal to the Board

√

6.(5)(b)(iv) Formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of 
independent directors and the Board √

6.(5)(b)(v) Identifying the company’s needs for employees at differ-
ent levels and determine their selection, transfer or 
replacement and promotion criteria

√

6.(5)(b)(vi) Developing, recommending and reviewing annually the 
company’s human resources and training policies √

6.(5)(c) The company shall disclose the nomination and remu-
neration policy and the evaluation criteria and activities of 
NRC during the year at a glance in its annual report

The issuer company shall not engage its external or statu-
tory auditors to perform the following services of the 
company, namely:

√

7 External or Statutory Auditors   

7.(1)

7.(1)(i) Appraisal or valuation services or fairness opinions √

√

7.(1)(ii) Financial information systems design and implementation √
7.(1)(iii) Book-keeping or other services related to the accounting 

records or financial statements √

7.(1)(iv) Broker-dealer services √
7.(1)(v) Actuarial services √
7.(1)(vi) Internal audit services or special audit services √
7.(1)(vii) Any service that the Audit Committee determines √
7.(1)(viii) Audit or certification services on compliance of corporate 

governance as required under condition No. 9(1); 
√

√7.(1)(ix) Any other service that creates conflict of interest.
7.(2) No partner or employees of the external audit firms shall 

possess any share of the company they audit at least 
during the tenure of their audit assignment of that 
company; his or her family members also shall not hold 
any shares in the said company

N/A



Condition
No. Title RemarksNot

CompliedComplied

Compliance Status (Put √ in the
appropriate column)
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7.3 Representative of external or statutory auditors shall 
remain present in the Shareholders’ Meeting (Annual 
General Meeting or Extraordinary General Meeting) to 
answer the queries of theshareholders.

8 Maintaining a website by the Company   

√
8.1 The company shall have an official website linked with the 

website of the stock exchange

9 Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance.   

√
8.2 The company shall keep the website functional from the 

date of listing

√
8.3 The company shall make available the detailed disclo-

sures on its website as required under the listing regula-
tions of the concernedstock exchange(s).

√

√

√

9.1 The company shall obtain a certificate from a practicing 
Professional Accountant or Secretary (Chartered Account-
ant or Cost and Management Accountant or Chartered 
Secretary) other than its statutory auditors or audit firm 
on yearly basis regarding compliance of conditions of Corpo-
rate Governance Code of the Commission and shall such 
certificate shall be disclosed in the Annual Report

9.2 The professional who will provide the certificate on 
compliance of this Corporate Governance Code shall be 
appointed by the shareholders in the annual general 
meeting

9.3 The directors of the company shall state, in accordance 
with status of compliance with the conditions imposed by 
the Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission’s 
notification no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, 
dated 03.06.2018 issued under Section 2cc of the Securi-
ties and Exchange Ordinance 1969, in the directors’ 
report whether the company has complied with these 
conditions or not.

Will be ensured 
by the

management
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1.05 (xxiii) Pattern of Shareholdings:
   At 31st December, 2021 the Pattern of Shareholdings is given below:

1.05 (xxiii)(a) Shareholding of Parent/Subsidiary/Associated Companies and other related parties: Nil
1.05 (xxiii)(b) Shareholdings of Directors & Sponsors are as under:

Sponsors & Directors   26,608,820
General Public Including Unit Fund, Mutual Fund, Financial Institutions etc.  17,641,180
Total Shares   44,250,000

Particulars No. of Shares

1 Mr. Mostafa Kamal Chairman 2,424,833 5.48%
2 Mrs. Beauty Akter Director 1,000,000 2.26%
3 Mr. Abdur Rouf Director 1,155,000 2.61%
4 Mrs. Tahmina Binte Mostafa Director 3,308,334 7.48%
5 Mrs. Tanjima Binte Mostafa Director 3,208,334 7.25%
6 Mr. Tanveer Ahmed Mostafa Director 4,175,167 9.44%
7 Mr. Taif Bin Yousuf Director 895,833 2.02%
8 Mr. Yousuf Ali Director 895,833 2.02%
9 Ms. Tasmin Binte Mostafa Director 1,000,000 2.26%
10 Mr. Wasikur Rahman  Director 1,000,000 2.26%
11 Mr. Abdul Baset Mojumder Ex-Chairman 885,000 2.00%
12 Professor Dr. Mijanur Rahman Ind. Director -- --
13 Md. Alamgir Hossain Khan, FCMA Ind. Director -- --
14 Monjur Md. Shaiful Azam, FCMA Ind. Director -- --
15 Md. Hasan Rajib Prodhan Ind. Director 1,170 0.002%
16 Muhammad Zakaria Sponsor Director 885,825 2.001%
17 M.F. Kamal Sponsor Director 885,825 2.001%
18 Mr. Abdul Baten Public Director 1,140,833 2.58%
19 Mrs. Hasina Begum Public Director 895,833 2.02%
20 Mrs. Farida Akter Public Director 1,075,000 2.43%
21 Mr. Md. Nasir Uddin Public Director 890,000 2.01%
22 Balayet Hossain Bhuiyan Public Director 886,000 2.00%
 Total  26,608,820 60.13%

Sl. No Shareholdings of Directors Holdings (%)No. of SharesDesignation

1.05 (xxiii) b) Shareholdings of  Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Head  of
  Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children are as under as on 31.12.2021:

Mr. Md. Sana Ullah, CEO  CEO -    -   
Spouse/Minor Children of CEO   
Sk. Bellal Hossain, FCA Chief Financial Officer  
Spouse/Minor Children of Chief Financial Officer  - -
Md. Masud Rana,  Company Secretary - -
Spouse / Minor Children of Company Secretary   

Sharmin Akhter Head of Internal Audit - -
Spouse / Minor Children of HIAC & Compliance

Name Holdings (%)No. of SharesDesignation



The Board of Directors    
Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited    
Head Office: Rashid Tower (3rd Floor)    
Plot # 11, Road # 8, Gulshan-1    
Dhaka-1212

Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on 31 December, 2021

Dear Sirs, 
Pursuant to the condition No. 1(5)(xxvi) imposed vide the Commission’s Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-
158/207/Admin/80 dated 3 June 2018 under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969, we do 
hereby declare that:

1 The Financial Statements of Bangladesh National Insurance Co. Ltd. for the year ended on 31 December, 2021
have been prepared in compliance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS), as applicable in the Bangladesh and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed; 
      

2 The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and reasonable basis, in 
order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view;    
   

3 The form and substance of transactions and the Company’s state of affairs have been reasonably and fairly presented
in its financial statements;    
   

4 To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of internal control and 
maintenance of accounting records;    
   

5 Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the established policies 
and procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and    
   

6 The management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements is appropriate 
and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.    
   

In this regard, we also certify that:-    
i. We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 31 December, 2021 and that to the best of our 

knowledge and belief:    
   

 a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 
that might be misleading;    
  

 b) these statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with 
existing accounting standards and applicable laws.    
  

ii. There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which 
are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the company’s Board of Directors or its members.

Sincerely yours,

Dated : Dhaka
April 27, 2022

SK. Bellal Hossain, FCA
Chief Financial Officer

Md.Sana Ullah
Chief Executive Officer

Annual Report78

DECLARATION BY CEO AND CFO        
As per condition No.1(5)(xxvi) of CGC



CREDIT RATING INFORMATION
Credit rating of an insurance company reflects its financial strength and ability to pay policyholders’ claims and 
obligation of time. Rating provides an opinion on the financial strength of the insurer, from a policyholder’s perspective 
which may act as an important input influencing the consumer’s choice of insurance companies and products. Credit 
rating also gives an idea to the investors about the credibility of the company, and the risk factor attached to a particular 
instrument. So the investors can decide whether to invest in such companies or not. Higher the rating, the more will be 
the willingness to invest in the instruments and vise-versa. Current credit rating of Bangladesh National Insurance 
Company Limited is as under issued by Emerging Credit Rating Limited:

Description Information

Long term rating AA
Short term rating ST-2
Date of rating September 30, 2021
Validity of Rating Till September 29, 2022

Emerging Credit Rating Limited (ECRL) has reaffirmed the ratings to Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited 
based on its financials as well as other relevant qualitative and quantitative information. ECRL has affirmed to AA as 
long term credit rating and affirmed ST-2 as short term credit rating to the BNICL. The outlook of the rating is Stable. 
The ratings are consistent with ECRL’s methodology for this type of company. The ratings are based on audited 
financial statements from FY2017 to FY2020, site visit and other qualitative along with quantitative information up to the 
date of rating.  
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited is an operating committee of the Board 
charged with oversight of financial reporting and disclosure. Committee members are drawn from members of the 
company's board of directors, with a Chairman (Independent Director) selected from among the members of the 
directors. BNICL Audit Committees empowered to acquire the consulting resources and expertise deemed necessary 
to perform their responsibilities. 

The Company’s management has the primary responsibility for the financial statements, for maintaining effective 
internal control over financial reporting, and for assessing the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. 
In fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, the Committee reviewed and discussed the quarterly un-audited and yearly 
audited financial statements with related issues including of the accounting principles; the reasonableness of significant 
accounting treatment; and the clarity of disclosures in the financial statements. The Committee is governed by a board 
approved terms of reference. 

A qualifying audit committee is required in a publicly listed company in accordance with the BSEC Notification # 
SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03 June 2018. 

Composition
The Board of Directors of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited formed the Audit Committee with following 
three members: 

Name of Directors Board Audit Committee
Md. Alamgir Hossain Khan, FCMA  Chairman
Yousuf Ali  Member
Tanjima Binthe Mostafa  Member

The Chairman of the Audit committee is an Independent Director having accounting and financial management experience.

Meeting of the Audit Committee
During the period under review a total of 04 (four) Audit Committee meetings were held at the head office of the 
company.

The Board Audit Committee has been constituted with an Independent Director having accounting and Financial 
Management experience as Chairman. The Head of Internal Audit Department and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 
attended the meeting(s) by invitation.

Role of the Audit Committee
Audit Committee of the Board can play an effective role in providing a bridge between the Board and Management, 
Shareholders and other Stakeholders. The Board of Directors of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited 
recognized the importance of the Audit Committee. The Key role of the Committee is to assist the Board in discharging
its responsibilities for financial and business discipline, financial reporting, corporate governance and internal control. 
The following are the prime responsibilities for the Audit Committee.
 To evaluate whether management is setting the appropriate compliance culture of internal control and ensuring 

that all employees have good understanding of their roles and responsibilities.
 To review the existing risk management policies and procedures for ensuring an effective internal check and 

control system.

Annual Report80



 To review the financial statements and determine whether they are complete and consistent with the accounting 
standard set by the regulatory authorities.

 To review the efficiency and effectiveness of internal audit function.
 To review the findings and recommendations made by the internal auditors for removing the irregularities detected.
 To review the auditing performance of external auditors and their audit reports and recommending to the Board 

for appointment or removal of external auditors.

Activities
During the period under review, the committee, interalia, focused on the following activities:
 Reviewed quarterly financial statement of the company to measure the performance.
 Reviewed significant internal audit findings and advised the management to rectify the deficiencies and improve 

operational performance and compliance.
 The Audit Committee recommended strengthening of Internal Audit Department with skill manpower to increase 

capacity and efficiency of the Audit Department.
 Reviewed and examined the Draft Annual Financial Statements 2021 made out in line with accounting standard 

set by the regulatory authorities and recommended to place the same before the Board for consideration.

Acknowledgement
The audit committee would like to express their sincere thanks to the members of the Board, key management person-
nel, internal audit Division and all employees for their utmost co-operation extended by them.

Md. Alamgir Hossain Khan, FCMA
Chairman
Board Audit Committee
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Shareholders of 

Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited(the Company), which 
comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2021, Profit and Loss Appropriation Account, Statement 
of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Revenue Account, Fire Insurance Revenue Account, 
Marine Cargo Insurance Revenue Account, Marine Hull Insurance Revenue Account, Motor Insurance Revenue Account, 
Miscellaneous Insurance Revenue Account,Statement of Changes in Shareholders Equity and Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information disclosed in notes 1 to 48 & Annexure-A to E.

In our opinion,the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
company as at December 31, 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, 
the Insurance Rules 1958 (as amended till date), the Securities and Exchange Rules 2020 and other applicable laws 
andregulations.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ 
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of the financial statements in Bangladesh, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for ouropinion.

Our Key Audit Matters

With respect to Premium income in respect of various 
types of insurance we carried out the following procedures:
 The design and operating effectiveness of key controls

around premium income recognition process.
 Carried out analytical procedures and recalculated 

premium income for the period.
 Carried out cut-off testing to ensure unearned premium

income has not been included in the premium income.
 On a sample basis reviewed policy to ensure appropriate

policy stamp was affixed to the contract and the same 
has been reflected in the premium register.

 Ensured on a sample basis that the premium income 
was being deposited in the designated bank account.

Gross general insurance premiums comprise the total 
premiums received for the whole period of cover provided 
by contracts entered into during the accounting period.

Given the important nature, connections to other items to 
the financial statements and sensitivity of the item we 
believe this area pose high level of risk.

Risk Our response to the risk
Premium Income

Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Principal O�ce: Paramount Heights (7th Floor, D2 & C1), 65/2/1 Box Culvert Road, Purana Paltan, Dhaka-1000, Phone: +88-02-9553449, 9551128, Mob: 01914284705, 01819225339, E-mail: rmadhaka@gmail.com, Web: www.rmabd.com
Branch O�ce (Dhaka): House#195 (3rd Floor, C-3), Road # 1, New DOHS, Mohakhali, Dhaka-1206, Phone: +88-02-9834313, Mob: 01920911976, 01819224976, 01819225339, E-mail: rmadhaka@gmail.com, Web: www.rmabd.com
Branch O�ce (Chattagram): Al Madina Tower (6th Floor), 88/89, Agrabad C/A, Chattogram-4100, Phone: +88-031-725314, Mob: 01818127520, 01819225339, E-mail: rmactg@gmail.com, Web: www.rmabd.com
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 Tested on a sample basis to see that appropriate VAT 
was being collected and deposited to bank through 
Treasury Challan.

 For a sample of insurance contracts tested to see if 
appropriate level of reinsurance was done and 
whether that re insurance premium was deducted 
from the gross premium.

 Applying specialist judgment ensured if there is any 
impairment of the reinsurer.

 Finally assessed the appropriateness and presentation
of disclosures against relevant accounting standards, 
Insurance Act 1938 (as amended in 2010), Insurance 
Rules, 1958 and other applicable rules and regula-
tions and regulatory guidelines.

Risk Our response to the risk

See note no 28 to the financial statements

We tested the design and operating effectiveness of 
controls around the due and intimated claim recording 
process.

We additionally carried out the following substantive 
testing around this item:
 Obtained the claim register and tested for completeness

of claims recorded in the register on a sample basis.
 Obtained a sample of claimed policy copy and cross 

check it with claim.

Obtained a sample of survey reports Cross checked 
those against respective ledger balances and in case 
of discrepancy carried out further investigation.

 Obtained and discussed with management about their
basis for estimation and challenged their assumptions 
where appropriate.

 Reviewed the claim committee meeting minutes about
decision about impending claims.

 Tested a sample of claims payments with intimation 
letter, survey report, bank statement, claim payment 
register and general ledger.

 Finally assessed the appropriateness and presentation 
of disclosures against relevant accounting standards, 
Insurance Act 1938 (as amended in 2010), Insurance 
Rules, 1958 and other applicable rules and regulations 
and regulatory guidelines.

This account represents the claim due or intimated from 
the insured and involves significant management 
judgment and risk of understatement. In extreme 
scenario this item may have going concern implications 
for the company.

Estimated liability in respect of outstanding claims whether due or intimated and claim Payment

See note no 14 to the financial statements
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We tested the design and operating effectiveness of key 
controls around monitoring, valuation and updating of 
prices of the positions held by the company from trusted 
sources. Additionally, we performed the following:
 Obtained year-end share holding positions from the 

company and through directional testing assessed the 
completeness of the report.

 Ascertained the valuation of the holding as per IFRS 13.
 Reviewed and challenged the assumptions used for 

the valuation models for any unquoted securities.
 Recalculated unrealized gain or loss at the year end.
 Carried out cut-off testing to ensure unrealized gain or

loss was recognized in correct period.
 Obtained the CDBL report and share portfolio and cross

checked against each other to confirm unrealized gain 
or loss.

 Check the subsequent positioning of this unrealized 
amount after the year end.

 Finally assessed the appropriateness   and presentation
of disclosures against relevant accounting standards, 
Insurance Act 2010, Insurance Rules, 1958 and other 
applicable rules and regulations and regulatory guidelines.

The balance of investment in shares of the company at 
the year end was Tk. 78,344,735.

Insurance company makes a number of investments in 
the listed and unlisted capital market with a required 
regulatory limit. Income generated from the investments 
(realized gain and dividend received) is credited to the 
statement of Profit or Loss Appropriation Account. 
Unrealized capital gain or loss if any is transferred to the 
Investment Fluctuation Reserve subsequently or as per 
the policy of the company.

This item has significant impact on the earnings performance 
of the company and return to the shareholders and might 
be prone to misreporting as large unreported fall in the 
value of any holding may wipe out the value of the 
portfolio and hamper the distribution capability of the 
company

Investment In Shares

See note no 16 to the financial statements

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and 
tested the operational effectiveness of the Company's 
key controls over the recognition and measurement of 
Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities and the assumptions 
used in estimating the future taxable expense of the 
company.
We also assessed the completeness and accuracy of the 
data used for the estimations of future taxable 
expense/income.
We evaluated the reasonableness of key assumptions, 
timing of reversal of temporary differences and expiration 
of tax loss carry forwards, recognition and measurement 
of Deferred Tax Liability.
We assessed the adequacy of the company's disclosures 
setting out the basis of deferred tax liability balances and 
the level of estimation involved.
We also assisted in evaluating the tax implications, the 
reasonableness of estimates and calculations determined 
by management.
Finally assessed the appropriateness and presentation of 
disclosures against IAS 12 Income Tax.

The Company reported net deferred tax liability totaling 
Tk. 8,770,532 as at 31st December, 2021. Significant 
judgment is required in relation to deferred tax liability as 
their liability is dependent on forecasts of future profit-
ability over a number of years.

Measurement and Recognition Deferred Tax Liability

See note no 12 to the financial statements
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OtherInformation
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information in the 
Annual report other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for 
the other information.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information;we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements and 
Internal Controls
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
IFRSs, the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance Rules 1958, the Securities and Exchange Rules 
2020 and other applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as management determines is necessary 
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud orerror.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in thecir cumstances.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 
as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.



We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance Rules 1958, the Securities and 
Exchange Rules 2020 and relevant notifications issues by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, we also 
report that:
 a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were

necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;

 b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts, records and other statutory books as required by law have been kept 
by the Company so far as it appeared from our examinations of those books;

 c) The Company management has followed relevant provisions of laws and rules in managing the affairs of the 
Company and proper books of accounts, records and other statutory books have been properly maintained and 
(where applicable) proper returns adequate for the purposes of our audit have been received from branches 
not visited by us;

 d) As per section 63(2) of the Insurance Act 2010, in our opinion to the best of our knowledge and belief an 
according to the information and explanation given to us, all expenses of management wherever incurred and 
whether incurred directly or indirectly, in respect of insurance business of the company transacted in Bangladesh 
during the year under report have been duly debited to the related Revenue Accounts and the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income of the Company;

 e) We report that to the best of our information and as shown by its books, the company during the year under 
report has not paid any person any commission in any form, outside Bangladesh in respect of any its business 
re-insured abroad;

 f) The Statement of Financial Position, Profit and Loss Appropriation Account, Statement of Comprehensive 
Income,related Revenue Accounts, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows of the 
Company together with the annexed notes dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account 
and returns; and

 g) The expenditure was incurred for the purpose of the Company’sbusiness.

Firm’s Name: Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co. Chartered Accountants 

Signature :

Auditor’s Name: Kazi Mostafa Alam FCA, (Enr No.:448)                                               

Date: April 27, 2022

Place: Dhaka

DVC : 2205120448AS619977
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BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2021

31.12.2021 31.12.2020
RestatedCapital & Liabilities

Authorized Share Capital
100,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10/- each.                  1,000,000,000                 1,000,000,000 
Shareholders' Equity & Liabilities:
Shareholders' Equity:
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital 6.00                       442,500,000                      442,500,000 
Reserve or Contingency Account: 7.00                       524,462,125                      448,691,604 
Reserve for Exceptional Losses 7.01 400,593,092                     341,929,950 
Retained Earnings 7.03 123,869,033                     106,761,654 
Total Shareholders' Equity                     966,962,125                    891,191,604 

Balance of Funds and Accounts: 8.00                     242,047,956                    159,905,930 
Fire Insurance Business Account                         45,875,608                       32,708,376 
Marine Cargo Insurance Business Account                       117,110,826                       51,455,201 
Marine Hull Insurance Business Account                         12,325,648                       21,226,962 
Motor Insurance Business Account                         46,796,845                       39,453,561 
Miscellaneous Insurance Business Account                         19,939,029                       15,061,830 
Premium Deposits Account 9.00                         62,855,655                       59,014,086 

Liabilities and Provisions:                     732,549,952                    474,902,388 
Sundry Creditors-Including Provision for Expenses and Taxes 10.00                       272,618,478                      235,347,290 
Amount due to other persons or bodies 
Carrying on Insurance Business 11.00                       306,954,285                      105,334,751 
Deferred Tax Liability 12.00                          8,770,532                         7,253,382 
Lease Liability 13.00                         14,577,058                                     -   
Estimated liabilities in respect of outstanding
Claims whether due or intimated 14.00                       129,629,600                      126,966,965 
Total Shareholders' Equity and Liabilities                  2,004,415,688                 1,585,014,008 
Property & Assets:
Investment:                     153,344,735                      89,299,146 
Investment-At cost (BGTB) 15.00                         75,000,000                       25,000,000 
Investment in Shares 16.00                         78,344,735                       64,299,146 
Interest Accrued but not Due 17.00                         31,134,817                       25,149,968 
Right of Use of Asset 18.00                         13,394,886                                     -   
Amount Due from Other Persons or Bodies carrying on
Insurance Business 19.00                          1,200,851                         1,200,851 

Sundry Debtors-Including Advances, Deposits & Prepayments 20.00                       226,004,881                      198,793,581 
Cash and Bank Balances 21.00                    1,292,945,148                      995,722,192 

Other Account:                     286,390,370                    274,918,270 
Fixed Assets -At Cost less Depreciation 22.00                         49,235,456                       38,439,303 
Investment in Property 23.00                       236,659,542                      235,950,349 
Stock of Stationery 24.00                             495,372                            528,618 

Total Property & Assets                  2,004,415,688                 1,585,084,008 
Net Asset Value per Share (NAVPS) 33.00                                 21.85                                20.14 

Details of restatements disclosed in note no. 3.28

Firms' Name:  Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co. Chartered Accountants
Signature:
Auditor's Name : Kazi Mostafa Alam FCA, (Enr No.: 448)
Date : April 27, 2022
Place: Dhaka
DVC : 2205120448AS619977

Particulars Notes       Amount in Taka

ChairmanDirectorChief Executive Officer Director

The accompanying notes from 1 to 48 & Annexure-A to E form an integral part of the financial statements.
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BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS APPROPRIATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2021

31.12.2020

Balance brought forward from last year          86,571,422 
Net Profit before Tax b/d         151,576,413 

Adjustment for the application of IFRS-16 ( Lease)             (882,516)                       -   

Deferred Tax Income/Expenses 12(d)           (1,928,816)

     236,219,019 

Reserve for Exceptional Losses 7.01          36,792,438 

Income Tax Expenses:        39,564,927 
Current Tax 30.00          39,564,927 

Dividend Paid          53,100,000 

Balance Transferred to Statement of Financial Position         106,761,654 
Total      236,219,019 

Earnings Per Share (EPS) 31.00                     3.23                    2.49 

        296,488,212 

Amount in Taka
31.12.2021

            (1,517,150)

          192,126,223 

296,488,212

          47,581,037 

            58,663,142 

            47,581,037 

            66,375,000 

          123,869,033 

          106,761,654 

Notes Particulars

The accompanying notes from 1 to 48 & Annexure-A to E form an integral part of the financial statements.

ChairmanDirectorChief Executive Officer Director

Firms' Name : Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co. Chartered Accountants 

Signature :

Auditor's Name : Kazi Mostafa Alam FCA, (Enr No.: 448) 

Date : April 27, 2022

Place : Dhaka 
DVC : 2205120448AS619977
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BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMETN OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2021

31.12.2021

Expenses of Management ( Not Applicable to  
any particular Fund or Account)
Directors' Fees                 849,600                 800,400 
Meeting Expenses                 125,000                 125,000 
Advertisement & Publicity              1,013,535                 560,985 
Subscription & Registration              1,520,479              1,913,535 
Depreciation            14,835,670              8,021,858 
Finance Cost 13.00              1,238,249                         -   
Audit Fees                 695,750              1,339,750 

         20,278,283          12,761,528 
Worker's Profit Participation Fund 10.00              9,606,311              7,578,821 
Net Profit before tax          192,126,223          151,576,413 
Total        222,010,817        171,916,762 

Interest on FDR, STD and BGTB 25.00            74,119,612            71,349,856 
Gain on Sales of Fixed Assets                  64,721                         -   
Dividend Income in Share Business              2,116,002              1,937,707 
Rental Income              1,776,000              2,526,750 
Other Income                 103,276                         -   
Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Shares              4,581,553              2,597,018 
Unrealized Profit/(Loss) on Investment in Share              6,164,889              8,719,509 

Profit /(Loss) Transferred from:        133,084,764          84,785,922 
Fire Insurance Revenue Account                 766,775           (65,549,486)
Marine Insurance (Cargo) Revenue Account          103,308,099            86,524,099 
Marine Insurance (Hull) Revenue Account           (45,240,528)            (2,201,560)
Motor Insurance Revenue Account            64,991,944            45,629,819 
Miscellaneous Insurance Revenue Account              9,258,474            20,383,050 

Total        222,010,817        171,916,762 
Earnings Per Share (EPS) 31.00                      3.23                      2.49 

Amount in Taka
31.12.2020

Particulars Notes 

The accompanying notes from 1 to 48 & Annexure -A to E form an integral part of the financial statements.

ChairmanDirectorChief Executive Officer Director

Firms' Name : Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co. Chartered Accountants 

Signature :

Auditor's Name : Kazi Mostafa Alam FCA, (Enr No.: 448) 

Date : April 27, 2022

Place : Dhaka 
DVC : 2205120448AS619977
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BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2021

31.12.2021

Claims under the policies less Reinsurance:

Paid during the year       149,457,485 

   279,087,085 

Less: Outstanding claims at the end of the previous year       126,966,965 
   152,120,120 

Agency Commission 27.00         47,167,820 

Expenses of Management 26.00       229,683,884 

Reserve for un-expired risks of Premium Income for the year 8.00       242,047,956 

Profit Transferred to Statement of Profit or Loss Account       133,084,764 

Total    804,104,544 

Balance of Account at the beginning of the year       159,905,930 

Premium Less Reinsurance 29.00       586,631,418 

Commission on Reinsurance ceded         57,567,196 

Total    804,104,544 

Particulars
Amount in Taka

31.12.2020Notes

      129,629,600 
Total estimated liability in respect of outstanding claims at
the end of the year whether due or intimated 14.00

The accompanying notes from 1 to 48 & Annexure-A to E form an integral part of the financial statements.-

      112,443,801 

   239,410,766 

      161,493,512 
     77,917,254 

        75,250,554 

      158,632,085 

      159,905,930 

        84,785,921 

   556,491,744 

      149,028,203 

      367,924,381 

        39,539,160 

   556,491,744 

      126,966,965 

ChairmanDirectorChief Executive Officer Director

Firms' Name : Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co. Chartered Accountants 

Signature :

Auditor's Name : Kazi Mostafa Alam FCA, (Enr No.: 448) 

Date : April 27, 2022

Place : Dhaka 
DVC : 2205120448AS619977
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BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
FIRE INSURANCE REVENUE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2021

 31.12.2021 

Claims under the policies less Reinsurance:

Paid during the year 42,510,959 87,481,009
66,152,553 61,215,183

108,663,512 148,696,192
Less: Outstanding claims at the end of the previous year 61,215,183 54,444,116

47,448,329 94,252,076
Agency Commission 27.00 15,862,132 29,475,224
Expenses of Management 26.00 81,144,967 58,979,409

Reserve for un-expired risks being 40%

of Premium Income for the year 8.00 45,875,608 32,708,376

Profit Transferred to Statement of Profit or Loss Account 766,775 (65,549,486)
Total 191,097,811 149,865,600

Balance of Account at the beginning of the year 32,708,376 41,250,941
Premium Less Reinsurance 29.00 114,689,020 81,770,941

Commission on Reinsurance ceded 43,700,414 26,843,718

Total       191,097,811 149,865,600

Total estimated liability in respect of outstanding claims at
the end of the year whether due or intimated

 31.12.2020 
 Amount in Taka 

14.00

Notes Particulars

87,481,009

61,215,183

148,696,192

54,444,116

94,252,076
29,475,224
58,979,409

32,708,376

(65,549,486)
149,865,600

41,250,941
81,770,941

26,843,718

149,865,600

ChairmanDirectorChief Executive Officer Director

Firms' Name : Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co. Chartered Accountants 

Signature :

Auditor's Name : Kazi Mostafa Alam FCA, (Enr No.: 448) 

Date : April 27, 2022

Place : Dhaka 
DVC : 2205120448AS619977
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BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
MARINE CARGO INSURANCE REVENUE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2021

31.12.2020

Claims Under The Policies Less Reinsurance:

Paid during the year 29,906,684          3,005,716            

         67,418,030          33,078,330 
Less: Outstanding claims at the end of the previous year 30,072,614          51,855,004          

37,345,416        (18,776,674)      

Agency Commission 27.00 21,034,927          21,973,710          

Expenses of Management 26.00 72,833,777          47,304,088          

Reserve for un-expired risks being 40%

of premium income for the year

Profit Transferred to Statement of Profit or Loss Account 103,308,099        86,524,099          
Total 351,633,045            188,480,423 

Balance of Account at the beginning of the year 51,455,201          51,148,154          
Premium Less Reinsurance 29.00 292,777,064        128,638,002        

Commission on Reinsurance ceded 7,400,780            8,694,267 

Total        351,633,045        188,480,423 

Notes Particulars
Amount in Taka

31.12.2021

37,511,346          30,072,614          

           51,455,201 8.00          117,110,826 

Total estimated liability in respect of outstanding claims at the 
end of the year whether due or intimated 14.00

ChairmanDirectorChief Executive Officer Director

Firms' Name : Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co. Chartered Accountants 

Signature :

Auditor's Name : Kazi Mostafa Alam FCA, (Enr No.: 448) 

Date : April 27, 2022

Place : Dhaka 
DVC : 2205120448AS619977

Annual Report92



BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
MARINE HULL INSURANCE REVENUE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2021

31.12.2020

Claims under the policies less Reinsurance:
Paid during the year 52,415,000 -

14.00 10,149,446 -
62,564,446 -

Less: Outstanding claims at the end of the previous year - -
62,564,446 -

Agency Commission 27.00 676,295 3,180,329
Expenses of Management 26.00 3,811,197 6,313,557
Reserve for un-expired risks being 100% of 
premium income for the year 8.00 12,325,648 21,226,962
Profit Transferred to Statement of Profit or Loss Account (45,240,528) (2,201,560)
Total      34,137,058      28,519,288 

Balance of Account at the beginning of the year 21,226,962 7,226,246
Premium Less Reinsurance 29.00 12,325,648 21,226,962
Commission on Reinsurance ceded 584,448 66,080
Total      34,137,058      28,519,288

Amount in Taka
31.12.2021

Total estimated liability in respect of outstanding claims at 
the end of the year whether due or intimated

Particulars Notes 

ChairmanDirectorChief Executive Officer Director

Firms' Name : Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co. Chartered Accountants 

Signature :

Auditor's Name : Kazi Mostafa Alam FCA, (Enr No.: 448) 

Date : April 27, 2022

Place : Dhaka 
DVC : 2205120448AS619977
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BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
MOTOR INSURANCE REVENUE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2021

Claims under the policies less Reinsurance:
Paid during the year 23,149,290 20,503,796

     38,340,910 55,071,217
Less : Outstanding claims at the end of the previous year 34,567,421 53,894,392

3,773,489 1,176,825

Agency Commission 27.00 6,944,435 14,583,611
Expenses of Management 26.00 34,907,455 28,173,058
Reserve for un-expired risks being 40% 
of premium income for the year 8.00 46,796,845 39,453,561
Profit Transferred to Statement of Profit or Loss Account 64,991,944 45,629,819

Total   157,414,168 129,016,874

Balance of Account at the beginning of the year 39,453,561 30,022,280
Premium Less Reinsurance 29.00 116,992,113 98,633,902
Commission on Reinsurance ceded 968,494 360,692
Total   157,414,168 129,016,874

34,567,42114.00 15,191,620Total estimated liability in respect of outstanding claims at the 
end of the year whether due or intimated

Amount in Taka
31.12.2020

Particulars
31.12.2021

Notes 

ChairmanDirectorChief Executive Officer Director

Firms' Name : Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co. Chartered Accountants 

Signature :

Auditor's Name : Kazi Mostafa Alam FCA, (Enr No.: 448) 

Date : April 27, 2022

Place : Dhaka 
DVC : 2205120448AS619977
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BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
MISCELLANEOUS INSURANCE REVENUE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2021

31.12.2020

Claims under the policies less Reinsurance:
Paid during the year 1,475,552 1,453,280

         2,100,187 2,565,027
Less: Outstanding claims at the end of the previous year 1,111,747 1,300,000

           988,440 1,265,027
Agency Commission 27.00 2,650,031 6,037,680
Expenses of Management 26.00 36,986,488 17,861,973
Reserve for un-expired risks being 40% 
of premium income for the year 8.00 19,939,029 15,061,830

9,258,474 20,383,050

Total      69,822,463 60,609,559

Balance of Account at the beginning of the year 15,061,830 19,380,582
Premium Less Re-Insurance 29.00 49,847,573 37,654,574
Commission on Re-insurance ceded 4,913,060 3,574,403
Total 69,822,463 60,609,559

Amount in Taka

            624,635

31.12.2021Notes Particulars

Profit Transferred to Statement of Profit or Loss Account

Total estimated liability in respect of outstanding claims at the 
end of the year whether due or intimated

14.00 1,111,747

ChairmanDirectorChief Executive Officer Director

Firms' Name : Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co. Chartered Accountants 

Signature :

Auditor's Name : Kazi Mostafa Alam FCA, (Enr No.: 448) 

Date : April 27, 2022

Place : Dhaka 
DVC : 2205120448AS619977
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BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2021

Balance on 1st January, 2021 442,500,000 341,929,950                  -    106,761,654       891,191,604 
Net Profit before Tax - - -       192,126,223         192,126,223 
Deferred Tax Income/Expenses - - -         (1,517,150)           (1,517,150)
Provision for Income Tax - - -       (47,581,037)         (47,581,037)
Adjustment for the application of IFRS-
16 (Lease)

           (882,516)              (882,516)

Reserve for Exceptional Losses - 58,663,142 - (58,663,142)                        -   
Dividend Paid - - - (66,375,000)         (66,375,000)
Balance on 31st December, 2021 442,500,000 400,593,092                  -    123,869,034       966,962,126 

Balance on 1st January, 2020 442,500,000 305,137,512      8,719,509         86,571,422         842,928,443 
Piror Year Adjustment     (8,719,509)           (8,719,509)
RestatedBalanceas on January01,
2020 442,500,000 305,137,512                  -      86,571,422       834,208,934 

Net Profit before Tax - - -       151,576,413         151,576,413 
Deferred Tax Income/Expenses - - -         (1,928,816)           (1,928,816)
Provision for Income Tax - - -       (39,564,927)         (39,564,927)
Reserve for Exceptional Losses - 36,792,438 - (36,792,438)                        -   
Dividend Paid - - - (53,100,000)         (53,100,000)
Balance on 31st December, 2020 442,500,000 341,929,950                  -    106,761,654       891,191,604 

(Amount in Taka)

Profit or Loss 
Appropriation 

Account

Total 
Shareholders 

Equity
Particulars Share Capital

Reserve for 
Exceptional 

Losses

Investment 
Fluctuation 

Reserve

Share CapitalParticulars

(Amount in Taka)

Profit or Loss 
Appropriation 

Account

Investment 
Fluctuation 

Reserve

Reserve for 
Exceptional 

Losses

Total 
Shareholders 

Equity

ChairmanDirectorChief Executive Officer Director
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BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2021

31.12.2020

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Collection from Premium & Other Income 32.01 629,480,903 428,208,408
Payments for Management Expenses, Re-insurance & Claims 32.02 (239,736,747) (220,907,472)
Income Tax and Other Source Tax Paid 32.03 (25,347,774) (39,251,925)
Payment to Workers Profit Participation Fund 32.04 (7,578,821) (6,778,819)
Interest received on FDR,BGTB,STD and SND 32.05 71,058,514 68,392,356

427,876,075 229,662,548
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Acquisition of Fixed Assets (19,755,219) (14,942,259)
Sale Proceeds of Fixed Assets 300,000 -
Interest received on BGTB 3,061,098 2,957,500
Dividend Income from Share Business 2,116,002 1,937,707
Investment In BGTB (50,000,000) -

(64,278,119) (10,047,052)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Dividend Paid (66,375,000) (53,100,000)

(66,375,000) (53,100,000)
Net Cash Inflow/Outflow for the year 297,222,956 166,515,496
Opening Cash and Bank balances 995,722,192 829,206,696
Cash and Bank Balances 1,292,945,148 995,722,192

Net Operating Cash Flow per Share (NOCFPS) 34.00 9.67                      5.19

Particulars Amount in Taka
31.12.2021

Notes

ChairmanDirectorChief Executive Officer Director

Annual Report 97



BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
FORM "AA"

CLASSIFIED SUMMARY OF ASSETS AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2021

31.12.2021 31.12.2020
Bangladesh Govt.Treasury Bond (BGTB) 75,000,000 25,000,000  At Cost 

Investment in Shares 78,344,735 64,299,146  Market Value 

Fixed Deposit and STD Account with Bank 1,290,455,564 991,143,752  Book Value 

Cash in Hand 2,404,425 4,343,084  Do 

Stamp in Hand 85,159 235,356  Do 

Interest Accrued but not due 31,134,817  25,149,968  Do 

Amount due from other persons or bodies Carrying 
on Insurance business 1,200,851 1,200,851  Do 

Sundry Debtors Including Advances, Deposits & 
Prepayments 226,004,881 198,793,581  Do 

Right of Use of Asset 13,394,886 -   
Fixed Assets (At Cost less Depreciation) 49,235,456 38,439,303  Written Down Value  

Investment in Property 236,659,542 235,950,349  Written Down Value  
Stock of Stationery 495,372 528,618  At Cost 

Total 2,004,415,688 1,585,084,008

Class of Assets Book Value Remarks

ChairmanDirectorChief Executive Officer Director

Firms' Name : Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co. Chartered Accountants 

Signature :

Auditor's Name : Kazi Mostafa Alam FCA, (Enr No.: 448) 

Date : April 27, 2022

Place : Dhaka 
DVC : 2205120448AS619977
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BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2021

FORMING AN INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.00 Reporting Entity
1.01 Corporate Information–Domicile, Legal Form and Country of Incorporation

The Company was incorporated in Bangladesh as a Public Company Limited by Shares on the 21st day of May, 
1996 under the Companies Act, 1994 vide registration no. C-30696/(912)/96 and its commencement of 
business was started from 21st day of May, 1996 and the registration from the Controller of Insurance was 
received to start general insurance business on 18th day of June, 1996. The company also obtained license to 
operate its business from IDRA (Former Controller of Insurance) on 21st day of May, 1996. The company went 
into initial public offerings (IPO) on 21.04.2016 and listed in both Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. (DSE) and 
Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd. (CSE) as a publicly traded company.

Address of Registered Office
The registered office of the Company is located at 68, Motijheel Commercial Area (Level-15), Dhaka-1000. The 
operation of the company are being carried out through its 38 nos. of branches located all over Bangladesh 
with Head office at Rashid Tower (3rd Floor), Plot #11, Road # 18, Gulshan #1, Dhaka-1212.

1.02 Other Corporate Information
(i) Trade License: TRAD/DSCC/258637/2019, dated 27/08/2020.
(ii) e-TIN No: 518302864140, dated 01/09/2014.
(iii) VAT Registration No: 002063525-0101, dated.29/09/2019.

1.03 Principal Activities and Nature of Operation
The main objective of the Company is to carry on all kinds of insurance, guarantee and indemnity business 
other than life insurance business.

1.04 Presentation of Financial Statements
The presentation of these financial statements is in accordance with the guidelines provided by IAS 1: Presentation 
of financial statements. The financial statements comprise of: 

� Statement of Financial Position as at 31st December, 2021;

� Statement of Profit or Loss for the year ended 31st December, 2021;

� Profit or Loss Appropriation Account for the year ended 31st December, 2021;

� Consolidated Revenue Account for the year ended 31st December, 2021;

� Revenue Accounts (Fire, Marine Cargo, Marine Hull, Motor, Miscellaneous) for the year ended 31st December, 2021;

� Statement of Changes in Shareholders Equity for the year ended 31st December, 2021;

� Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st December, 2021;

� Form "AA", Classified Summary of Assets for the year ended 31st December, 2021;

� Notes comprising summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2.00 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
2.01 Basis of Accounting

The following underlying assumptions, measurement base, laws, rules, regulations and accounting 
pronouncement have been considered in preparing and presenting the financial statements:
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�   Generally accepted Accounting Principles and Policies in Bangladesh (GAAP);
�    Historical Cost Convention;
�   International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the Institute of  Chartered Accountants 
      of Bangladesh (ICAB);
�   International Accounting Standards (IAS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered  Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB);
�   The Companies Act, 1994;
�   The Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987;
�   The Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission Act, 1993;
�   The Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969;
�   The Insurance Act, 2010;
�   Insurance Rules, 1958 as no rule has yet been made in pursuance of Insurance Act, 2010;

2.02 Other Regulatory Compliances
 The Company is also required to comply with the following major legal provisions in addition to Companies 
Act, 1994 and other applicable laws and regulations:
The Income Tax Ordinance, 1984;
The Income Tax Rules, 1984;
The Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Act, 2012;
The Value Added Tax Rules, 1991;
The Stamp Act, 1899;
DSE/CSE Rules;
Listing Regulations, 2015;
Bangladesh Labour Act, 2006 (as amended to 2013)

2.03 Compliance with the Financial Reporting Standards as applicable in Bangladesh
The Company as per para-12 of Securities & Exchange Rule, 1987, has followed the International Accounting 
Standards (IAS's) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS's) as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) in preparing the financial statements.

Sl.
No. 
1 1 Presentation of Financial Statements Complied
2 2 Inventories Complied
3 7 Statement of Cash Flows Complied
4 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors Complied
5 10 Events after the Reporting Period Complied
6 11 Construction Contracts N/A
7 12 Income Taxes Complied
8 16 Property, Plant and Equipment Complied
9 17 Leases N/A
10 19 Employee Benefits Complied
11 20 Accounting for Govt. Grants and Disclosure of Govt. Assistance N/A
12 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates N/A
13 23 Borrowing Costs Complied
14 24 Related Party Disclosures Complied
15 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plan N/A
16 27 Separate Financial Statements N/A
17 28 Investment in Associated and Joint Venture  N/A
18 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economics  N/A
19 31 Interest in Joint Ventures N/A
20 32 Financial Instruments : Presentation  Complied
21 33 Earnings per Share Complied
22 34 Interim Financial Reporting  Complied
23 36 Impairment of Assets Complied

IAS
No. IAS Title

Compliance 
Status
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2.04 Basis of Presentation
 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the regulations as contained in Part I and as 
per Form "A" as set forth in Part II of the First Schedule, Revenue Account in accordance with the regulations 
as contained in Part I and as per Form "F" as set forth in Part II of Third Schedule, Profit and Loss Account in 
accordance with the regulations as contained in Part I and as per Form "B" as set forth in Part II of the Second 
Schedule, Profit and Loss Appropriation Account in accordance with regulations as contained in Part I and as 
per Form "C" as set forth in Part II of the Second Schedule of the Insurance Act, 1938 as amended Insurance 
Act, 2010. The Classified Summary of the Assets has been prepared in accordance with Form "AA" as set forth 
in Part II of the First Schedule. 

2.05 Consolidation
A separate set of records for consolidation of the statement of affairs and income and expense statement of 
the branches was maintained at the Head Office of the company based on which these financial statements 
have been prepared. All significant inter branch transactions are eliminated on consolidation. 

2.06 Basis of Measurement
 The financial statements have been prepared based on the accrual basis of accounting and prepare under the 
historical cost convention except for the revaluation of certain non current assets which are stated either at 
revaluated amount or fair market value as explained in the accompanying notes.

2.07 Accrual basis of Accounting 
 The Company prepares its financial statements, except for cash flow information, using the accrual basis of 
accounting. Since the accrual basis of accounting is used, the company recognizes items as assets, liabilities, 
equity, income and expenses (the elements of financial statements) when they satisfy the definitions and 
recognition criteria for those elements in the IFRS conceptual Framework.

Sl.
No. 
24 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets Complied
25 38 Intangible Assets N/A
26 40 Investment Property N/A
27 41 Agriculture N/A

IAS
No. IAS Title

Compliance 
Status

Sl.
No. 
1 1 First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards Complied
2 2 Share based Payment  N/A
3 3 Business Combinations N/A
4 4 Insurance Contracts Complied
5 5 Non-current Assets held for Sale and Discontinued Operations  N/A
6 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources N/A
7 7 Financial Instruments : Disclosures Complied
8 8 Operating Segments Complied
9 9 Financial Instrument Complied
10 10 Consolidated Financial Statements Complied
11 11 Joint Arrangements  N/A
12 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities Complied
13 13 Fair Value Measurement  Complied
14 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts N/A
15 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers Complied

IFRS
No. IFRS Title

Compliance 
Status
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2.08 Functional and Presentation Currency
 Functional and presentation currency items included in these financial statements are measured using the 
currency of the primary economic environment in which the company operates ('the functional currency'). 
These financial statements are presented in Bangladesh Taka ("BDT") which is also the functional currency of 
the company. The amounts in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest BDT except 
otherwise indicated.

2.09 Key Accounting Estimates and Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies
 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards including 
IAS's requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and for contingent 
assets and liabilities that require disclosure during and at the date of the financial statements. Actual results 
may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions of accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any 
future periods affected as required by IAS 8: "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and 
Errors". 

 In particular, the key areas of estimation, uncertainly and critical judgments in applying accounting policies 
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements include accrued 
expenses, inventory valuation and other payables.

2.10 Materiality, Aggregation and Off Setting
 Each material item as considered by management significant has been displayed separately in the financial 
statements. No amount has been set off unless the Company has legal right to set off the amounts and intends 
to settle on net basis. Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted by the relevant 
accounting standards. The values of assets or liabilities as shown in the statement of financial position are not 
off-set by way of deduction from another liability or asset unless there exist a legal right, therefore no such 
incident existed during the year.

2.11 Going Concern Assumption
 The financial statements are prepared on the basis of going concern assumption. As per management assessment 
there is no material uncertainties related to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

2.12 Comparative Information
 Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of 2020 in accordance with IAS-1 "Presentation of 
Financial Statements" for all numeric information in the financial statements and also the narrative and 
descriptive information where it is relevant for understanding of the current periods of financial statements. 
Prior year figure has been re-arranged wherever considered necessary to ensure comparability with the 
current period.

2.13 Events after the Reporting Period
 Where necessary all the material events after the reporting period have been considered and appropriate 
adjustment/disclosure have been made in the financial statements.

2.14 Responsibility for Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
 The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the financial statements as per 
requirements of Companies Act, 1994.

2.15 Reporting Period
 The reporting period of the Company covers one year from 1st day of January, 2021 to 31st December, 2021.
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2.16 Approval of Financial Statements
 The financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on the 27th April day of 2022.

3.00 Significant Accounting Principles and Policies selected and applied for significant transactions and events
 For significant transactions and events that have material effect, the Company's Directors selected and applied 
significant accounting principals and policies within the framework of IAS-1 Presentation of Financial Statements 
in preparation and presentation of financial statements that have been consistently applied throughout the 
year and were also consistent with those use in earlier years.

For proper understanding of the financial statements, accounting policies set out below in one place as 
prescribed by the IAS Presentation of Financial Statements:

 Assets and Basis of their Valuation
3.01 Property, Plant and Equipments
3.01.1 Recognition and Measurements

These are capitalized at cost of acquisition and subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation in 
compliance with the benchmark treatment of IAS 16 ''Property, Plant and Equipment''. The cost of acquisition 
of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working 
condition for its intended use inclusive of inward freight, duties and non-refundable taxes. 

In a situation where it can clearly be demonstrated that expenditure has resulted in an increase in future 
economic benefit expected to be obtained from the use of the fixed assets, the expenditure is capitalized as 
an additional cost of the assets. 

Cost also includes initial estimate of the costs of dismantling, removing the item and restoring this site 
(generally called asset retirement obligation) are recognized and measured in accordance with IAS 37: Provision, 
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. 

On retirement or otherwise disposal of fixed assets, the cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated and 
any gain or loss on such disposal is reflected in the statement of comprehensive income which is determined 
with reference to the net book value of assets and the net sales proceeds.

3.01.2 Maintenance Activities
 Expenditure incurred after the assets have been put into operation, such as repairs & maintenance is normally 
charged off as revenue expenditure in the year in which it is incurred. 

3.01.3 Subsequent Cost
 The Cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant & equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of 
the item if it is possible that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the company 
and its cost measured reliably. The cost of the day to day servicing of properly and equipment are recognized 
in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income as repairs and maintenance where it is 
incurred.

3.01.4 Depreciation on Tangible Fixed Assets
 As required in Paragraph 43 of IAS-16 Property and Equipment, depreciation in respect of all fixed assets is 
provided to amortize the cost of the assets after commissioning, over their expected useful economic lives in 
accordance with the provision of IAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment".

Depreciation on fixed assets excepting land is computed using diminishing balance method in amount 
sufficient to write-off depreciable assets over their estimated useful life. Depreciation has been charged on 
additions and when it is used. Expenditure for maintenance and repairs are expenses; major replacements, 
renewals and betterment are capitalized. 
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The cost and accumulated depreciation of depreciable assets retired or otherwise disposed off are eliminated 
from the assets and accumulated depreciation and any gain or loss on such disposal is reflected in the Statement of 
Profit or Loss Account for the year ended. The annual depreciation rates applicable to the principal categories 
are:

Category of Fixed Assets Rate of Depreciation
Building  5%
Office Equipments 20%
Furniture & Fixtures 10%
Office Decoration  30%
Books & Periodicals 20%
Car/ Motor Vehicles 25%
Telephone Installation  15%

 Full month depreciation is charged during the month of acquisition and no depreciation is charged during the 
month of disposal.

3.01.5 Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
 An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is removed from the statement of financial position when it is 
dispose off or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss on the 
disposal of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is included in the statement of income of the period in 
which the de-recognition occurs.

3.01.6 Impairment
The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment loss. If any such indication exists, recoverable amount is 
estimated to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any, impairment loss is recorded on judgmental 
basis, for which provision may differ in the future years based on the actual experience.

3.02 Investment in FDR and Shares
Investment is stated at its cost of acquisition and interest earned on statutory deposits lying with the Bangladesh 
Bank in the form Bangladesh Govt. Treasury Bond and the interest and profit earned on term deposit have 
been duly accounted for on accrual basis. The Statement of Profit or Loss also reflects the income on account 
of interest on investment in FDR, Bond, Shares and Miscellaneous Income.

It may be mentioned here that a fluctuation reserve has been created in order to equalize the price go down 
below the cost price of the shares. During the year under audit loss on realization of investment in shares for 
price go down below the cost price of the shares has been charged directly to statement of other comprehensive 
income in order to equalize the price of the shares.

3.03 Sundry Debtors (Including Advance, Deposits and Pre-Payments)
 These are carried at original invoice amounts, which represent net realizable value.

3.04 Other Current Assets
Other current assets have a value on realization in the ordinary course of the company's business which is at 
least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the Statement of Financial Position.

3.05 Inventories
In compliance with the requirement of IAS 2 "Inventories", inventories are stated at the lower of cost and 
net realizable value. Net realizable value is based on estimated selling price less any further cost expected to 
be incurred to make the sale. The amount recognized in the financial statements has been valued by the 
management considering the above method.
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3.06 Revenue Recognition
In compliance with the requirements of IFRS 15 "Revenue" is recognized to the extent that it is probable that 
the economic benefits will flow to the entity and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue represents 
invoiced value of policies. Revenue recognized when the policies are made.

The Company recognizes as revenue the amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects 
to be entitled in exchange for goods or services when (or as) it transfers control to the customer. To achieve 
that core principle, this standard establishes a five-step model as follows:

� Identify the contract with a customer;
� Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
� Determine the transaction price;
� Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
� Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Considering the five steps model, the company recognizes revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a 
performance obligation by transferring a promised goods to a customer. Goods is considered as transferred 
when (or as) the customer obtains control of that goods. Revenue from sale of goods is measured at the fair 
value of the consideration received or receivable net of returns and allowances, trade discounts, rebates and 
Value Added Tax (VAT).

- Premium Recognition
Premium is recognized when insurance policies are issued, but the premium of company's share of public 
sector insurance business (PSB) is accounted for in the year in which the statements are received from 
Sadharan Bima Corporation.

 - Revenue Account
 While preparing the Revenue Account, the effect of necessary adjustment has duly been given in to accounts 
in respect of re-insurance business ceded and accepted. Re-Insurance Premium ceded has been accounted for 
into accounts.

 Surplus or deficit on revenue has been arrived at after providing for un-expired risks @ 40% on all business 
except Marine Hull Insurance for which 100% provision has been created for un-expired risks.

 - Premium and Claim
The total amount of premium earned on various classes insurance business underwritten during the period has 
been duly accounted for in the books of account of the Company and while preparing the financial statements 
the effect of re-insurance ceded as well as the effect of total estimated liabilities in respect of outstanding 
claims at the end of the period whether due or intimated have also been reflected in order to arrive at the net 
underwriting profit for the period.

 - Management Expenses
The management expenses charged to Revenue Account amounting to Tk. 22,96,83,884 represent approximately 
26.39% of Gross Premium of Tk. 870,268,073 (including public sector business). The said management 
expenses have been apportioned 35.33% to fire, 31.71% to marine (cargo), 1.66% to marine (hull), 15.20% 
to motor and 16.10% to miscellaneous business as per activity/Premium Income.

3.07 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For the purposes of the Statement of Financial Position and Cash Flows, cash in hand and bank balances 
represents cash and cash equivalents considering the IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements" and IAS 7 
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"Cash Flow Statement" which provide, that cash and cash equivalents are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash and are subject to an in significant risks of changes in value and are not restricted as to use. 

3.08 Statement of Cash Flows 
The Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared in accordance with the requirements IAS 7: Statement of Cash 
Flows. The cash generated from operating activities has been presented using the Direct Method as prescribed 
by the Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987 and considering the provisions of Paragraph 19 of IAS 7 which 
provided that "Enterprises are Encouraged to Report Cash Flow From Operating Activities Using the Direct 
Method".

3.09 Operating Segments 
 No operating segment is applicable for the Company as required by IFRS 8 : Operating Segments as the 
Company has only one operating segments and the operation of Company is within the geographical territory 
in Bangladesh.

3.10 Taxation
Income Tax expense comprises current and deferred taxes. Income tax expense is recognized in profit or loss 
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity 
in accordance with IAS 12: Income Tax.

(a) Current Tax:
 Current Tax has been provided on the estimated taxable profit for the year under review at 37.50% tax 
rate being the tax rate applicable for the publicly traded Insurance Company. It also includes adjustments 
for earlier year's short/excess provision.

(b) Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the 
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and are 
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. 

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax 
assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that the taxable profits will be available against 
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax loses or unused tax credits can be utilized. Such 
assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial 
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that 
affects neither the taxable profit nor accounting profit.

Considering the practices generally followed in Bangladesh the company have been reserved deferred 
tax assets or deferred tax liabilities in accordance with IAS 12 "Income Tax".

 (c) Provision for Income Tax
 Basis of Provision for Income Tax: Net Profit -Reserve for exceptional loss x tax rate.

3.11 Dividend
 15% Cash Dividend has been paid for the year 2020.
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3.12 Cost of Post Employment Benefits
 The company maintains a defined contribution plan for its eligible permanent employees. The eligibility is 
determined according to the terms and conditions set forth in the trust deed and rules. The plan is funded and 
recognized / approved under Income Tax Ordinance, 1984 by the National Board of Revenue (NBR).

(i) Contributory Provident Fund
The company has a contributory provident fund for its regular employees. The fund is approved by the 
National Board of Revenue (NBR), administered separately by a Board of Trustees and is contributed 
equally by the Company and the employees.

 (ii) Incentive Bonus
The company has a policy namely incentive bonus scheme for its employees who meets certain criteria 
based on their annual performance bonus ascertained on net profit with approval in the Annual General 
Meeting and the expenses accounted for in the year to which same relates.

 (iii) Worker's Profit Participant Fund 
Worker's Profit Participation Fund has been created by the Company which is five percent (5%) of net 
profit before tax after charging the contribution to WPPF as per Section 232, 233, 234, 235, 240, 241, 
242, 243, 248, 249 and 250 of the Bangladesh Labour Law 2012. Under this law a trusty board is formed 
and registered for maintenance of this fund.

3.13 Other Corporate Debt, Accounts Payable, Trade and Other Liabilities
 These liabilities are carried at the anticipated settlement amount in respect of policies and services received, 
whether or not billed by the policyholder and the supplier.

3.14 Financial Instruments and Derivatives
 Primary Financial Instruments (Financial Assets and Liabilities)

The disclosure of primary financial instruments carried at the Statement of Financial Position date alongwith 
the recognition methods and risks involved are summarized in Note 44 in accordance with the provisions of 
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: "Disclosure and Presentation.

3.15 Derivative Financial Instruments
The Company is not a party to any derivative contract at the Statement of Financial Position date, such as 
forward exchange contract, currency swap agreement or interest rate option contract to hedge currency 
exposure related to import of raw materials and others or principal and interest obligations of foreign currency 
loans.

3.16 Capitalization of Borrowing Costs
 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily 
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost 
of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist 
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds as per IAS 23: 
Borrowing Costs.

3.17 Accruals, Provisions and Contingencies

 (a) Accruals 
Accruals are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or supplied but have not been paid, 
invoiced or formally agreed with the supplier, including amounts due to employees. Accruals are reported as 
part of trade and other payables
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(b) Provisions
A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the company has a legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provision is ordinarily 
measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting 
date. Where the company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recog-
nized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any 
provision is presented in the income statement net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of 
money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the 
risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of 
time is recognized as a finance cost. During the reporting year the company has made sufficient provisions 
where applicable.

 (c) Contingencies
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within 
the control of the company; or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because 
it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only 
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the company. At the reporting date the company does not have any contingent asset.

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognized in the statement of financial position of the company.

3.18 Earnings per Share (EPS)
Earnings Per Share (EPS) are calculated in accordance with the International Accounting Standard IAS-33 
"Earnings Per Share".

Basic Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of 
the entity by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. The Basic EPS of 
previous year has been restated to adjust the effect of bonus issue of shares during the year.

Diluted Earnings Per Share
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per shares, an entity adjusts profit or loss attributable to each 
ordinary equity holders of the entity, and weighted average number of shares outstanding, for the effects of 
all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Diluted EPS is only calculated where the company has commitment to issue ordinary shares in future at reporting 
date. No such commitment is hold by company at reporting date.

3.19 Reserve for Exceptional Losses
Provision for exceptional losses has been made during the year under audit.

3.20 Recognized Gains and Losses
No gain or loss was directly dealt with though the shareholders equity without being recognized in the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income. Therefore, net profit after tax for the year is the total recognized gains.
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3.21 Historical Cost Income and Expenditure
 As there was no extra ordinary item, there was no difference in profit from ordinary activities before taxation 
and the net profit before tax. Furthermore, as there was no revaluation of fixed assets in previous years and 
during the year under review, there was no factor like the differences between historical cost depreciation and 
depreciation on revalued amount, realization of revenue surplus on retirement or disposal of assets etc. Therefore, 
no separate note of historical cost profit and loss has been presented.

3.22 Related Party Disclosure
As per International Accounting Standard, IAS-24: 'Related Party Disclosures', parties are considered to be 
related if one of the parties has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the 
other party in making financial and operating decisions. The Company carried out transactions in the ordinary 
course of business on an arm's length basis at commercial rates with its related parties. Related party disclosures 
have been given in Note 33 (b).

3.23 Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
The results for the year were not materially affected by the following:
(a)  transactions of a nature not usually undertaken by the company:
(b)  circumstances of an exceptional or non-recurring nature:
(c)  charges or credits relating to prior years:

3.24 Classified Summary of Assets
The valuation of all assets as at 31st December, 2021 as shown in the Statement of Financial Position and in 
the classified summary of assets in Form "AA" annexed with the report has been reviewed and the said assets 
have been set-forth in the Statement of Financial Position at amount not exceeding their realizable or market 
value in aggregate.

3.25 Share of Public Sector Business
Company's Share of Public Sector business is accounted for in the period in which the complete set of accounts 
from Sadharan Bima Corporation (SBC) is received. During the period the company has included 4 (Four) 
quarters of its share of the Public Sector business as confirmed by the Sadharan Bima Corporation (SBC) in 
the following manner:

3.26      Leases (IFRS-16)
The company recognizes the right-of-use assets (RoU) at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date 
the underlying asset is available for use). RoU assets are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation 
and impairment of losses and adjusted cost incurred, and lease payment made at or before the commencement 
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over the 
lease term, or remaining period of the lease term. The company assessed all lease contracts live in 2019 and 
recognized as RoU of assets of all leases, except short term and low value of assets as per the company own 
policy set as per IAS- 16 and IFRS-16. As leases under IFRS 16 has been first time adopted by the company.

Lease Liability
At the commencement of the lease, the company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of 
lease payments initial payment), and amount is expected to be paid under residual value of guarantees. The

Period Particulars of Quarter No.
1st July, 2020 to 30th Sept, 2020 3rd Quarter of 2020 1 (One)
1st Oct, 2020 to 31st December, 2020 4th Quarter of 2020 1 (One)
1st Jan, 2021 to 31st March , 2021 1st Quarter of 2021 1 (One)
1st April, 2021 to 30th June , 2021 2nd Quarter of 2021 1 (One)
Total  4 (Four)
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lease payments also include the exercise price of purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the 
company and payment of penalties for terminating the lease. to be made over the lease term. The lease 
payments include fixed and variable lease payment (less any adjustment for terminating the lease term).

3.27     Reclassification
Investment in Property amounting Tk. 236,659,542 and 235,950,349 respectively inadvertently included in 
Fixed Asset which have been reclassified during this year and the previous year.

3.28     Restatements
Marketable securities held for trading but unrealized profit/(loss) on investment in share inadvertently shown 
under other comprehensive income instead of charging the same in the statement of profit and loss which has 
been rectified during this year. Hence, last year figures of unrealized profit/(loss) on investment in share, 
investment fluctuation reserve and related deferred tax liability have been restated accordingly. As because of 
this restatements there is no material effect occurs on the statement of financial position at the beginning of 
the proceeding period third balance sheet is not required as per IAS-1, para 40 A(b).

4.00 Number of Employees
 There were 659 Employees at the period ended for 31st December, 2021 whose salary exceeds Tk. 8,000.00 
per month.

5.00      General
These notes form an integral part of the financial statements and accordingly are to be read in conjunction 
therewith. Figures shown in the accounts have been rounded off to the nearest taka.

Chief Executive Officer 1
Additional Managing Director 4
Deputy Managing Director 4
Assistant Managing Director 9
Chief Financial Officer 1
Senior Executive Vice President 9
Senior Vice President 12
Senior Deputy Vice President 5
Deputy Vice President 18
Senior Assistant Vice President 0
Assistant Vice President 18
Senior Manager 22
Manager   81
Other Employees 475
Total   659

Particulars No. of Employees
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31.12.2021 31.12.2020
6.00

100,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10/= each. 1,000,000,000  1,000,000,000 

44,250,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10/- each fully paid up in cash 442,500,000     442,500,000    
As  detailed below :

% Taka % Taka

60.13                266,088,200 59.54                263,500,000    

39.87                176,411,800 40.46                179,000,000    
17.50                77,451,660   8.99                  39,742,010      
0.09                  378,650        0.05                  209,160           

22.28                98,581,490   31.42                139,048,830    
100.00              442,500,000 100.00              442,500,000    

2021 2020 2021 2020

1 - 0.004                -                   
- - -                    -                   

11 8 22.87                16.86               
10,00,001-20,00,000 3 5 7.62                  13.04               

4 4 29.64                29.64               

1,283 1,583 1.78                  2.68                 
63 95 1.04                  1.74                 
75 146 4.02                  8.45                 
23 37 3.74                  6.48                 
9 16 2.60                  5.50                 

14 11 10.67                7.65                 
7 3 9.83                  5.25                 
2 1 6.19                  2.71                 

1,495 1,909 100                   100                  

7.00 524,462,125          448,691,604 
This is made up as follows:
Reserve for Exceptional Losses (7.01) 400,593,092     341,929,950    
Investment Fluctuation Reserve (7.02) -                    -                   

123,869,033     106,761,654    
524,462,125     448,691,604    

7.01 Reserve for Exceptional Losses 400,593,092          341,929,950 

This is made up as follows:
Opening Balance 341,929,950     305,137,512    
Add: During the year 58,663,142       36,792,438      
Total 400,593,092     341,929,950    

10,00,001-20,00,000
Total

Less than 5000 shares
5,001-10,000

Retained Earnings (7.03)

2,00,001-5,00,000

2020

Group-A Sponsors & Directors:
2,66,08,820 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10 each fully Paid in cash
Group-B Others:

2) Foreign:

Group-B

5,00,001-10,00,000

20,00,001-45,00,000

5,00,001-10,00,000

AMOUNT (TK.)

Authorized Share Capital

1,76,41,180 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10 each fully Paid in cash
1) Institute:

SHARE CAPITAL

Number of Shareholders

The distribution schedule as of 31st December, 2021 showing the number of shareholders and their shareholding in
percentages is desclosed below as requirement of the "Listing Regulation" of Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. (DSE) and
Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd. (CSE):

Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital

3) General Public:
Total

Particulars 2021

Total Holding%

50,001-5,00,000

Classification of Shareholder's by Holding

Range of Holdings in Number of Shares

Reserve or Contingency Account

Group-A 
Less than 5000 Shares

10,001-50,000
50,001-1,00,000
1,00,001-2,00,000

This representsprofit set-asideup to the year under review as expensesto meet exceptionallosses. This reserve has been
created as per requirement of paragraph 6(2) of 4th Schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance, 1984.

The company has made the reserve for exceptional losses amounting to Tk.5,86,63,142 against net premium income earned
during the year as detailed below:
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Fire Insurance      114,689,020       81,770,941
Marine Cargo Insurance Business      292,777,064     128,638,002
Marine Hull Insurance Business       12,325,648       21,226,962
Motor Insurance      116,992,113       98,633,902
Miscellaneous Insurance Business       49,847,573       37,654,574
Total   586,631,418   367,924,382

31.12.2021 31.12.2020

7.02                     -         8,719,509

This is made up as follows:
                   -           8,719,509
                   -         (8,719,509)
                    -                       -   

7.03 123,869,033   106,761,654

This is made up as follows:
Opening Balance      106,761,654       86,571,422
Add: Profit for the year      192,126,223     151,576,413
Adjustment for the application of IFRS-16 (Lease)          (882,516)
Add : Deferred Tax Income ( Note: 12.00 )        (1,517,150)       (1,928,816)

  296,488,212   236,219,019
Less: Reserve & Provisions:   172,619,179   129,457,365
Reserve for Exceptional Losses       58,663,142       36,792,438
Provision for Income Tax       47,581,037       39,564,927

66,375,000      53,100,000      
  123,869,033   106,761,654

8.00   242,047,956   159,905,930

Percentage Amount (Tk.) Amount (Tk.)
Fire 40%       45,875,608       32,708,376 
Marine Cargo 40%      117,110,826       51,455,201 
Marine Hull 100%       12,325,648       21,226,962 
Motor 40%       46,796,845       39,453,561 
Miscellaneous 40%       19,939,029       15,061,830 
Total   242,047,956   159,905,930 

9.00 Premium Deposits Account     62,855,655     59,014,086 

Class of Business:
Marine Cargo Insurance

62,855,655   59,014,086   

AMOUNT (TK.)

Opening Balance

Dividend Paid

Investment Fluctuation Reserve

Retained Earnings

Balance of Funds and Accounts

Less: Pirior year adjustment

Classes of Business

62,855,655      59,014,086      

This represents Reserve for un-expired risks provided against the Net Premium Income including Public Sector Business 
of the year at the rate of 40% on different classes of business except Marine Hull Insurance for which 100% as shown 
below:

Balance on this account represents net premium received against cover notes for which no policy has been issued within 
31st December, 2021.
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10.00   272,618,478   235,347,290 

The balance is made as under: 

Liability for Agency Commission 7,151,952        2,534,791       
Income Tax Deducted on Salary 332,680          237,540          
Provision for Salary 6,078,450        5,188,525       
Provision for Audit Fees 350,750          1,339,750       
Provision for Income Tax (Company) 238,890,914    209,911,281    
Provision for VAT/ VAT Payable 5,556,409        4,724,011       
Liability for Insurance Stamp 1,907,410        1,559,160       
Provision for Bills Payable 2,247,748        1,287,815       
Provision for Provident Fund 495,854          985,596          

9,606,311        7,578,821       
272,618,478 235,347,290

10.01 Worker's Profit Participitation Fund 9,606,311           7,578,821 

This is made up as follows:

Opening Worker's Profit Participitation Fund 7,578,821        6,778,819       
9,606,311        7,578,821       

17,185,132      14,357,640      
Less: Paid         7,578,821         6,778,819 

      9,606,311       7,578,821 

11.00 Amount due to Other Persons or Bodies Carrying on Insurance Business   306,954,285   105,334,751 

A.

16,022            16,022            
84,735            84,735            
97,649            97,649            
47,040            47,040            
24,555            24,555            

101,600          101,600          
16,926            16,926            

          388,527          388,527 
B.   306,565,758   104,946,224 

  306,565,758   104,946,224 
  306,954,285   105,334,751 

12.00 Deffered Tax Liabilities       8,770,532       7,253,382 
a)

49,235,457      38,439,304      
48,113,537      41,457,028      

      1,121,920 (3,017,724)   
37.50% 37.50%

          420,720     (1,131,647)

    b
        6,164,889         8,719,509 

10% 10%
          616,489          871,951 

Unrealized Gain
Unrealized Gain for 
Applicable Tax Rate
Deferred Tax ( Assets ) / Liabilites

Deferrd Tax Liabilities are arrived at as follows :

Book value of Depreciable Fixed Assets

Taxable Temporary Difference 
Applicable Tax Rate

Bangladesh General Insurance Co. Ltd.

Less: Tax Base Value

Total (A+B)

Global Insurance Co. Ltd.
Janata Insurance Co. Ltd.

Re-Insurance Creditors (SBC)
Sub Total

Eastern Insurance Co. Ltd.
Provati Insurance Co. Ltd.

Mercantile Insurance Co. Ltd.

Deferred Tax ( Assets ) / Liabilites

Add: During the year worker's profit participitation fund

Phoenix Insurance Co. Ltd.

Co-Insurance Premium Payable:

Worker's Profit Participation Fund (10.01)

This representsbalance of account with various Private/PublicSector InsuranceCompanies in respect of co-insurance/re-
insurance transactions and amount payable to co-insurer/re-insurer. The break up of the above amount is noted below:

Sundry Creditors Including Provision for Expenses and Taxes

Sub Total

31.12.2021 31.12.2020
AMOUNT (TK.)
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c)

     236,659,542     235,950,349 
     216,037,348     215,915,475 
      20,622,194       20,034,874 

37.50% 37.50%
7,733,323     7,513,078     

8,770,532     7,253,382     

   d)
7,253,382        5,324,566       
8,770,532        7,253,382       

(1,517,150)    (1,928,816)   

13.00 Lease Liability
Opening Balance       20,898,479                    -   
Add: Finance Cost         1,238,249                    -   
Less: Payment         7,559,670                    -   
Closing amount as at december 31, 2021     14,577,058                     -   

14.00 129,629,600   126,966,965 
The break up of the above amount is noted below: 

TOTAL
31.12.2020

Fire        66,152,553                 -         61,215,183 
Marine Cargo        37,511,346                 -         30,072,614 
Marine Hull        10,149,446       10,149,446                    -   
Motor        15,191,620                 -         34,567,421 
Miscellaneous            624,635                 -           1,111,747 
Total   129,629,600                  -     126,966,965 

PROPERTY & ASSETS

15.00 Investments at Cost     75,000,000     25,000,000 

Amount (Tk.) 
31.12.2020

        9,000,000 

      16,000,000 

      50,000,000                    -   

Total     25,000,000 

Deferred Tax Calculation on investment on Property:

Book value of Depreciable Fixed Assets

Applicable Tax Rate

Particulars

Deferred Tax ( Assets ) / Liabilites  (A+B+C)

Deferred Tax Expenses/ (Income)
Opening Deferred Tax Liabilites

CLASSES OF BUSINESS

Taxable Temporary Difference 

        15,191,620 

TOTAL

Estimated Liabilities in Respect of Outstanding Claims whether Due or Intimated 

        37,511,346 

Amount (Tk.) 
31.12.2021

PUBLIC 
SECTOR

PRIVATE 
SECTOR

Less: Tax Base Value

        16,000,000 

1 No. 10 (Ten) years Bangladesh Govt. Treasury Bond at Face Value of Tk. 90,00,000 
each vide instrument ID BD0922301108 Date 15-02-2012

It is noted that the above investment to be renewed after the expiration of the above mentioned 10 (Ten) years period.

      75,000,000 

1 No. 10 (Ten) years Bangladesh Govt. Treasury Bond at Face Value of Tk. 1,60,00,000 
each vide instrument ID BD0923341103 Date 13-03-2013 BP ID BDNICCNCC BP Tk. 
1,60,00,000

          9,000,000 

31.12.2021
        66,152,553 

Deferred Tax ( Assets ) / Liabilites

Closing Deferred Tax Liabilites
Deferred Tax Income/(Expenses)

            624,635 
    129,629,600 

The above amount representsthe value of 10 (Ten) years BangladeshGovt.TreasuryBond at cost kept with NationalCredit
& Commerce Bank Ltd. accordingto the provisionof Section23 (B) of InsuranceAct, 2010 (The 1st Scheduleitem 2 (B) as
detailed below: 

1 No. 10 (Ten) years Bangladesh Govt. Treasury Bond at Face Value of Tk. 5,00,00,000 
each vide instrument ID ISIN NO BD0927101107 Date 18-10-2017 Tk. 5,00,00,000

31.12.2021 31.12.2020
AMOUNT (TK.)
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16.00 Investment in Shares     78,344,735     64,299,146 

20000 31.09         621,800 26.00              520,000          
SumitPower 5000 48.72         243,600 38.90              194,500          
Dgic 3000 10.00          30,000 40.90              122,700          
Egen 2490 10.00          24,900 47.50              118,275          
Esquirent 41780 45.00      1,880,100 35.00              1,462,300       
KFL 48769 10.00         487,690 10.00              487,690          
Masteragro 13324 10.00         133,240 9.60                127,910          
Nialco 41297 10.00         412,970 10.10              417,100          
Oryzaagro 27244 10.00         272,440 10.40              283,338          

10878 10.00         108,780 56.60              615,695          
5000 57.76         288,800 71.90              359,500          

131000 226.46      4,656,435 88.30              11,567,300      
133752 29.92      2,041,187 13.80              1,845,778       

7566 71.43         540,450 51.30              388,136          
1865 9.53          17,764 44.80              83,552            

135604 10.00      1,356,040 34.60              4,691,898       
SbacBank 56847 9.62         546,610 15.20              864,074          

43070 215.65      4,433,844 85.90              3,699,713       
715418 23.01    16,465,909 25.50              18,243,159      

- 
0 0 -              10,252,117      

1443904 848.19 34,562,559 716.30 56,344,735   

200000 110    22,000,000 22,000,000      
200000 110    22,000,000 22,000,000   

1643904 958.19 56,562,559 78,344,735   

17.00 Interest Accrued but not Due (On FDR & Bangladesh Govt. Treasury Bond)                       31,134,817     25,149,968 
This is made up as follows: 

Interest on FDR  17.01       30,048,149       24,166,898 
Interest on BGTB 17.02         1,086,668            983,070 

    31,134,817     25,149,968 

17.01 Interest on FDR     30,048,149     27,026,703 

      69,897,701       67,397,553 
      24,166,898       27,026,703 
      94,064,599       94,424,256 
      64,016,450       70,257,358 
      30,048,149       24,166,898 

Crystlins
BSC
MJL BD

IslamicFic

IPO Share:
Balance with Stock Broker
Sub Total

One Bank Ltd.
Runner Auto
Seapearl
ROBI

Add: Interest Accrued Last year

Less: Collection Interest during the year
Interest Accrued during the year

B.Unlisted Securities at cost:

This is made up as follows:

Interest Income

The market price of investment in shares as per requirement of IAS-39 has been shown as under:

Market Value 
31.12.2021Acquisition 

cost

Total

Energyprima Ltd.
Sub Total

31.12.2021
Name of the Company No. of 

Shares
Value at Cost 

Per Share
Market value 

Per Share

Total ( A+B )

SPCL
Uttara Bank Ltd.

A. Listed Securities at cost:

31.12.2021 31.12.2020
AMOUNT (TK.)
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31.12.2021 31.12.2020
AMOUNT (TK.)

17.02 Interest on BGTB       1,086,668          983,070 

        3,061,098         2,957,500 
           983,070            983,070 
        4,044,168         3,940,570 
        2,957,500         2,957,500 
      1,086,668          983,070 

18.00 Right of Use of Asset
Cost (A)
Opening Balance                     -                       -   
Addition during the year       20,015,962                     -   
Closing Balance     20,015,962                    -   
Depreciation (B)
Opening Balance                     -                       -   
Depreciation Charge during the year         6,621,077                     -   
Closing Balance       6,621,077                    -   
Written down value as at December 31, 2021 (A-B)     13,394,886                    -   
(Details are shown in Annexure -E)

19.00 Amount Due from Other Persons or Bodies Carrying on Insurance Business       1,200,851       1,200,851 

Green Delta Insurance Co. Ltd. 211,917 211,917         
 

Rupali Insurance Co. Ltd. 20,151            20,151           
 

Central Insurance Co. Ltd. 807,750          807,750         
 

Prime Insurance Co. Ltd. 19,927            19,927           
 

Northern General Insurance Co. Ltd. 141,106          141,106
 

Grand Total 1,200,851     1,200,851     

20.00 Sundry Debtors (Including Advances Deposits & Pre-payments)   226,004,881   198,793,581 
The break up of the above is as under: 

Particulars Amount (Tk.) 
31.12.2021

Amount (Tk.) 
31.12.2020

Deposit Clearing         5,676,282         4,625,237 
Rental Income Receivable            148,000            119,700 
Security Deposits Against Telephone              58,000             58,000 
Advance against Office Rent         8,496,448         7,631,322 
Advance against Salary              50,945            131,890 
Advance Income Tax (Company)      209,688,804     184,857,432 
Income Tax Paid Against Protest         1,886,402         1,370,000 

  226,004,881   198,793,581 

21.00 Cash and Bank Balances 1,292,945,148

1,292,945,148

  995,722,192 
The above amount is made up as follows:

  1,173,895,442     915,710,977 
     116,560,121       75,432,775 
        2,404,425         4,343,084 

Stamps in Hand              85,159            235,356 
  995,722,192 

12 Month above
12 Month above
12 Month above
12 Month above

Period
0-1 Month
1-3 Month

12 Month above

Cash at Bank (Short Term Deposit Account)- Annexure-B

Total

Fixed Deposit Receipts -Annexure-A

Total

This is made up as follows:

The above amount represents the total receivable from various persons or bodies carrying on insurance business as
co-insurance as on 31st December, 2021. The details of which are given below: 

Less: Collection Interest during the year

Cash in Hand -Annexure-C

Add: Interest Accrued Last year

Interest Accrued during the year

Name of the Person or Bodies

Interest Income

Fixed Deposit Receipts (FDR) : 
FDR issued by different Bank in favour of the Company. 
Short Term Deposit Account & Cash in Hand:
     a) STD Balances are in agreement with Bank balance of respective account, where necessary reconciliation was done.
     b) Cash Balances have been certified by the local management.
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31.12.2021 31.12.2020
AMOUNT (TK.)

22.00 Fixed Assets Less Depreciation (Annexure - D)     49,235,456     38,439,302 

     104,632,270       94,190,011 
      16,455,219       10,442,259 
           300,000                    -   
  120,787,489   104,632,270 

      66,192,967       60,898,275 
        5,623,786         5,294,692 
           264,721                    -   
    71,552,033     66,192,968 
    49,235,456     38,439,302 

23.00 Investment in Property Less Depreciation (Annexure-D)
This is arrived at as under:

Opening amount as on January 01, 2021      264,758,950     260,258,950 
Add: Addition during the year         3,300,000         4,500,000 
 Less: Sales during the year                    -                      -   

  268,058,950   264,758,950 

Less: Depreciation
Dep. as on January 01,2021       28,808,601       26,081,435 
Depreciation charged during the year         2,590,807         2,727,166 
Accumulation depreciation     31,399,408     28,808,601 

Balance as on December 31, 2021   236,659,542   235,950,349 

24.00 Stock of Stationery           495,372          528,618 

This is made up as follows:
528,618          939,507          

2,962,866        2,280,326       
3,491,484        3,219,833       
2,996,112        2,691,215       

Balance as on 31.12.2021           495,372          528,618 

25.00     74,119,612     69,376,389 

This is made up as follows: 
Interest on STD Account         1,160,813            994,803 
Interest on FDR       69,897,701       67,397,553 
Interest on BGTB         3,061,098         2,957,500 
Total     74,119,612     71,349,856 

26.00 Allocation of Management Expenses (Applicable to Fund)   229,683,884   158,632,085 

This is made up as follows: 

NAME OF BUSINESS APPORTIONE DIRECT AMOUNT (TK.)   AMOUNT 
       81,144,967 -                    81,144,967       58,979,409 
       72,833,777 -                    72,833,777       47,304,088 
        3,811,197 -                      3,811,197         6,313,557 
       34,907,455 -                    34,907,455       28,173,058 
       36,986,488 -                    36,986,488       17,861,973 
  229,683,884 -                229,683,884   158,632,085 

Less : Consumed  during the year

Less: Depreciation

Add: Addition during the year

This is arrived at as under:

Cost as on 1st January, 2021

Marine Hull

Accumulation depreciation

Add : Purchase during the year

Interest on FDR, STD and BGTB

Balance as on 01.01.2021

Motor 

Depreciation as on 1st January, 2021
Depreciation charged during the year

Balance as on 31st December, 2021

 Less: Sales during the year

Fire 

Miscellaneous
Total

Marine Cargo
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31.12.2021 31.12.2020
AMOUNT (TK.)

27.00 Agency Commission     47,167,820     75,250,554 

Class wise Agency Commission are as follows:

AMOUNT (TK.) AMOUNT 
31.12.2021 31.12.2020

       15,862,132                 -         15,862,132       29,475,224 
       21,034,927                 -         21,034,927       21,973,710 
           676,295                 -              676,295         3,180,329 
        6,944,435                 -           6,944,435       14,583,611 
        2,650,031                 -           2,650,031         6,037,680 
    47,167,820                  -       47,167,820     75,250,554 

28.00 Gross Premium Income   870,268,073   563,459,809 
Class wise Private & Govt. Gross Premium Income are as follows:
CLASS OF BUSINESS AMOUNT (TK.) AMOUNT 

31.12.2021 31.12.2020
     265,873,293    13,666,213      279,539,506     209,474,819 
     304,792,915    21,206,676      325,999,591     168,010,837 

15,701,247      1,357,440           17,058,687       22,428,415 
     117,194,635      3,059,436      120,254,071     100,076,670 
       69,277,570    58,138,648      127,416,218       63,469,068 
  772,839,660  97,428,413   870,268,073   563,459,809 

CLASS OF BUSINESS

Marine Hull

DIRECT

Motor 

Total

Marine Cargo

Marine Hull
Motor 

GOVT.DIRECT

Fire 
Marine Cargo

GOVT.

Total

Fire 

Miscellaneous

Miscellaneous

29.00 Net Premium Income

Premium Income Fire Marine Marine ( H) Motor Miscellanious Amount (Tk.)

PSB 13,666,213         21,206,676   1,357,440        3,059,436     58,138,648      

265,873,293       304,792,915  15,701,247      117,194,635 69,277,570      

279,539,506       325,999,591  17,058,687      120,254,071 127,416,218    

-                    -               -                 -              -                 

279,539,506       325,999,591  17,058,687      120,254,071 127,416,218    

164,850,486       33,222,527   4,733,039        3,261,958     77,568,645      

114,689,020    292,777,064 12,325,648   116,992,113 49,847,573     586,631,418 

Premium Income Fire Marine Marine ( H) Motor Miscellanious Amount (Tk.)

PSB 12,973,324         21,519,437   1,226,220        2,852,599     23,217,871      61,789,451      

196,501,495       146,491,400  21,202,195      97,224,071   40,251,197      501,670,358    

209,474,819       168,010,837  22,428,415      100,076,670 63,469,068      563,459,809    

- -               -                 -              -                 -                 

209,474,819       168,010,837  22,428,415      100,076,670 63,469,068      563,459,809    

127,703,878       39,372,835   1,201,453        1,442,768     25,814,494      195,535,428    

81,770,941      128,638,002 21,226,962   98,633,902 37,654,574   

Premium Less 
Reinsurance

Private Business: 
Less Refund

R/I Premium Ceded

R/I Premium 
Accepted

R/I Premium Ceded
Premium Less 
Reinsurance

870,268,073     

283,636,655     

-                  

870,268,073     

AMOUNT (TK.)

31.12.2021

367,924,381  

31.12.2020

772,839,660     

97,428,413       

AMOUNT (TK.)

R/I Premium 
Accepted

Private Business: 
Less Refund
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30.00     47,581,037     39,564,927 

192,126,223    151,576,413    
58,663,142      36,792,438      
2,116,002        1,937,707       

64,721            -                 
6,164,889        8,719,509       

67,008,754      47,449,654      
125,117,469 104,126,759

46,919,051      39,047,535      
423,200          387,541          

9,708              - 
229,078          129,851 

47,581,037   39,564,927   

31.00
Profit After Tax 143,028,036    110,082,670    
Number of shares 44,250,000      44,250,000      
Earings per share (EPS) 3.23 2.49

FDR. 
Computation of Earnings Attributable to Ordinary Shareholders:

Net Profit before Tax      192,126,223     151,576,413 
Add: Deferred Tax Income        (1,517,150)       (1,928,816)
Less: Provision for Income Tax       47,581,037       39,564,927 
Profit After Tax   143,028,036   110,082,670 

32.00   427,876,075   229,662,548 

32.01 Collection from Premium and Other Income:   629,480,903   428,208,408 

Interest, Profit, Dividend, Premium, Commission etc.      650,724,164     412,587,309 
Opening Interest, profit, dividend       25,149,968       28,009,773 
Sundry Debtors (Opening)       12,566,149       25,327,443 
Closing Interest, Profit, Dividend      (31,134,817)      (25,149,968)
Sundry Debtors  (Closing)      (14,429,675)      (12,566,149)
Right of use of Asset (Closing)      (13,394,886)                    -   

     629,480,903     428,208,408 

Less: Dividend Income

Tax on Dividend Income
Tax on Profit

Provision for Income Tax
Tax on Realized Gain

Calculation of Provision for Income Tax

Profit before Tax
Less: Reserve for Exceptional Losses

Notes on Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Taxable business income

Less: Unrealizes Gain
Less: Gain on Sales of Fixed Assets

This is made up as follows:

Tax on Gain on Sales of Fixed Assets

Earnings per Share (EPS) as per IAS 33

Earning Per Share (EPS) has been increased during the year due to decrease of management expenses and increase of 

32.02 Payment for Management Expenses, Re-Insurance & Claims (239,736,747) (220,907,472)

Management Expenses    (435,652,686)    (316,539,563)
Premium Deposits (Opening)      (59,014,086)      (15,007,609)
Amount due to Other Persons or Bodies Carrying on Insurance Business(Opening)    (105,334,751)      (23,499,804)
Outstanding Claim Liability (Opening)    (126,966,965)    (161,493,512)
Sundry Creditors (Opening)      (25,436,009)      (21,156,113)
Premium Deposits (Closing)       62,855,655       59,014,086 
Amount due to Other Persons or Bodies Carrying on Insurance Business(Closing)      271,844,627     105,334,751 
Sundry Creditors (Closing)       33,727,564       25,062,438 
Lease Liability       14,577,058                    -   
Outstanding Claim Liability (Closing)      129,629,600     126,966,965 
Printing & Stationery Purchase              33,246            410,889 

(239,736,747) (220,907,472)

31.12.2021 31.12.2020
AMOUNT (TK.)
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31.12.2021 31.12.2020
AMOUNT (TK.)

32.03 Income Tax Paid   (25,347,774)   (39,251,925)

32.04 Payment to Worker's Profit Participation Fund     (7,578,821)     (6,778,819)
32.05 Interest Received on STD/SND     71,058,514     68,392,356 
33.00               21.85               20.14 

A. ASSETS:
Investment at cost 75,000,000      25,000,000      
Investment in Shares 78,344,735      64,299,146      
Interest Accrued but not due 31,134,817      25,149,968      

        1,200,851         1,200,851 
     226,004,881     198,793,581 

Cash and Bank Balances (including stock of stamp) 1,292,945,148 995,722,192    
Fixed Assets and Stock of Stationary 286,390,370    274,918,271    
Right of Use of Asset 13,394,886      -                 

2,004,415,688 1,585,084,009
B. LESS LIABILITIES:
Balance of Funds and Accounts 242,047,956    159,905,930    

     129,629,600     126,966,965 
     306,954,285     105,334,751 
     272,618,478     235,347,290 

Premium Deposit Account 62,855,655      59,014,086      
8,770,532        7,253,382       

14,577,058      -                 
Sub Total 1,037,453,563 693,822,404
Total Net Assets (A-B) 966,962,124 891,261,605

Total Net Assets      966,962,124     891,261,605 
No. of Ordinary Shares 44,250,000      44,250,000      
NAVPS 21.85             20.14             

34.00 Net Operating Cash Flows Per Share (NOCFPS)

Net Cash provided by operating activities      427,876,075     229,662,548 
Divided by no. of Ordinary Shares outstanding during the year       44,250,000       44,250,000 

                9.67                 5.19 

34.01 Reconciliation of Cash Flows from Operating Activities under 427,876,075   229,662,548 
Indirect Method
Net Profit / (Loss) before Interest and Income Tax during the year (PBT)      192,126,223     151,576,413 
Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation       14,835,670         8,021,858 

       (2,116,002)       (1,937,707)
         (300,000)                    -   
       (3,061,098)       (2,957,500)
        9,358,570         3,126,651 

                   -                      -   
Increase/(Decrease) the Balance of Fund       82,142,026       10,877,727 
Increase/(Decrease) in Accrued Interest        (5,984,849)         2,859,805 
Increase/(Decrease) in Advance, Deposits and Pre-payments        (1,863,526)       12,761,294 
Increase/(Decrease) the Premium Deposit         3,841,569       44,006,477 
Increase/(Decrease) the Right of use of Asset      (13,394,886)                    -   
Increase/(Decrease) of Amount due from Other Persons or Bodies      170,144,736       81,834,947 
Increase/(Decrease) of Sundry Creditor         8,291,555         4,706,326 
Increase/(Decrease) of Lease Liability       14,577,058 
Increase/(Decrease) of Outstanding Claims         2,662,635      (34,526,547)

Sundry Creditors (Including provision for expenses, Taxes)
Amount due to other persons or bodies carrying on Insurance Business

Sub Total

This is made up as follows:

Amount due from other persons or bodies carrying on Insurance Business

Profit on Sales of Fixed Assets

Deferred Tax Liability

Increase in NAVPS has been arised due to Increase in Fixed Assets, Cash & Cash Equivalents and Sundry Debtors-including 

Interest received on BGTB

Changes in Operating Assets

Dividend Income

Estimated Liabilities in respect of outstanding claims whether due or intimated

Net Asset Value per Share (NAVPS)

Sundry Debtors (Including Advances, Deposits & Prepayments)

Increase in NOCFPS has been arised due to increase in collection from premium income and increase in interest received on FDR 

Intrinsic Value or Net Assets Value

Lease Liability
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Investment Fluctuation Reserve        (8,710,509)       (8,719,509)
Tax Paid during the year      (25,347,774)      (39,251,925)
Increase/(Decrease) Stock of Stationery              33,246            410,889 

     226,391,282       74,959,484 
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities      427,876,075     229,662,548 

35.00

Financial Assets
50,000,000      25,000,000   -                 75,000,000      

1,173,895,442  -              -                 1,173,895,442 
31,134,817      -              -                 31,134,817      

-                 -              226,004,881    226,004,881    
-                 -              78,344,735      78,344,735      
-                 -              85,159            85,159            

116,560,121    -              -                 116,560,121    
-                 -              2,404,425        2,404,425       

Total 1,371,590,381 25,000,000 306,839,200 1,703,429,581
 

-                 -              129,629,600        129,629,600 
-                 -              306,954,285    105,334,751    
-                 -              272,618,478        272,618,478 

Total -                 -              709,202,363 507,582,829
1,371,590,381 25,000,000 (402,363,163) 1,195,846,752

36.00
a)

   During the year, no loan was given to the Directors of the Company

ii. Key Management Compansation;
  The break of the Key Management Compensation is given below:

Non Interest 
Bearing

Financial Instruments and Related Disclosure Under IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments".

Interest Bearing

Cash in Hand

Investment in FDR 

Cash at Bank

i) Loan to Directors
Transaction with Key Management Personnel

Amount due to other person or bodies carrying on Insurance Business

Particulars

Setout below is a year-ended balance of carrying amounts (book value) of all financial assets and liabilities (Financial Instruments):

TotalMaturity 
within one 

year

Outstanding Claims

Sundry Creditors

Related Party Transactions-Disclosure Under IAS 24 "Related Party Disclosure"

Financial Liabilities

Interest accrued but not due

Stamp in Hand

Sundry Debtors

Net Financial Assets / Liabilities

Bangladesh Govt. Treasury Bond

Maturity 
after  one 

year

Investment in Shares

Designation
Total 

Meeting 
Held

Meeting 
Attended Taka

Ex Chairman 4 4 32,000

Chairman 5 4 32,000

Director 5 5 40,000

Director 5 5 40,000

Director 5 5 40,000

Director 5 5 40,000

Director 5 5 40,000

Director 5 5 40,000

Salary and Allowance & other
compensation paid during the year  

Salary and Allowance & other
compensation paid during the year 

Salary and Allowance & other
compensation paid during the year  

Salary and Allowance & other
compensation paid during the year  

Salary and Allowance & other
compensation paid during the year 

Salary and Allowance & other
compensation paid during the year  

Particulars

Mrs. Tashmina Binte 
Mostafa

Mr. Taif Bin Yousuf

Md. Abdul Baset 
Mojumder

Mr. Mostafa kamal
Salary and Allowance & other

compensation paid during the year  

Salary and Allowance & other
compensation paid during the year  

Mr. Abdur Rouf

Mrs. Tanjima Binte 
Mostafa

Name

Mrs. Beauty Akter

Mr. Tanveer Ahmed 
Mostafa

31.12.2021 31.12.2020
AMOUNT (TK.)
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Independent
Director

Independent
Director

Independent
Director

Independent
Director

Independent
Director

Independent
Director

Independent
Director

5 5 40,000

4 4 32,000

4 4 32,000

4 4 32,000

Public Director 5 5 40,000

Public Director 5 5 40,000

Public Director 5 5 40,000

Public Director 5 5 40,000

Public Director 2 1 8,000

1 1 8,000

1 1 8,000

1 1 8,000

Total 752,000 

b)

Sl. 
No. Relationship Nature of 

Transaction
Transaction 

Amount (Tk.)
1 Common Directors             Insurance Premium           943,935 
2 Do Do             11,576 
3 Do Do         1,204,830 
4 Do Do            386,875 
5 Do Do         3,121,758 
6 Do Do         1,802,665 
7 Do Do            100,670 

       incurred during the year under review was Tk. 752,000.

Salary and Allowance & other
compensation paid during the year  

Salary and Allowance & other
compensation paid during the year  

Salary and Allowance & other
compensation paid during the year  

Salary and Allowance & other
compensation paid during the year  

Salary and Allowance & other
compensation paid during the year  

Salary and Allowance & other
compensation paid during the year  

Salary and Allowance & other
compensation paid during the year  

Salary and Allowance & other
compensation paid during the year  

Salary and Allowance & other
compensation paid during the year  

Salary and Allowance & other
compensation paid during the year  

Salary and Allowance & other
compensation paid during the year  

Salary and Allowance & other
compensation paid during the year  

(a) No compensation was allowed by the company to the Managing Director & CEO other than stated above;

Global Ad Star Bag Industries Ltd.

Meghna Pulp & Paper Mills Ltd.
Meghna Ball Pen & Access MGP. Ltd.

United Edible Oils Ltd.

Tanveer Food Ltd.

(b) The Board Meeting attendance fees @ Tk. 8,000 per Director per meeting; and the total Board Meeting attendance fee 

Other Related 

(c) No amount of money was spent by the company for compensating any member of the board for special services rendered.

Name of Party

Mr. Fakhruddin 
Ahmed, FCMA, FCA

Unique Power Plant Ltd.
Unique Cement Industries Ltd.

Monjur Md. Shaiful 
Azam, FCMA

Md. Hasan Rajib 
Prodhan

Md. Alamgir Hossain 
Khan, FCMA

Mrs. Hasina Begum

Mrs. Farida Akhter

Mr. Md. Nasir Uddin

Balayet Hossain 
Bhuiyan

Professor Dr. Mijanur 
Rahman

Mr. Mohammad 
Salim, FCMA

Professor Dr. Gautam 
Buddah Das

Md. Abdul Baten

Director 5 5 40,000

Director 5 5 40,000

Director 5 5 40,000

Mr. Yousuf Ali

Ms. Tasnim Binte 
Mostafa

Salary and Allowance & other
compensation paid during the year  

Salary and Allowance & other
compensation paid during the year  

Salary and Allowance & other
compensation paid during the year  

Mr. Wasikur Rahman

During the year, the Company carried out the transactions with related parties in the normal course of business and on an 
arm's length basis. The name of related parties, relationship, types of transaction and their total value have been set out in 
accordance with the provisions of IAS 24 "Related Party Disclosures", Transaction with related parties are executed on the 
some terms as those of other customers of similar credentials and do no involve more than a normal risk.
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14 Do Do             54,893 
15 Do Do             39,523 
16 Do         2,035,599 
17 Do         1,215,075 
18 Do         1,322,760 
19 Do            206,052 
20 Do            878,717 
21 Do            953,629 
22 Do             10,606 
23 Do             25,608 
24 Do         1,068,340 

37.00

           350,750            132,250 
           345,000         1,207,500 
          695,750       1,339,750 

38.00

Executive Directors
     7,771,875 Nill
        715,980 Nill
        661,300 Nill
        305,453 Nill
        273,600 Nill
   9,728,208 

39.00

40.00

41.00

42.00

43.00

Total

Incentive Bonus  Nill 
 Nill 

Do

The aggregateamountpaid (exceptdirector'sfees for attendingboard meetings)during the year to directorsand Executive
of the Company is disclosed below as required by the Securities and Exchange  Rules, 1987.

Directors Executive
2021 2020

Do

Meghna Edible Oil Refinery Ltd.

Meghna Noodles & Biscuit Factory Ltd.
Do

Do

DoSonargaon Steel Fabricate Ltd.

Do
Meghna Bulk Bag Industries Ltd.

Festival Bonus  Nill 

     12,664,660 
Conveyance Allowance & Transport  Nill             516,000 

            221,460 
            919,100 

Provident Fund

Payment to Statutory and Special Audit Fees

Key Management Benefits

Statutory Audit
Special Audit

 Nill 
            919,100 

Meghna Ceramic Industries Ltd.

Do

Benefits

        10,089,000 Salary

Subsequent events-Disclosoures under IAS 10 "Events after Reporting Period"

Do

Do

Tasnim Chemical Complex Unit-2 Ltd

Tanveer Paper Mills Ltd.

Meghna Cement Fibre Industries Ltd.

Meghna Sugar Refinery Ltd.

Capital Expenditure Commitment

Contingent Assets

There was no commitment for capital expenditure and also not incurred or provided for the year ended 31st December, 2021.

Meghna Tea Company Ltd.

"Except the fact stated above, no circumstanceshave arisen sinch the balance sheet date which would require adjustments
or disclosure in the financial statements or notes thereto.

Remittance of dividend

As there were no non-resident shareholders, no dividend was remitted to or received from abroad.

Credit Facility not Availed
There was no credit facility available to the Company under any contract and also not availed as on 31st December, 2021 

Meghna PVC Ltd.

There was no contingent assets as on 31st December, 2021.

The directors in the meeting held on 27.04.2022recommended18% cash dividend for the Shareholdersexcludingsponsor
Shareholderswhose name will be apperead in the Shareholders'registers at the date of book closure which is subject to
Shareholders' approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 27.06.2022.

8 Do Do         4,747,879 
9 Do Do         3,130,219 
10 Do Do            514,181 
11 Do Do            666,855 
12 Do Do             47,237 
13 Do Do         2,347,071 

Tasnim Condensed Milk Ltd.
Tasnim Chemical Complex Ltd.

Meghna Ship Builders & Docyard Ltd.

Sonargaon Salt Industries Ltd.
Meghna Beverage Ltd.

Sonargaon Flour & Dal Mills Ltd.
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44.00

Meeting Held Attended

4 4

5 4

5 5

5 5

5 5

5 5

5 5

5 5

5 5

5 5

5 5

5 5

4 4

4 4

4 4

5 5

5 5

5 5

5 5

2 1

1 1

1 1

1 1

45.00

Branch
545
4

549

01.01.2021-20.09.2021

Beauty Aktar

Md. Abdur Rouf

01.01.2021-31.12.2021

Director

Independent Director   

Director

Director

Md. Abdul Baten Public Director

Director

Director

Director

Fakhruddin Ahmed, 
FCMA, FCA

Director

Mr. Yousuf Ali

Director

Director

Tanveer Ahmed 
Mostafa 01.01.2021-31.12.2021

01.01.2021-20.09.2021

Wasikur Rahman

Independent Director  Mohammed Salim, 
FCMA
Prof. Dr. Gautan 
Budda Das

Mrs. Hasina Begum

Balayet Hossain 
Bhuiyan

Public DirectorMd. Nasir Uddin

Mrs. Farida Akhter

Public Director

Public Director

(A) Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part II, Notes 5 of Para 3

No. of Employee

659

655
4

01.01.2021-31.12.2021Independent Director

Monthly Salary Range Head Office

Total 110
Below 8000 0
Above 8000 110

01.01.2021-31.12.2021

Public Director

01.01.2021-31.12.2021

01.01.2021-31.12.2021

Independent Director  

01.01.2021-31.12.2021

01.01.2021-20.09.2021

01.01.2021-31.12.2021

Ms. Tasnim Binte 
Mostafa

Prof. Dr. Majianur 
Rahman

01.01.2021-31.12.2021

Tahmina Binte 
Mostafa

01.01.2021-31.12.2021

01.01.2021-31.12.2021

Taif Bin Yousuf

Tanjima Binte 
Mostafa

01.01.2021-31.12.2021

01.01.2021-31.12.2021

Chairman

Abdul Baset 
Majumder
Mostafa Kamal 01.01.2021-31.12.2021

01.01.2021-27.10.2021Ex Chairman

Name of the 
Directors Position 

Independent Director

During the year there was 5 Board Meetings were held. The attendance status of all the meetings is as follows:

01.01.2021-31.12.2021

Independent Director

Duration Period

Monjur Md. Shaiful 
Azam, FCMA

22.06.2021-31.12.2021

20.09.2021-31.12.2021Md. Alamgir Hossain 
Khan, FCMA Independent Director

Disclosures as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part II of the Companies Act, 1994

20.09.2021-31.12.2021

(Employee Position as on 31st December, 2021)

Attendance status of Board Meeting of Directors

20.09.2021-31.12.2021Md. Hasan Rajib 
Prodhan
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Meeting 
Attendance 

Fee
Allowance Amount (Tk.)

8,000                    -   
8,000                    -   
8,000                    -   
8,000                    -   
8,000                    -   
8,000                    -   
8,000                    -   
8,000                    -   
8,000                    -   
8,000                    -   
8,000                    -   
8,000                    -   
8,000                    -   
8,000                    -   
8,000                    -   
8,000                    -   
8,000                    -   
8,000                    -   
8,000                    -   
8,000                    -   
8,000                    -   
8,000                    -   
8,000                    -   

46.00

(I)

(II)

(III)

(IV)

(V)

Wasikur Rahman

Ex Chairman

Director
Director

Position

Mostafa Kamal

Disclosure in line with instruction F of Part I of Schedule XI

40,000
40,000

Tanveer Ahmed Mostafa
40,000

Md. Abdul Baten

Taif Bin Yousuf

Prof. Dr. Majianur Rahman
32,000

32,000

Debt considered doubtful or bad

Debt due by directos or other officers of the Company

In regard to sundry debtors the following particulars shall be given separately:

Within six months trade debtors occurred in the ordinary course of business are considered good but no security given by the 

Within six months trade debtorshave arisen in the ordinarycourse of business in good faith as well as market reputationof
the company for the above mentioned reasons no personal security taken from debtors.

The were no doubtful and bad debts.

Debt considered good in respect of which the company is fully secured

Debt considered good for which the company holds no security other than the debtors' personal security

There is no debt under common management.

There is no debt due by directors or other officers of the company.

Debt due by common management

(B) Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part II, Para 4

40,000Beauty Aktar

Abdul Baset Majumder

40,000

Director

752,000

Public Director
Public Director

40,000

32,000
Independent Director  
Independent Director   

Public Director

Independent Director
Independent Director

(ii) The rate at which Directors have drawn Board Meeting attendance fees @ Tk. 8,000 per Director per meeting. 

Independent Director   

Mrs. Farida Akhter
Mrs. Hasina Begum

Mohammed Salim, FCMA

Mr. Fakhruddin Ahmed, FCMA, FCA

40,000

40,000

Total

Independent Director

(iii) No amount of money was spent by the company for compensating any member of the board for special services rendered.
     The total Board Meeting attencance fee incurred during the year under review was Tk. 752,000; and 

During the year under review: 

Public Director

Director

(i) No compensation was allowed by the company to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company who is also a director;

Name

40,000

Public Director

Tahmina Binte Mostafa

Md. Nasir Uddin

Director

Director
Independent Director

Prof. Dr. Gautan Budda Das

40,000

40,000

Mr. Yousuf Ali

32,000
32,000

Md. Abdur Rouf

Chairman

40,000

40,000

40,000

8,000

Ms. Tasnim Binte Mostafa

Tanjima Binte Mostafa

Director

Director

8,000

Director

8,000

Balayet Hossain Bhuiyan
Md. Alamgir Hossain Khan, FCMA
Monjur Md. Shaiful Azam, FCMA
Md. Hasan Rajib Prodhan

8,000

(VI)

47.00
During the year under review the company did not remit any amount as dividend, technical know-how, royalty, professional
consultation fees, 

The maximum amount due by directors or other officers of the Company
There is no such debt in this respect.
Schedule XI, Part II, Para 8(b) & Para 8(d) Foreign Currencies remitted during the year
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Annexure-A

Sl. No. Name of Bank  Amount (Tk.) 
31.12.2021 

 Amount (Tk.) 
 31.12.2020 

1 A.B. Bank Ltd. 25,136,523              22,761,742              
2 Agrani Bank Ltd. 1,683,098                1,602,987                
3 Al-Arafa Islami Bank Ltd. 14,509,310              10,035,672              
4 Bangladesh Commerce Bank Ltd. 4,722,989                8,086,451                
5 Bank Asia Ltd. 14,403,183              9,002,387                
6 BASIC Bank Ltd. 4,100,424                2,945,516                
7 Community Bank BD Ltd 329,651,531             -                         
8 Dhaka Bank Ltd. 4,699,049                2,579,269                
9 Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd. 11,510,308              21,896,048              
10 Eastern Bnak Ltd. 3,882,410                2,317,799                
11 EXIM Bank Ltd. 32,876,237              20,673,226              
12 First Security Islami Bank Ltd 16,621,456              13,887,197              
13 IDLC Finance Limited 26,791,206              40,747,853              
14 IFIC Bank Ltd. 22,616,896              19,918,019              
15 Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd. 28,941,570              27,220,378              
16 Jamuna Bank Ltd. 19,547,849              17,187,453              
17 Janata Bank Ltd. 11,176,298              10,601,296              
18 Lanka Bangla Finance Ltd. 10,877,821              10,108,625              
19 Mercantile Bank Ltd. 15,045,676              11,447,171              
20 Megna Bank Ltd. 2,853,402                1,757,827                
21 Modhumoti Bank Ltd. 290,903,299             429,909,388             
22 Mutual Trust Bank Ltd. 14,234,245              13,555,316              
23 National Bank Ltd. 42,411,917              38,001,300              
24 NCC Bank Ltd. 15,004,729              13,334,214              
25 NRB Commercial Bank Ltd. 11,602,000              3,334,652                
26 NRB Global Bank Ltd. 1,406,723                -                         
27 One Bank Ltd 15,219,178              7,836,967                
28 Padma Bank Ltd. 623,522                   4,420,068                
29 Prime Bank Ltd. 5,886,178                5,214,503                
30 Pubali Bank Ltd. 3,571,956                2,963,795                
31 Premier Bank Ltd. 13,146,372              6,792,625                
32 Rajshahi Krishi Unnayan Bank Ltd 500,000                   -                         
33 Rupali Bank Ltd. 1,985,904                1,890,469                
34 SBAC Bank Ltd. 15,796,799              8,997,138                
35 Shajalal Islami Bank Ltd. 3,660,109                3,492,425                
36 Social Islami Bank Ltd. 70,190,683              62,726,191              
37 Southeast Bank Ltd. 12,488,514              8,544,609                
38 South Bangla Agriculture Bank Ltd. -                         4,147,906                
39 Standard Bank Ltd. 11,661,295              7,789,580                
40 Uttara Bank Ltd. 1,500,000                
41 UCBL 39,015,309              36,637,103              
42 Union Bank Ltd. 1,439,474                1,345,812                

1,173,895,442      915,710,977          

The details bank wise balance of Fixed Deposit Receipts Account (FDR) as on 31st December, 2021 as per
books of accounts are as under:
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Annexure-B

Sl. No. Name of Bank  Amount (Tk.)             
31.12.2021 

 Amount (Tk.)           
31.12.2020 

1 Dhaka Bank Ltd. 1,556,810                    177,646                      
2 Dutch-Bangla Bank Ltd. 3,339,657                    1,289,206                    
3 Eastern Bank Ltd. 617,218                      607,289                      
4 Modhumoti Bank Ltd 911,715                      1,120                          
5 Mutual Trust Bank Ltd. 57,444,820                  28,956,652                  
6 NCC Bank Ltd. 15,053,509                  18,022,752                  
7 Prime Bank Ltd. 6,703,194                    9,437,125                    
8 Sonali Bank 695,309                      721,774                      
9 United Commercial Bank Ltd. 30,237,890                  16,219,211                  

116,560,121              75,432,775                

The details bank wise balance of short term deposit receipts account (STD) as on 31st December, 2021 as per 
books of accounts are as under:
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Annexure-C

Sl. No. Branch Name Amount (Tk.)                  
31.12.2021

Amount (Tk.)                    
31.12.2020

1 Agrabad Branch 39                              49,574                        
2 B.B.Avenue Branch 150,000                      151,731                      
3 Bangshal Branch 103,897                      100,029                      
4 Bagerhat Branch 131,207                      140,572                      
5 Dilkusha Branch 748                            233                            
6 DIT Branch 327,250                      301,139                      
7 Gulshan Branch 86                              75,474                        
8 Head  office 167,795                      96,396                        
9 Jamalpur Branch 20                              86                             
10 Jatrabari Branch 24                              24                             
11 Jessore Branch 13,552                        149                            
12 Jubliroad Branch 890                            275                            
13 Kawrun Bazar Branch 26,174                        33,904                        
14 Khatungonj Branch 13,470                        14,509                        
15 Khulna Branch 1,515                          1,515                          
16 Local Office  23,203                        2,455                          
17 Motijheel Branch 45,874                        45,872                        
18 Paltan Branch 207,460                      217,452                      
19 Rangpur Branch 30,030                        30,015                        
20 Sheikh Mujib Road 1,061                          8,882                          
21 Uttara Branch 1,355                          886                            
22 V.I.P.Road Branch 300,012                      300,012                      
23 Principal Branch 41,881                        30,575                       
24 Kushtia Branch 150,000                      179,010                      
25 Baridhara Branch 1,922                          100,018                      
26 Kadamtali Branch 208                            40,144                       
27 Moulovi Bazar Branch 58                              108                            
28 Pabna Branch 3                                22                              
29 Mirpur Branch 473                            19                              
30 Narayangonj Branch 71                              
31 Laldighi Branch 4,968                          
32 Kakirapool Branch 298                            
33 Dilkusha Corporate Branch 62                              
34 Mymensingh Branch 39,546                        
35 Gulshan Circle-2 Branch 59,571                        
36 Faridpur Branch 50,851                        4                                
37 Tejgaon Branch 8,500                          40,391                       

Total 1,904,074                  1,961,475                  

38 Insurance Stamp 351                            351                            
39 DD Transit 500,000                      2,381,258                    

Total 500,351                     2,381,609                  
Gross Total 2,404,425                  4,343,084                  

 The details Branch Wise Cash In Hand as on 31st December, 2021 are as  under:
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BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ CERTIFICATE

As per regulations contained in the First Schedule of the Insurance Act, 1938 as amended Insurance Act, 2010 and as 
per Section 63 (2) of the Insurance Act, 2010 we certify that:

01.  The value of all assets shown in the Balance Sheet and classified on Form-“AA” annexed have been reviewed as at 
31st December, 2021 and in our belief, the said assets have been set forth in the Statement of Financial Position 
at amount not exceeding their realizable or market value under the several headings enumerated in the annexed 
form:

02.  All expenses of management wherever incurred, whether directly or indirectly in respect of Fire, Marine Cargo, 
Marine Hull, Motor and Miscellaneous Insurance business have been fully debited in the respective Revenue 
Account as expenses.

Dated: April 27, 2022
Place: Dhaka, Bangladesh

ChairmanDirectorChief Executive Officer Director



Note:



Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited
Head Office: Rashid Tower (3rd Floor), Plot No-11, Road No-18, Gulshan-1,Dhaka-1212

Phone: 883 2234-5, 883 2215, 883 2217, 883 2227, Fax: 08-883 2154
E-mail: mail@bnicl.net, Website: www.bnicl.net

Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited
Head Office: Rashid Tower (3rd Floor), Plot No-11, Road No-18, Gulshan-1,DHAKA-1212

Phone: 883 2234-5, 883 2215, 883 2217, 883 2227, Fax: 08-883 2154
E-mail: mail@bnicl.net, Website: www.bnicl.net

I/We …………………………………………………...........................…………………………………………………………….........……………
of...…………………………………………………………………………………………………………....................................…….……………..
being a member of Bangladesh National Insurance Limited do hereby appoint Mr. / Mrs. / Miss..................................

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….

of………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………as my our proxy, to vote 
For me / us and on my / our behalf at the 26th Annual General Meeting of Bangladesh National Insurance Company 
Limited will be held on June 27, 2022 at 12:00 pm Meeting will be held virtually by using Digital Platform (As per BSEC 
order no. SEC/SRMIC/94-231/935 dated 11 June 2020)

Notes :
01 . This Proxy Form, duly completed, signed and affixed with revenue stamp of TK. 20/- must be deposited at least 72  
 Hours before the meeting of the company’s Head Office. Proxy will be invalid if not signed and Stamp as explained  
 above.

02. Signature of the Shareholder should match with the Specimen Signature Registered with the Company.

I/We hereby record my/our attendance at the 26th Annual General Meeting of Bangladesh National Insurance 
Company Limited will be held on June 27, 2022 at 12:00 pm Meeting will be held virtually by using Digital Platform 
(As per BSEC order no. SEC/SRMIC/94-231/935 dated 11 June 2020)

Name of Member/ Proxy : ………………….........................…………………………………………………..........………….. 

Signed this Day of

Signature of ShareholderSignature of Proxy

Signature of Shareholder

Revenue
Stamp

TK. 20/-

PROXY FORM

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Note: Signature of the Shareholders Should agree with the specimen signature registered with the Company and Depository Register.

BO ID No.

BO ID No.
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Head Of�ce: Rashid Tower (3rd Floor),
Plot # 11, Road # 18, Gulshan-1,

Dhaka-1212

Phone: PABX - 8832234-5, 8832215
8832217, 8832232, Fax : 88-02-8832154

Hotline: 09613112233

E-mail: mail@bnicl.net, 
Website: www.bnicl.net

Head Office   
Rashid Tower (3rd Floor), Plot # 11
Road # 18, Gulshan-1, Dhaka-1212 
Tel : 88-02-8832234-5
Fax : 88-02-8832154
Hotline: 09613112233
Website : www.bnicl.net
E-mail : mail@bnicl.net

BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE CO. LTD.
evsjv‡`k b¨vkbvj BÝy¨‡iÝ †Kv¤úvbx wjwgw‡UW


